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Dear Shareholders,
 After passing through the political turmoil in 2010, the general election was conducted 
in Thailand in July 2011. The newly elected government received overwhelming majority votes 
which represented symbol of stability in pushing through any policies into practice efficiently. 
However, before the new government that prioritized in using its populist policy to push the 
country’s economy to execute any policy, Thailand had to encounter the severe flooding 
crisis. Flooding started from the north in August; coming down to the midland, and finally 
the deluge had threatened Bangkok, the main center point of the country in October. Many 
industrial estates suffered severe damages and the resulting impacts also extended to most 
industries that had to stop their productions and caused damages to all parts of economic 
units and society as well.
 RS received direct impact from this flooding crisis as its main office is situated in the 
flooding area, and temporary office had to be set up for normal contact with external units. 
However, damage was minimal because all our office buildings were not damaged as they 
were built much higher than the street level. Our warehouse in Pathumthani province received 
direct impact but, fortunately, our team had already prepared, and safely removed warehouse 
items beforehand.
        Direct damage on assets might be minimal, but damage on business opportunities 
and media business interruptions resulted in a much more impact. More than 50% of the 
advertising clients cancelled their advertisements due to non-productivity in their factories, 
resulting in no distribution of goods on the shelves, thus, it was not necessary to plan for any 
media advertising. Moreover, as most business operators suffered severe damages, media 
budget on advertising and promotion required major review. This resulted in direct impact to 
the media industry as a whole which registered only 3% growth from previously forecast of 
8% to 9% growth prior to the flooding crisis.
 On various business units of the Company, music business still registered continuous 
growth from its popularity of the mobile phone’s calling melody, and also including growth 
of the smartphone market in which consumers were able to reach variety of contents. The 
success also included the monthly package membership service which enabled steady 
monthly income to the music business. However, excitement in introducing new service to 
consumers in 2011 had been greatly reduced, as the mobile phone’s service providers did 
not receive clear regulations on all network development into the 3G system. Thus, marketing 
presentation on new available services for consumers to try, in accordance with their present 
music listening lifestyle, were lacking. Nevertheless, the country music’s consumer group 
under the brand name “R Siam” which was still popular in listening music from CD, registered 
good response to the MP3 type of music that the Company had introduced to the market this 
year. Hence, sales of CD and VCD products were not decreased as expected. 
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 On the part of movie business, there was only 1 movie on show in 2011, which was 
“Bangkok Kungfu” and afterward the movie production had been decided to stop due to 
the revenue structure of the industry was not viable for investment. This was due to the fact 
that all risk rested on the movie production house while the movie house’s owner collected 
half of the income, thus, opportunity in making profit from any movie was very limited. 
Additionally, the domestic market size was limited as majority of the purchasing power was 
in Bangkok.
 Show business registered a leaping growth as the Company managed many 
public administration projects for private and public sectors. Even though there was some 
stumbling period from flooding crisis at the end of the year, the Company was able to build 
52% growth.
 For the media business in the RS group, the satellite television media business 
registered growth of 6 times due to the popularity of the first 2 stations that had been on 
air just over 2 years i.e. “Sabaidee TV, and YOU Channel. Both stations received the No. 
1 popularity rating from their target audience groups through research from a worldwide 
research company “AGB Nielsen”. Moreover, the company also introduced additional 2 
satellite television channels i.e. Channel 8 which was an entertainment variety channel in 
April, and “YAAK TV”, a teenager lifestyle channel in August.
 The Company is confidence that advertising budget for the satellite television media 
will have a leaping growth during the next few years from now, as the number of household 
population that can watch television through the satellite television channel registers more 
than 60% of the total population. Moreover, there are more quality programs on satellite 
platform as compared to that of terrestrial network. More alternatives to watch on the 
platform results in a steady increase in popularity. This reflects through the popularity 
chart that is arranged by the worldwide research company of AGB Nielsen. Additionally, 
advertising cost of the satellite television is very low comparing to normal ground station 
television, hence, a large number of advertising clients start to buy more advertising through 
this type of media.
 On radio media, the Company still maintained growth of 3% even though there was 
only one station to be managed. Due to the fact that the Cool 93 wavelength received No. 1 
popularity award for easy listening songs, it still received good response from listeners even 
though the industry was shrinking in size from the changes in majority of listeners’ behavior 
towards other types of media. 
 The modern trade media registered 12% growth with nearly 100% sales of its 
advertising area which enabled the concession owners to demand increases on concession 
fees to the level that was too high to manage for profit optimization to shareholders. As most 
contracts consisted of short-term contracts that caused investment risk, the Company had 
decided not to continue concession contracts for the Big C and Carrefour group which 
were to be expired in February and May 2012 respectively.
 The Company managed to generate growth up to 17% due to its rapid recovery 
from the flooding situation as well as growth in the media industry. Comparing to the total 
revenues, excluding revenues from managing the World Cup football’s media rights in 
2010, the Company registered total revenues of Baht 2,765 million, an increase of Baht 
406 million, or 17% from previous year.  Cost of sales and production amounted to Baht 
1,853 million, an increase of Baht 328 million, or 21% from previous year while the selling 
and administrative expenses registered at Baht 592 million, an increase of Baht 41 million, 
or 7% from previous year.
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Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak
Chairman

Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak
Chief Executive Officer

 On corporate social responsibility, RS still adhered to continuously participate in social 
activities together with its entertainment business operations. Referring to severe flooding in 
many provinces in Thailand in 2011, the Company had initiated the project “RS – Coordinate 
our Hearts to Help Flood Victims” to raise funds and materials for flood victims. People had 
been invited to make donations for purchasing of necessary items in helping the flood victims. 
Revenue from this fund raising project had been donated to victims in the provinces without 
deducting any expenses.
 Moreover, RS also supported its teenage record label group i.e., the Kamikaze, 
to initiate the KAMIKAZE’S LOVER Project “Deaf but We Can Feel”. This was to implant 
perception in Thai youth and then reaffirm its awareness to all Thais on the importance of 
sharing to disabled children, and readily to provide them with opportunities in society to give 
them confidence and happy living.
 The Company also promoted and supported its artists to participate in various 
activities that were beneficial to society and environment as shown in this annual report.
 The Company still continuously proceeded with the promotion and development 
on its good corporate governance policy. This reflected our management with efficiency, 
transparency, and ethics with responsibility towards society and environment as well as 
building confidence towards shareholders, investors, and stakeholders. Hence, in 2011, the 
Company has been listed with the “Excellent” CG Scoring from the Corporate Governance 
Report of Thai Listed Companies 2011.
 However, the Company’s Board of Directors has stipulated that the Company’s good 
corporate governance policy had to be in writing.  Arrangements on reviewing policy on 
good corporate governance, the code of conduct handbook for RS group, and follow up 
evaluation on complying with the policy had to be done at least once a year. The Company, 
then, published information to Directors, and employees for reference and to comply with, 
and also including publication in the Company’s internal website.
 On behalf of the Company’s Board of Directors, we would like to thank shareholders, 
customers, government agencies, sponsors, and most important of all, our employees and 
artists who dedicated their bodies and minds by uniting in moving our company forward 
strongly and firmly. Even in difficult situations, the Company was able to notice all personnel 
sharing kindness with each other, including to other less privileged people in society. These 
reflected consistency with our corporate vision as an entertainment network that offered 
quality entertainment with different presentations, and always with social responsibility. 
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Education :
Master’s degree in Business Administration (Honorary) Ramkhamhaeng University
Experience :
1992 - present Chairman and Advisory to the Executive Committee
RS Public Company Limited
2004 - present Chairman of Chetchotisak Foundation
2001 - 2006 President of the Thai Record and Tape Association
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Education :
Honorary Docterate Degree in Marketing Chandrakasem

Rajabhat University

Bachelor’s degree in Political Sciences Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience :
2003 - present Chief Executive Officer RS Public Company Limited
1992 - present Vice Chairman RS Public Company Limited
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Education :
Bachelor’s degree in Communication Arts Bangkok University
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October 2003 - present Vice Chairman RS Public Company Limited
1997 - October 2003 Sales Management Director RS Public Company Limited
1997 - present Managing Director Magic Advertisement Company Limited
1992 - 1997 Marketing Manager RS Public Company Limited
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- Certificate of Intellectual Property and International Trade from
The Institute of Legal Education Thai Bar Association

Experience :
2007 - present Executive Vice President - Legal Office
RS Public Company Limited
1997 - 2007 Law Consultant RS Public Company Limited
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Education :
Master of Business Administration (MBA), University of Notre Dame Indiana, U.S.A
Bachelor of Arts in Economics (BA Econ), Thammasat University

Experience :
September 2007 - Present Chief Financial Officer RS Public Company Limited
2002 - 2007 Senior Vice President Corporate Banking, HSBC Thailand
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Education :
Master degree (MBA) from Sasin Graduate institute of Business
Administration of Chulalongkorn University
Bachelor degree in Statistics from Chulalongkorn University
Certificates from Thai Institute of Directors : Director Certification 
Program Class 87
Certificates from Thai Listed Companies Association :
Executive Development Program Class 4
Experience :
2007 - present Chief Operating Officer RS Public Company Limited
2004 - 2007 Deputy Managing Director RS Public Company Limited
2003 - 2004 Assistant Managing Director RS Public
Company Limited
2001 - March 2003 Assistant Managing Director
Golden Land Property Development Public
Company Limited
1999 - July 2001 Assistant Vice President
SG Securities Company Limited
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Education :
Bachelor Degree-Accounting, Thammasat University
Bachelor Degree-Commerce, Thammasat University
Certified Public Account Senior Executive Program,
Stanford University, U.S.A
Director Accreditation Program (IOD)
Audit Committee Program (IOD)

Experience :
2010 - present Chairman Berli Jucker Staff Saving Cooperation
2003 - present Director and Audit Committee Chairman Jaymart Public Company Limited
2003 - present Director and Audit Committee Chairman
K-Tech Construction Public Company Limited
2002 - present Director and Advisor, Phuket International Hospital Company Limited
2001 - present Executive Chairman, Professional Alliance Group Limited
1992 - present Director, Polipharm Company Limited
1965 - 2002 Executive Vice President-Finance and
Administration Director and Audit Committee Chairman Berli Jucker Public Company Limited
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Education :
Master degree in improvement social, NIDA
Royal Military Academy Sandhurst
Bachelor of Law, School of law LL.B., Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience :
2006 - Deputy Supreme Commander, Supreme
Command Headquarters (Army)
2005 - Chairman of the RTA Advisory Board
2000 - Commanding General Army Weapons Production Control Center
1996 - Deputy Commanding General, 2 Army Corps
1992 - Director Applied Psychology Institute
1988 - Military Attache in London, England
1981 - Aid - de - Camp to Prime Minister
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Education :
1986 - 1988 Master of Business Administration (MBA)
Oregon State University, USA
1979 - 1982 BA. (Economics) (1st Honor) Thammasat University, Thailand
Experience :
Present Lecturer, Department of Human Resource and
Organization Management
Assistant Dean: Public Relations Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy
Thammasat University
2006 - 2007 Director, Journal of Business Administration Faculty of
Commerce and Accountancy
2000 - 2001 Training Director Institute of Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development (ISMED)
1998 - 2000 Assistant Director, Continuing Education Program for
Business Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy
1994 - Assistant Rector
1990 - Director, Journal of Business Administration Faculty of
Commerce and Accountancy
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Project “RS-Coordinate our Hearts 
to Help Flood Victims”

Principle and Rationale
Proceeding from severe flooding in many provinces of Thailand, all Thais are concerned and have shown their willingness 
to assist the flood victims. RS Public Company Limited which is listed as the number 1 company in entertainment business, 
has initiated the project “RS-Coordinate our Hearts to Help Flood Victims” to raise funds and materials for flood victims. 
People have been invited to make donations for purchasing of necessary items in helping the flood victims. Revenue from 
this fund raising project has been donated to victims in the provinces without deducting any expenses.

Objectives
1. Invite singers and artists to participate in the fund raising campaign to help flood victims.
2. Appease and give morale support to flood victims.
3. Initiate in inviting general public and youth with volunteer mindsets to participate in projects for helping flood victims.

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Activity Details
1. Participation of artists from RS and other artists in selling T-shirts to  
 help flood victims together with the Thai Red Cross Society.
2. Management and artists conveyed donations to flood victims or to  
 organizations that helped flood victims. 
3. RS artists visited the flooded areas and delivered survival bags to  
 flood victims.
4. RS artists, participating as youth leaders, volunteered in packing  
 the survival bags and distributing foods to flood victims in many  
 evacuation centers.

	  

	  

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Expected Results
1. Pictures that show unity of artists and stars joining forces in selling T-shirts and receiving donations from the helping  
 and coordinating general public   . 
2. Donations in the forms of money and materials to flood victims will more or less relieve their distresses.
3. People and youths with volunteer mindsets participate in helping flood victims in many evacuation centers.

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Project Objectives
1. Implanting of perception in Thai youth and then reaffirm its awareness to all Thais on the importance of sharing to  
 disabled children, and readily to provide them with opportunities in society to give them confidence and happy living.
2. Part of the project income will be donated to the “Foundation for the Deaf under the Royal Patronage of Her Majesty  
 the Queen” for its various projects.

Target Group of the Project
Main Target Group : Teenagers, male-female, aged 12-22, countrywide, who are Kamikaze fan club.
Minor Target Group: All Thais, and agencies under the government and private sectors, including the mass media.

Social Role and Responsibilities

KAMIKAZE’S LOVER Project
“Deaf but We Can Feel”
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Project Details
1. Compose the song and music video called “Every  
 Minute” using 36 artists from the Kamikaze group  
 singing the “Every Minute” song with guest actors  
 from the hearing impaired children joining in the   
 music video.
2. Kamikaze artists and deaf children presented thorn- 
 apple flowers, which were symbol for deaf children,  
 to the prime minister and cabinet ministries during  
 their meeting.
3. News announcement on details of the Kamikaze’s  
 Lover Project.
4. Arrange the Kamikaze’s Lover concert and   
 donate revenue to the “Foundation for the Deaf
 under the Royal Patronage of Her Majesty the   
 Queen”. The hearing impaired children joined
 in using their sign language together with artists   
 on stage. Moreover, the hearing impaired children
 were invited to the concert which was facilitated with  
 sign language throughout. This was to share love   
 and happiness to all of them countrywide.
5. Revenues from the project together with VCD were  
 donated for various activities of the hearing impaired  
 children.

Expected Results
1. Thai youth and also Thai people will give priority   
 on the importance of sharing to disable children and  
 provide them with opportunities in society which will  
 give them more confidence.
2. Part of the revenue in the project that was donated  
 to the “Foundation for the Deaf under the Royal
 Patronage of Her Majesty the Queen” will generate  
 benefits to many projects under the foundation.

	  

	  

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities
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YWCA of Thailand-Goodwill Ambassador

RS Public Company Limited has continuously participated in activities for society which includes supporting its artists to 
become Goodwill Ambassadors in various organizations, and becoming core leaders in inviting public to participate in many 
activities for society.

The Goodwill Ambassador for YWCA performs as representative and image of YWCA in promoting women as well as young 
women in having volunteer mindsets, and also leads them to changes by generating strength and increases their capabilities 
to participate in every levels of decision making. This will be prepared through campaign and activity arrangements for 
women and young women on their rights in society, economics, religion, politics and administration, and health. Emphasize 
has to be made on important topics of violence on women and child, reproductive health, appropriate sexual relationship, 
aids, economic strength, and equal right on education. Additionally, this also includes promotion for organization to conduct 
its mission in accordance with corporate governance, serving its members efficiently, and effectively.

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Objectives
1. Become leader for changes by generating strength  
 and increases capabilities for women and young   
 women.
2. Promote and support women and young women in  
 having volunteer mindset.
3. Campaign and arrange activities for women and
 young women on their rights in society such as
 violence on women and girls, appropriate sexual   
 relationship, aids, economic strength, and equal right  
 on education. 

Activity Details
1. Participate in various activities that promote
 strong  women, and becoming leaders of young   
 women in activities for society.  
2. Use public relations on YWCA activities such as fund  
 raising activity, and meeting of the World YWCA, etc.

Expected Results
1. Thai women and young women will be strong and  
 having more capability in society.
2. Joining forces of women with volunteer mindsets to  
 participate in social activities will increase and will be  
 more visible.
3. Problem concerning violence on women and girls in  
 society will reduce.

	  

	  

Parn Thanaporn Wakprayoon
Ambassador

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Principle and Rationale
Referring to the flood crisis since late September 2011, current situation in some inundated areas have been alleviated, 
however, trails of damages in many areas are visibly left behind such as areas of the Buddhist shrines and monasteries in 
many temples.  The Supreme Patriarch Secretariat together with RS Public Company Limited has initiated a “Project – His 
Holiness Somdet Phra Nyanasamuara, Supreme Patriarch of Thailand”: Cleaning Temple and Mind in 2011. This 
is designed to recuperate the flood victims’ minds with some useful activities to relief them from sadness, and also restore 
Buddhist places back to their formal beauty.

	  

Project: “Cleaning Temple and Mind”

Social Role and Responsibilities



27

RS
 Annual Report 

 
2011

Objectives
1. Restore Buddhist places in the inundated areas   
 back to their formally clean and beautiful conditions.
2. Build solidarity to all people in every group in
 accordance with Buddhist teaching concept of
 “Compassion” by using the Buddhist places as   
 center for their minds.
3. Open up opportunity for new generation of youth  
 with volunteer mindset to join in the public services.

Activity Details
1. Announcements are made through public relations to
 people who have faith and volunteer mindset to   
 donate cleaning equipment, as well as to spend   
 their spare time usefully by cleaning up the Buddhist  
 places affected by flood. Donations are made at 
 the Supreme Patriarch Secretariat, Wat Bowonnivej  
 Woraviharn.
2. Visit and clean the surrounding temple area which
 includes cleaning and renovating damaged   
 equipment. Survival bags are also distributed to flood
 victims nearby.

Expected Results
1. Buddhist places in the inundated areas will be 
 restored to their originally clean and beautiful   
 appearances.
2. The creation of solidarity to all people in every group  
 by joining together in activities that used the Buddhist
 places as center for their minds.
3. More new generation of youth with volunteer mindset
 will join in to work with the public services.

	  

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Objectives
1. Build consciousness on value of animal life and instill kindness to animal in youth and general public.
2. Campaign for people to report on cruelty to animals.
3. Support and manage on giving services or aid to animals as appropriated.

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities

TSPCA’s Ambassador
(Thai Society for the Prevention of Cruelty 

to Animals’ Goodwill Ambassador)
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Activity Details
1. Continuation of the project “Animal
 Friendly Schools and Stakeholders
 Capacity Building Program”. 
 This project is the continuation on implanting
 conscious in new generation of Thai youth to be
 kind to animals, feeding them with understanding of  
 their natural behavior. Activities on campaign to teach
 children in schools are:
 - Activity with recreation on loving animals at school
 such as activity in the boy-scout camp by giving
 knowledge on animals to youth while inserting
 recreation activity to children as well.
 - Project on educating knowledge to children by
 joining with the Bangkok Metropolitan Administration
 (BMA), starting with school in the BMA first.
2. Good Friend Volunteers Project 
 General public and students who are interested
 to assist in the society’s activities are invited to join. 
 TSPCA’s certificate and commendable T-shirt will be
 awarded to people who join the project.
3. A Rehome & Adoption Program
 Activities include regulation arrangements, visiting,
 campaign on donations of necessary food and
 medicine for vagabond dogs and cats, guiding
 members on some beneficial trips (sterilization,
 vaccination) at the society’s fostering homes.
 - In order to build dedication and coordination in
 solving problems on vagabond animals.
 - Act as collaboration center between vagabond
 animals’ caretakers and people who want to adopt
 them.
 - Lightening the load and responsibility of vagabond
 animals’ caretakers.
 - Open opportunity to people who want to participate
 in fostering vagabond animals.
 - Improve vagabond animals’ living quality and health.
 - Assist government agency in reducing environmental
 pollution and promote local community’s health.
4. Project “Drive for Legislation to Promote and
 Protect Animal Welfare” in Thailand
 Act as mouthpiece for the campaign to push for the
 legislation to become effective in Thailand, and
 spread out internationally through the Asia Pacific
 region.

Expected Results
1. Youth and general public will realize the value of
 animal life, and show some kindness to animals.
2. Youth and general public will obtain knowledge and  
 understanding on animal cares.
3. More volunteers are expected to join in the activity.
4. Able to push through the law by passing the
 “Legislation to Promote and Protect Animal Welfare”
 in Thailand.

	  

	  

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Pong Lang Saon, Kra-Tae, 
Kra –Tai were raising fund for 
emergency room in the Police 
General Hospital

Parn Thanaporn joined forces to 
build the honorable home on the 
occasion of “Mother Day”.

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities

Other Social Contribution
Activities in 2011
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บทบาท และ ความรับผิดชอบต่อสังคม

	  

	  

RS artists invited people to buy 
“Mahidol Flag” to raise fund for 
impoverished patients.

	  

RS artists joined campaign on 
smoke free society during the 
“World No Tobacco Day”.

Social Role and Responsibilities
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C-Quint joined campaign on 
tree planting for the project 
“Tree Planting following 
Father’s Footsteps”

RS artists participated in 
selling jasmines on behalf of 
the National Council on Social 
Welfare of Thailand.  Part of 
income would be presented 
to HM the Queen to help 
people in distress, and as 
scholarships to impoverished 
children nationwide.

	  

	  

Social Role and Responsibilities
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Subsidiaries Nature of Business Tel Fax
Issued Shares

Type Number

1 K. Master Co., Ltd. Distributor of Tapes, CD, VCD 
and DVD 
(transferred business to the
Company in 2008 and started
to be organizer in 2009)

02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

2,000,000

2 YAAK Co., Ltd.
(Original name :
Filmsurf Co., Ltd.)

Production house - TV programs 02-938-5630-2 02-938-5669 Common 
Shares 

25,000

3 Thai Copyright
Collection Co., Ltd. 

Copyright collection 02-938-8000 02-938-8855 Common 
Shares 

50,000

4 Sky - High Network 
Co., Ltd. 

Radio production and organizer 02-938-5691-3 02-938-5694 Common 
Shares 

250,000

5 Poema Co., Ltd. Organizer 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

1,200,000

6 RS In-store Media 
Co., Ltd.
(Original name : 
P.O.V. (Point of View) 
Co., Ltd.)

Service media on modern trade 02-511-0555 02-511-0555 

Ext. 2751

Common 
Shares 

300,000

7 RS International 
Broadcasting & 
Sports Management 
Co.,Ltd.

Sports business management 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

1,500,000 

8 S-One Sport Co., 
Ltd. (Original name : 
RS  Freshair
Co., Ltd.)

Football field rental 02-746-7432 02-746-7434 Common 
Shares 

1,500,000 

9 Idea Power Co., Ltd. 
(Original name : 
News Generation 
Co., Ltd.)

Publishing business 
Indirect holding by
Poema Co., Ltd. 

02-938-5420-1 02-938-7751 Common 
Shares 

200,000

10 R Siam Co., Ltd. Country music production and 
music promotion house 

02-938-8596-7 02-938-8598 Common 
Shares 

10,000 

Companies in which RS holds more than 
10% of their shares

As of 31 December 2011
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Subsidiaries Nature of Business Tel Fax
Issued Shares

Type Number

11 Aladdin House Co., 
Ltd. *

Organizer 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

50,000 

12 Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. * Organizer 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

50,000 

13 Nagasia Co., Ltd. * Organizer 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

40,000 

14 Avant Co., Ltd. * Organizer 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

40,000 

15 R.S. Sportmaster 
Co., Ltd. * 

Production house-TV programs 
and events organizer 

02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

45,000 

16 R.S. Television Co., 
Ltd. *

Production house - films and TV 
programs 

02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

40,000 

17 RS Film and
Distribution Co., Ltd. * 

Films distributor and production 
house - films 

02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

50,000 

18 Bangkok Organizer 
Co., Ltd. * 

Concerts and events organizer 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

30,000 

19 D-Media and
Production Co., Ltd. *

Concerts and events organizer 02-511-0555 02-511-2324 Common 
Shares 

3,700,000

* Temporarily Suspended 
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Financial Highlights

Detail
Audited

Consolidated
2009

Audited
Consolidated

2010

Audited
Consolidated

2011

Cash and cash equivalents 112,709,022 364,370,910 282,173,936

Accounts receivable - others - net 518,067,907 487,009,119 628,005,913

Inventories - net 47,036,048 52,434,345 37,391,683

Property plant and equipment - net 171,972,570 135,475,848 111,763,356

Intangible assets - net 382,286,485 163,111,566 469,230,750

Total assets 1,703,628,721 1,557,693,118 1,873,129,260

Bank overdrafts and Short-term loans from 

financial institutions 
263,500,000 - -

Accounts payable - others 236,952,466 225,314,325 232,612,843

Liabilities under financial lease 14,929,116 12,386,365 13,469,542

Long-term loan from financial institutions 172,800,000 15,000,000 -

Total Liabilities 1,149,209,356 669,744,574 697,818,863

Registered capital 900,000,000 1,026,000,280 1,026,000,280

Paid-up capital 700,000,000 708,068,528 882,654,428

Retained earnings

  Appropriated - legal reserve - 7,228,639 17,959,027

  Unappropriated (344,679,104) 168,944,893 146,907,617

Total Shareholders' Equity 554,419,365 887,948,544 1,175,310,397

Total Revenues 2,212,272,134 2,917,607,711 2,765,022,359

Cost of sales and service 1,661,834,745 1,967,538,244 1,853,161,935

Selling and administrative expenses 440,863,842 550,507,297 582,328,811

Financial costs 30,761,908 13,901,404 2,707,203

Income tax 2,583,181 59,411,440 97,304,092

Net profit (loss)  75,589,004 316,651,545 209,351,614

Weighted average number of shares at

Par Baht 1
700,000,000 703,161,839 870,696,490

Basic earnings (loss) per share 0.11 0.45 0.24

Book value per share 0.78 1.24 1.33

(Baht)
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At present, RS Group has 2 main core businesses, Entertainment and Sport Content Provider and Media Service. The revenues 
of Entertainment and Sport Content Provider are generated from Music Business, Digital Business, Showbiz Business, Film 
Business and Sport Business. The revenues of Media Service are generated from TV Business, Radio Business, Publishing 
Business and In-store Media Business. 

Detail 2009
Amount
(Million 
Baht)

2009
share in

total
revenue (%)

2010
Amount
(Million 
Baht)

2010
share in

total
revenue (%)

2010
Amount
(Million 
Baht)

2010
share in

total
revenue (%)

Revenue from musical

and digital

926.1 42% 1,053.0 36% 934.5 34%

Revenue from showbiz 527.4 24% 533.3 18% 814.1 29%

Revenue from film production 133.5 6% 62.2 2% 20.2 1%

Revenue from sport 50.0 2% 583.8 20% 18.7 1%

Revenue from media 537.2 24% 663.3 23% 941.9 34%

Revenue from service income 

and sponsorship

37.8 2% 21.7 1% 11.9 2%

Other income 2,212.2 100% 2,917.6 100% 2,765.0 100%

Total Revenues 926.1 42% 1,053.0 36% 934.5 34%

Source: The Company’s Management obtained data from financial statements in 2009 and rearranged them as per the newly 
defined revenue structure’s business groups.

Business Descriptions

Revenue Structure

Business Descriptions

Music and Digital Business
 Music and Digital Business consist of 5 main parts, including song production & promotion, digital mobile distribution, physical 
sales and distribution, copyright collection and online business.
Song Production & Promotion

Product/Service Features
 RS runs the music business in a complete cycle with all-inclusive operations from tryouts, production, promotion, marketing 
and media strategic planning, artist and music content management through both digital and physical distribution.

The major working process
 1) RS Group employs a fully integrated business model managing all types of related business.  As a company associated 
with a number of artists, RS Group has produced a variety of music with continuous releases onto the market. The targeted 
market and music genre is presented to the music committee and each music label works on each album independently until 
the music album is finished. Subsequently, the music production process will be independently undertaken by
the teams in each music label. The public relations plan and promotion Products and Services Descriptions
strategy will also be created by those teams to be combined with the plans of Media Management Division
and Distribution Division. Finally, the music marketing unit will lay-out the promotion strategy, conduct the
public relation campaign and coordinate with the distributor to ensure the alignment of product’s quality
and market’s popularity. 
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 2) It is RS Group’s policy to generate products in an appropriate quantity and of good quality. As a result, each album’s 
investment yields a satisfactory outcome. 
 3) RS Group utilizes its in-house television for both Free TV and Satellite TV, radio and Internet media to facilitate public 
relations programs.
 4) Efficient distribution transfers products to end customers thoroughly in both forms of digital and physical contents. Set up 
the management and follow up system for closely monitor the distribution channels.  
 5) Efficient and systematic music copyright management creates added revenue for the business. 
 6) The policy in opening opportunities to new group of artists, song writers, and new creative channel of songs in order to 
develop and improve the quality of RS Group’s songs to be updated and covering the target groups at all time.

Music business acquires most of its revenue from the following four sources:
 1) Revenue from music products through Digital Content in the forms of Download, Ringtone, Ring-Back Tone, Wallpaper, 
Screen saver etc.
 2)  Income from the sale of music products in forms of CD, VCD and DVD including VCDs and DVDs recording the concerts 
of Thai modern or country music artists through their new single albums, and/or their hits collection versions and so on.
 3)  Income from music content management, which is involved with the management of various contents of the music industry 
by combining communication channels and marketing plans for artists such as tour concert arrangements in combination 
with radio interviews in the provinces, the introduction of presenters in tandem with music production to promote them, the 
arrangement of special activities for customers as an added bonus, and the arrangement of publicity campaigns in cooperation 
with the media agencies in RS group engaged in the production of TV and radio programs and publishing activities to boost the 
presence of RS products in the sight of customers everywhere (Media Exposure).
 4) Revenue from copyrights collection.

Affiliated Artist/Singer 
 RS Group has both String Music singers and Country Music singers. Each music style has both solo singers and groups 
whom have different styles. RS artists and singers include: 
 1)  String Music singer

 2)  Country Music singer
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Solo Group

Film-Rattapoom, Jack, Chain, View Akera,

Parn Thanaporn, Naey Senorita, P.O.I, Zee,

Kanom Jeen, Wai, MILA

Rookie BB, Black Vanilla, C QUINT, Lao Loam, I Nam, 

Prik Thai, DR.FUU, Infamous, Am Fine, Flame, Flavour, 

Klerm, Art Floor, Jeasmine, Girly Berry, K-OTIC, Four-

Mod, Faye Fang Kaew, Neko Jump, 3.2.1, Kat Pat, Kiss 

Me Five, X-I-S, Square Circle

Artist/ Male Artist/ Female Artist / Group

Nue Miter, Luang Kai, Bauwee,

Sanook Singmatr, Au Pantang, 

Touch Na Takuatoong,

Koong Suthtirath, Singha, Mekha, 

Talah Sena-nikom, Pitak, Song Klod 

Char-ma Thunwa Rasi-Thanu

Ying Thitikan, Biw Kanlayanee, 

Cat Rattakan, Kra Tae, Kra Tai, Bai 

Teuy, Look Tarn, Alice, Karaked, 

Jintara Poonraph, Prem Preeyaporn, 

Duangjun Suwannee, Film Narinthip, 

Por Parichart

Blue Berry, Paong Lang Saorn, O-A, 

Wong Salor, Prathom Banteung Silp 
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 Marketing and Competition
 Today’s changes in the music consumption behaviors of target groups from CDs and VCDs to digital products enables the 
music industry to create a wide variety of contents and a single can be produced digitally without need to always produce it as 
a physical content; however, physical products are still important for live performances, concerts and talk shows.
 Moreover, problem on music copyright’s violation is more difficult to control as there are wide ranging copyright’s violations 
through the online system or the digital system. As inspection and suppression are quite difficult, many small music business 
operators or small music label’s companies have difficulties conducting their business, and sometime have to close down their 
business. 
  Environmental Effects 
 -Nil- 

Digital Mobile Distribution
 Nature of Products or Services
 Mobile content services are divided into two main groups i.e. “Mobile Download” and “Calling Melody”.   The mobile download 
services are provided in the forms of Ring Tone, Full Song, and Full MV (music video download).   The above services not only 
provide music contents but also offer other applications such as Themes and Games.
 As for calling melody, it is not only popular among teen customers who are the target group of RS but its popularity has 
also spread among the country music customers.  The calling melody service has steadily been growing due to copyright non-
infringeability as it needs to use the system of operator network.

 Marketing and Competition
 Marketing
 The mobile content business is very challenging because consumers’ behavior has rapidly changed over time and modern 
technologies have steadily evolved, one after another, making services accessible more easily and conveniently. A marketing 
strategy that will make the mobile content business a big hit must include a viable course of action to ensure that certain content 
is suitable for each target group, user friendly and rapidly accessible. The Company has a very wide range of customers from 
kids, teenagers, students, undergraduates, working people, adults, to the elderly; therefore, it is important, as key strategy, to 
provide a suitable content that serves particular needs of each group and to furnish a distribution channel that can directly reach 
customers as many as possible in each market segment.   The Company’s mobile content services in the past were dependent 
on network providers each of which has its own channel for customers to call in and apply for diverse services.    
 In 2011, besides the Super Mao *339 package, the package deals at the monthly charge of Baht 20, with unlimited downloads 
of Truetone, Fullsong, Music Video, and Calling Melody. The Company also launched Calling Melody campaign at the rate of 
Baht 29, these packages expand the Company’s customer base. 
 Competition
 Mobile content shows a trend of rising growth every year as a result of very fast changing technology, especially mobiles in 
the Smartphone family. It is therefore necessary to provide mobile content services to mobiles in this Smartphone group.  Due 
to further delay on 3G network auction, this year competition will be emphasized on services and content for clients, especially 
in the Smart Phone group which has constant increasing growth. This causes other service such as high quality full song or high 
quality MV to become more popular due to the availability of larger monitor with better quality sound from speakers.  
 Procurement of Products or Services
 The procurement and development of product is essential for the digital content business which requires simultaneous work 
in three areas i.e. network system, client system, and content development. After the success in the development of Hi Quality 
Fullsong, the service provision of High Quality MV and Karaoke through mobile phones is currently available which are value 
creation and service development in line with existing clients in the market.
 In addition to this, the Company is focusing on the development of new services to serve customer needs by improving visual 
and audio quality as well as seeking new distribution channels. 
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil- 

Physical Sales and Distribution
 Nature of Products or Services 
 RS Music Distribution is responsible for producing and distributing entertainment software of RS (in the forms of CD, VCD and 
DVD) through various distribution channels. The details related to its business operation are demonstrated below. 
 RS Music Distribution primarily serves as the distributor of musical products for the music labels and other affiliated companies 
of RS as well as the distributor of non-affiliated products such as western music, country music and Thai
modern music in the forms of CD, VCD and DVD. It also encompasses the additional distribution of other kinds
of entertainment products that are engaged with music such as edutainment software and merchandising
of artists i.e. Stix-it, shirts, hats and key holders via the existing distribution channels like traditional trade
(wholesale and retail stores), modern trade (hypermarket, convenience store, music and movie shop) and
other new distribution channels using the following management guidelines.
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 Management Direction 
 1. Distribution System Structuring 
 The management is purported to ensure the distribution to the proper and pinpoint target groups. Since the target groups of 
customers vary with the assorted products, the distribution system conveys a significant factor to support and encourage these 
assorted products to reach the identified target groups. The augmentation of the number of governed store branches expected 
to expand nationwide will also boost more recognition and widespread dissemination of RS products. 
 2. Selection of product manufacturing plant with high quality control and production standard
 RS Music Distribution has formulated the policy to control the standard and quality of the products. The procedure begins 
with the assurance of the perfection of the master product, which will be further produced into entertainment software and 
subsequently transfer to selected manufacturing plant that possesses modern machinery and equipment authenticated by ISO. 
The production will also enter the procedure of quality control to ensure the image and sound perfection and cover printing 
quality. The quality of the production of raw materials and relevant components such as CD and CD cases will be controlled as 
well for the customers to enjoy the maximized quality products. 
 3. Formulation of Efficient Marketing Strategy 
 In the process of presenting the musical products to various kinds of audience, RS Music Distribution, the musical products 
distributor of RS, consistently communicates with the customers in the market and, therefore, is able to conduct the monthly 
survey of customer demands on regular basis. The surveys are subsequently assessed and when the assessment results are 
derived and concluded, RS Music Distribution will present the response of the customers to the original music labels of RS as 
part of its coordination. This action brings about the increasing clean-cut feedback of the customers and enables each music 
label to improve their products to best satisfy the demands of the market and customers. Besides ensuring that each music 
label of RS is able to match the products with the market demand, RS Music Distribution has also implemented the measure to 
utilize its affiliated resources such as television and publishing to promote the product distribution etc. 
 4. Control of Production and Distribution Costs 
 As a division to supervise and manage the overall production and distribution of RS, RS Music Distribution is obligated to 
create the production plans that correspond with music labels. It coordinates and creates the distribution plans in collaboration 
with music labels so that the volume of production befits the sale estimation. RS music business adjusted its album launching 
strategy by not emphasizing on the number of albums launched, but focused on its productions to attract a clearer cut target 
groups. On September 2006, all production machineries had been sold to make RS Music Distribution’s business in accordance 
with RS music business and facilitated in a more flexible production cost management as well.
 Another important duty of RS Music Distribution is to manage RS inventories to stay at an appropriate level. The rather high 
inventory turnover of musical products necessitates that RS Music Distribution formulate the management and operating policy 
that reflects the ever-changing market conditions. Although the distribution plans have been agreed with the music business in 
the initial stage, the operating plan has to be consistently modernized to prevent product obsoleteness, a major factor that may 
affect RS inventory management. 
 Marketing and Competion 
 Marketing 
 Marketing Strategy 
 1. Efficient Distribution Strategy
 In order to enhance the distribution efficiency for RS products, RS Music Distribution formulates the plan in advance to 
ascertain the distribution of each product in the adequate volume and to the appropriate target groups via the distribution 
channels like traditional trade and modern trade at the proportion of 40% and 60% respectively. The specified structure is
as follows:
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 2. Marketing Activities Planning 
 Marketing Division has planned the below the line activities in assorted fashion throughout the year for both Thai modern and 
country music to take turns and rotate to the points of sale populated by target customers by utilizing the media at the points of 
sale. They have been able to attract the attention of target customers and obtained positive response from customers, as well 
as satisfy the agents of the company. 
 3. Proper and Accurate Data Analysis System 
 The adoption of the computer system for the data management and distribution business enables the company to inspect 
the sale volume and create the distribution plan of stores in a real time manner. It also facilitates Sale Division and Marketing 
Division in accurately adjusting the sale and marketing strategies to keep pace with the circumstances at the moment based on 
the information obtained from the database analysis of the system. 
 4. Efficient Logistic System 
 In its logistic management and administration, RS depends on the warehouse and logistic services rendered by Thailand’s 
leading reliable transportation companies in Bangkok and other provinces, which are able to meet the demand for products in a 
timely manner. 
 Competition
 Since there are currently various music corporations, large and small, that supply musical products of several styles to the 
market, the competition in terms of quantity and music styles presented to consumers has increasingly intensified and, at 
the same time, consumers are exposed to more options to better satisfy their demands. In addition, the current advanced 
technology facilitates the making of pirate products, such as MP3, music download or pirate CDs, which are wide spread 
among consumers. This situation will spur the rapid changes in the taste of consumers. Accordingly, when it comes to copyright 
products distribution as of present, the concerns about employing the right channel and timing to better meet the consumer 
demands and the ability to flexibly adjust the marketing strategy related to product presentation are critical elements of the 
business.
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil- 
 Copyright Collection Business 
 Thai Copyright Collection Company Limited (TCC) is a subsidiary performing the function of collecting copyright fees for RS 
Group on music works or other copyrighted works used by other parties for a commercial purpose.
 Nature of Products or Services 
 TCC divides the customers in the area of the copyright of the songs and artist images into 2 categories. 
 1) Copyright for general public
 This is for life-show business, or in the form of various music broadcasting which includes broadcasts through recording 
materials and karaoke such as juke box, karaoke shop, restaurant, hotel, department store, airline, radio, etc.  
 2) Copyright on duplication and modification category such as
  - Music programming business operators who copy music for karaoke operators
  - Advertising agency uses music as the main story line or as background music in the advertising movie.
  - Producer who commercially uses the re-production or modified music such as re-singing of songs from old albums,   
    producing of adapted music, or re-recording collection of songs for any purpose.  
  - Service providers running internet cafes, online game shops whereby music is played as an added-on entertainment.
  - Service providers operating music downloads via mobile phones (ringtones) from their business premises without   
    passing the operator system.
 Marketing and Competition 
 Marketing 
 Marketing Strategy 
 1) Strategy on Increase collection efficiency
 The Company emphasized the importance of boosting the collection efficiency through a territory management system in 
tandem with the application of mapping technology to facilitate planning for a better track of customer members. The number 
of staff in the monitoring team of each territory is increased to ensure thorough and precise examination, which will lead to the 
successful collection of copyright fees from users in term of most correct way and greatest amount.
 2) Strategy on sales promotion and after sales services activities. 
 To cope with the economic slowdown, sales promotion activities are launched to support the business’ operators for market 
share’s protection, and building added long-term value to business. 
 The Company has conducted a campaign to raise business operators’ awareness of the advantages of a legal use of 
copyrighted works and about copyright protection.  Sale promotion and after-sale activities are organized together with the 
above campaign to build customer confidence and brand loyalty, as well as to expand the customer base of
the Company. Discounts for copyright-buying members in different categories are set.   Advisory services on
copyright laws are also provided, and special rebate programs are offered including other activities that can
respond to customer/member needs.
 3) Strategy on suppression of copyright’s violators in karaoke distribution
 TCC plans to suppress the copyrights violators in crucial areas especially in the karaoke business
operators’ group, and operators who use music in their business, there are a large number of influential
people, and those who intend to violate the copyright issue. It is, then, necessary to have strategy on
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suppression of copyright’s violators as this will result in correct payments on copyright’s fee. In 2008, the Company has planned 
to suppress these violators in many important areas which will result in proper payment of copyright’s fee.
 4) Strategy on expansion in new channel of copyright’s collection
 Expansion in new channel of copyright’s collection has a high potential, and will eventually increase the Company’s coverage 
in its collection. Continually, the Company had already expanded in some of the marketing channels such as electrical appliances 
shop, computer shop, airline, hotel, radio station, department store, mini mart, convenience store, cable TV, advertising agency 
group and TV program producer.
 In 2011, the Company has a goal aiming at copyright collection in new target groups such as internet cafes and online game 
shops, where the music of customer choice is played, which are rapidly rising in numbers, other business premises operating 
music downloads via mobile phones in form of ringtones serving more than 62 million mobile users, those of more than 50,000 
in the operation of music distribution & download, and a possible advent of new karaoke device which many manufactures 
pay attention to the marketing of karaoke players for both home and commercial use; all of which the permission for the use of 
copyrighted work is, of course, necessary.   Furthermore, the rapid market growth of electrical appliances with which the use of 
copyrighted work is needed may help create the market value for the Company in the future.
 Competition 
 A) Copyright’s collection – market value and growing trend
 In 2011, the copyright’s collection market in Thailand had about Baht 500 million plus, which was in constant level from the 
amount in 2010, resulting from political instability and lesser growth in the overall economy and caused karaoke business to slow 
down from reduced number of customers. The karaoke business could be separated into groups as follows:-
 • Reduction in the karaoke cabinet’s market with less customers which resulted in operators’ revenue, also there were 
expansion in fake stickers which deceive operators in paying for protection fee in many areas.
 • Operators of booth karaoke started to close down as large operators expanded into the areas
 • Overall picture of the karaoke shop was stable as old operators closed down their businesses while new operator opened 
the new business and made expansion.
 B) Competitive trends
 In the copyright’s collection business, competitive situation can be separated into 2 parts as follows:-
 1) Market leaders group 
 They will have less competition as both operators have to exercise their already existing copyrights. Factors that will determine 
the result of increased copyright’s collection will depend on collection efficiency, and suppression of violators.
 2) Small organizations in the market
 Competition will increase but not intense due to limited purchasing power of operators who have to make selection on 
their purchases. Small organizations, then, use the low price strategy, and free give-away to operators. Sometimes, some 
organizations made copyright violation arrest on other organizations’ copyright, thus, causing problems within the industry.
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil- 
 Online Business
 Nature of Products or Services 
 Online business is deemed a foundation of diverse business operations in the modern world. In the past 10 years, online 
business is dependent on computer programs used only for website, email and chat. Over the recent two years, online business 
has advanced into many facilities namely mobile phone, game player, netbook etc. In particular, mobile phone has made a big 
step forward, from an ordinary communication tool to an online center in everyday life because mobile phone users can be 
online everywhere, by having 3G as an important variable that allows mobile phone users to be online any time any place. Online 
business is growing worldwide because corporate content owners can approach target groups and operate their businesses 
in a complete cycle i.e. acting as a media agency and storage having target group information, market sources and distribution 
channels of their own without reliance on middlemen, plus their ability to tempt customers to visit and take a look at a large 
number of products, without worry about the limit of store space, for example, it is unnecessary to put up for sale only hit songs 
because target groups can gain access to millions of songs by themselves (e.g. iTunes Store).
 Two products are available in RS’s online business using the same database i.e. no matter where subscription is applied for, 
the cross analysis of information can be conducted back and forth among all the two products which helps bring an in-depth 
understanding of consumer behaviors. The said two products consist of:
 1) pleng.com is a digital music store selling digital songs on an integrated basis by featuring a large repertory of music 
streaming that can serve the needs of every target group.
  - Target Group: Age range 12 – 35 (junior high school students – working people in general)
  - Focus on services to facilitate the search of music/songs or to increase the opportunity of the target group to gain easy 
access to such information.
  - Focus on revenue generation from music/song downloads and streaming.
  - Focus on revenue generation from the sale of advertisements and sponsors in support of diverse activities.
 2) skoolbuz.com is an educational website receiving support from the government agencies.  It reflects
CSR for educational causes by building on the system of social network for the link-together of
schools nationwide so that teachers and students across the country can share knowledge with
one another in an easy and convenient manner and all shared information will become a large
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digital library in which the target group can easily search for free information, thereby constituting an enhancement of Thailand 
education to keep pace with technology.
  - Target Group: Age range 15-22 (junior high school – university students
  - Focus on building a good corporate image in society as a large-scale enterprise.
  - Focus on the expansion of customer base to cover every target group.
 Marketing and Competition
 Marketing
 Online business in Thailand still lags far behind that in other countries because most entrepreneurs view this business as 
traditional media or customary advertising which focuses on the sale of advertisements at a spot where there are a lot of 
passers-by, regardless of online utilization, and these entrepreneurs are somewhat against online advertisements for seeing that 
it encroaches on privacy, thus resulting in a gap which allows foreign companies to enter and play an important role in Thailand 
for online business such as Hi5, MSN, Youtube, Facebook, iTunes, etc.  Developing countries in Asia, such as China, Japan, 
Korea, Taiwan and Singapore, have their own online communities in which the number of users is higher than those using 
online services of foreign companies. Especially in the recent 2-3 years, online business has adopted the technology called 
social network making a big leap in the industry, whether it is Myspace, Hi5, Youtube, Facebook or Twitter, because consumers 
become creators and receivers, helping advertise our products by word of mouth (social media) which is more reliable than a 
way an enterprise advertises its products.   
 Online business also covers mobile phones in a smartphone family in which most consumers are online such as iPhone, 
BlackBerry, Nokia Smartphone etc.   Smartphone business focuses on building its own marketplace and attaches greater 
importance to social network communication allowing consumers to get online connection around the clock.  This imply a 
golden opportunity of online business.
 Marketing Strategy
 1) Pleng.com
 As the world music industry has experienced an extremely rapid change by which almost all physical products (CD) have 
been converted into digital ones (MP3); especially in America and England, many companies selling physical products have 
to transform themselves into a full-scale digital store.  In Thailand, there is still no management system to materially support 
digital music stores.  Despite some efforts, insufficient knowledge of management system and little understanding of consumer 
behaviors contribute to failure.  A person who achieves success in running a digital music store must have a large number 
of contents, sell products at a not-so-expensive price, offer convenient modes of payment; and importantly, must provide 
consumers with an easy access to contents.
 With the social network system that provides easy access to consumer information, Pleng.com is developing all modules 
by the re-establishment of selling systems, window displays and modes of payment in line with international standards of the 
successful music industry in other countries.   The said efforts plus the real behaviors of consumers in Thailand makes it highly 
probable for Pleng.com to become a one-stop digital music store providing the most comprehensive range of services in 
Thailand and can be used in every device such as in BlackBerry etc.
 The digital music market also consists of new growing target groups like country music listeners and old song lovers which 
are deemed big markets with high purchasing power.  
 2) Skoolbuz.com 
 Whereas today’s competition in online business is focused on specific database, any enterprise having features of originality 
and creativity will be able to seek and build more groups of new users; especially through a search engine, because current online 
users search the internet by themselves for information and want more specific information. Skoolbuzz fulfill this requirement with 
the target group consisting of students and teachers nationwide; hence, educational information is specifically needed.   When 
there is an increase in users, a large number of databases will be acquired which will allow the cross analysis of products and 
will, in turn, lead to online business operations including B2B online interaction among large-scale enterprises that want to effect 
their CSR and reach their real target groups.   As a result, the inauguration of Skoolbuz.com can refer to the former database of 
2 million existing users.
 Competition
 1)  Pleng.com
 Formerly, online music services were rather prevalent but did not induce direct business operations because music contents 
were used to draw the attention of people to visit websites only.  In a new move, Pleng.com - a high traffic website with the 
audience - has been transformed into a digital music store, which is regarded the inauguration of the first full-scale digital music 
business operation in Thailand.  Although some online music shops are available in Thailand but there are only a few and they do 
not gain popularity among viewers.  The knowledge of management system, the adoption of advanced technology, an insight 
into marketing, and the number of contents on hand are key factors for operating the business of this kind towards commercial 
success across the world because 90 percent of the businesses in the music industry in today’s world has
already stepped into digital music, and of course, the music industry in Thailand will follow this hot trend.
 2) Skoolbuz.com
 There are some online educational communities but they are not successful as they should be, that is
because their contents and patterns are rather outdated and technical intensive, thereby failing to draw
the attention of students, which in the matter of fact, online educational communities in foreign countries,
such as wikipedia.com, achieve huge success.  The online education market in Thailand is unsuccessful
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although there is a wide range of target groups and it is vital for everyday life because today’s education requires an extensive 
search on the internet for information and knowledge exchange.  Google.com is the only search engine available for Thai 
students, thus making the scope of knowledge and the clarity of information do not exactly meet user requirements, which can 
be inferred that there is still a plenty of room in the market for online educational websites.
 Procurement of Products or Services
 1) Pleng.com
 Online music shops will transform all contents, which are owned by RS and other record labels entering into sale contracts in 
a digital system, into a digital form to put them up for sale.  The metadata of each song available in an MP3 format and/or in a 
video MP4 format will be stored, such as the name of the record label, the name of the artist, song title, lyrics, the name of the 
composer, music speed, music style, the year it is put up for sale, and etc) in order to facilitate a perfect search to consumers 
(genius search), for instance, if a customer likes music with a slow rhythm and style like Four-Mod’s songs, the system will 
immediately perform an automatic search for songs in the similar rhythm and sung by artists in the similar style.  However, in 
Thailand there is no storage of information in this manner unlike in foreign countries where the storage of metadata has been 
made for years which is a key strategy of digital sale.
 2) Skoolbuz.com
 Educational information of Skoolbuz.com will be built as a repertory of information collected nationwide by the government 
agencies, whether in forms of text, illustration and video, representing the starting point to search the website for preliminary 
information.  Workshop sessions will be conducted in schools participating in the program across the country on how to utilize 
Skoolbuz.com for the benefit of both teachers and students, thus narrowing down a technological gap between them and 
leading to user-generated contents created by users across the country which help circulate educational information everywhere 
in form of social network.
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil- 
 Show Biz Business
 Show-biz income derives from 2 parts i.e. 1) the organization of concerts and events for public and private sectors and 2) 
artist management.
 The organization of concerts and events for public and private sectors 
 Nature of Products or Services
 Shows and events are another business that is rapidly growing in Thailand because products, services and advertising 
agencies has turned to allocate more budget for below-the-line activities over the past years as a result of a rising cost of airtime 
for TV commercials compounded by a larger number of competitors selling products in the same category.
 RS is specialized in organizing concerts and events to fulfill marketing plans of agencies, for the promotion of products and 
services, that have turned to invest in non-media or below-the-line activities in forms of shows and events, and a series of plans 
for the organization of entertainment activities that can obtain long-term positive effects on business will be presented.
 Marketing and Competition
 Marketing
 a) Marketing Strategy
  1) Present themed shows/events of top quality
  2) Apply international standards and technologies to the organization of local events.
  3) Present an in-depth integration between product and event for market trendsetting. 
 b) Customers and Target Groups
  1) Financial sponsors
  2) Media sponsors and others
  3) Audience and consumers in general
 Competition
 The business of organizing concerts and events in Thailand can be divided into three main groups as follows:
 1. Presentation and event organizers providing services on the organization of general events to promote products and 
services for customers.
 2. Local event promoters providing services on the organization and marketing of stage performances, shows and concerts 
with their own investments and/or in cooperation with other local companies.
 3. International event promoters providing services on the organization of shows and concerts as well as on the formulation 
of marketing plans thereof, with their own investments and/or in cooperation with other companies, by selecting live performance 
products for marketing in the country.
 The competition for the organization of concerts and events in Thailand is rather high because there is a large number of 
enterprises at all scales, whether small, medium or large.   However, on the plus side, this business has a high
prospect because most marketing plans for product promotion set aside more budgets every year for
below-the-line activities.
 Being a large-scale entertainment company gives RS an advantage over others in the organization of
concerts and events, that is because we have lots of artists under our care and we run integrated
media business of all kinds such as TV, radio, printed matter, and other media in the modern trade
channel.  These qualities can give assurance that concerts and events organized by the Company
can fulfill customer needs.
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 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil- 
 Artist Management
 Natures of Products or Services 
 RS’s long-time engagement in the business of integrated entertainment results in loads of artists and actors/actresses under 
the care of the Company. These personnel are valuable assets who create value for the Company and be a representative of the 
Company in joining activities with other organizations, and taking jobs to appear in public events after their albums are released 
and promoted.
 Artist management is an arrangement of all affairs to add value to artists, create jobs to boost income for artists in addition to 
the launch of music work or performances as usual.   However, such work must agree with and promote the image of a good 
artist in a concrete manner.  The said work can be divided into 2 categories as follows:
 1) Show biz can be sub-divided into:
  a) The organization of concerts inside and outside the country
  b) Appearance in public events for singing, fashion show performance, interview, sports playing, and so on.
  c) Stage show performance in a fenced area, with the sale of admission tickets.
  d) Made-to-order production in accordance with individual customer requirements.
 2) Licensed events can be sub-divided into:
  a) Licensed presenters
  b) Licensed merchandizes
  c) Licensed promotions
 Marketing and Competition
 Marketing
 The Company employs both mass and non-mass customization strategies as a major policy (depending on each category 
of product or service) by emphasizing the importance of direct customers as the main focus but never forgets to take care of 
customers in the group of advertising agencies.  With regard to the technique of work presentation, the Company aims to make 
customers aware that any work presented by the Company is a marketing tool to help individual customers achieve success 
in fulfilling their pre-determined marketing objectives by building on the principle of entertainment marketing to approach 
consumers.
 The Company reformat the management of performing artists by allowing artists to take jobs by themselves at the standard 
remuneration rate fixed by the Company and those artists have to deduct and share a part of revenues, at a specified rate, to 
the Company.   This new format helps increase jobs and boosts income for artists and contributes to greater flexibility of artist 
management.
 Competition
 The competition in the past year grew more intense because many new record labels, such as Smallroom, Sony, True Fantasia 
and etc, play a greater role in the market, providing customers with diverse alternatives.
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil- 
 Film Business
 Nature of Products or Services 
 There are five outstanding characteristics of the film business: 
 1. The cost of production and promotion of each film differs according to the size and type of production. On average, the 
production cost on each film ranges from 15 to 20 million baht and the promotion cost ranges from 15-20 million baht. 
 2. Production costs account for 60-70% of total cost. Production will normally be completed within three or two months. 
 3. Revenue chain starts from presales -selling the rights to provincial distributors VCD, DVD and cable or free TV and then 
international  right after the movie being released in the cinema. 
 4. The proportion of profit sharing from ticket prices in Bangkok and Greater Bangkok, which stands at 50 per cent. 
 5. Popular feature films producing high income when released in VCD and DVD form. 
 Marketing and Competition
 Marketing 
 Marketing Strategy 
 The Company use the Quality Work Strategy in response to Market Needs by paying careful attention to every aspect of the 
process. First, the production team will study and evaluate the market condition and the taste of the audience. After choosing 
suitable themes, they painstakingly begin the screenwriting, casting, shooting, editing and sound mixing to produce work of the 
highest quality work that will live up to the expectations of the audience. 
 Customers and Target Groups 
Core customers are cinemas, provincial film distributors, free TV, cable TV, Home Entertainment Operator
and Copyright buyer in overseas market. 
 Distribution Channels 
 1) Currently, there are five distribution channels 
  1. provincial film distributors 
  2. cable TV and free TV operator 
  3. cinemas 
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 4. VDO, VCD, DVD operator 
 5. The overseas market 
 Competition 
 Film Companies 
 There are 5 large film companies who release movies continuously: RS Group, Saha Mongkol Film, Five Stars, Phranakorn 
Film and GTH. 
 Competitive Trend
 The Company has evaluated that the Thai movie business will encounter more competition but with less movie business 
operators. At present, movie audiences are more selective in choosing the movie to watch, and if there are 2 or 3 Thai movies 
showing on screens at the same time, movie audiences will watch only one. Moreover, if there are a few movies waiting to be on 
screens next week, the present movie will encounter rapidly reduced screening frequencies if it does not generate enough revenue.
 Hence, the Company has improved its new movie business module to be in line with present market situation. One movie 
production will not exceed budget of Baht 20-30 million, and revenues must be generated from sponsors or tie-in products within 
the movie’s scripts as to decrease the risk. Furthermore, it is believed that the producers will attempt to expand their distribution 
channels to foreign markets, due to the success of several Thai movies there and the domestic difficulties as mentioned above. 
Moreover, the company believes that all film companies will be expanding distribution channels to the overseas market more 
seriously due to a precedent successful. 
 Procurement of Products or Services
 The Company’s film production has more clarity both in the selection of projects, directors, crew members and film genres in 
response to the needs of film consumers in today’s market. 
 The Company has an independent policy for casting. The Company may select non-RS Group actors based on the suitability 
of the actor’s character and the script of each film. 
 In addition to working with well-known film directors, RS Group introduces new directors selected from staff members who 
are creative and can present alternative films. This makes RS Group films more interesting and capable of attracting audiences. 
Continuity of film production attracts new personnel including screenwriters, directors, actors and production staff to join the 
Company. 
 The average production period of each film is eight to ten months. The first three or four months are for preparation: selecting, 
writing and developing the screenplay. When the screenplay is agreed, casting begins, together with equipment planning and 
shooting preparation. Filming should be completed in three or four months. 
 After filming, the editing and post-production processes will take around two months. Later, the company will launch public 
relations activities and advertising to promote the film two months before it releases. 
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil-

 Media Business
 RS media business consists of 3 major media i.e. TV, Radio and In-Store Media or Modern Trade

 TV Media Business
 TV Media business is divided into two parts i.e. Free TV and Satellite TV.

 Free TV Business
 Natures of Products or Services 
 RS has produced TV programs and drama series on air at various TV channels such as The Royal Thai Army Radio and 
Television (Channel 5) and Modern Nine TV.   In 2011, the Company produced 6 programs.
 The details (as at 31st December 2011) are shown in the table below:

Program Type Broadcasting time & date Channel

Asian Countdown Asian Report

& Asian Live Concert

Sun. 10.45 p.m.  11.35 a.m. 5

Teen Plus Show Entertainment Variety for new 

generation

Fri. 10.25 p.m.  11.05 p.m. 5
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BOY TOYS Entertainment Variety for new 

generation

Sat. 12.25 p.m.  12.50 p.m. 5

Kamikaze Club Entertainment Variety for new 

generation

Sat. 3.45 p.m.  4.35 p.m. 5

More Gang Entertainment Variety for new 

generation

Sun. 10.40 a.m.  11.05 a.m. 9

Menu Wan Yud Entertainment Variety Weekend 12.00 p.m.  1.00 p.m. 7

In addition to the production of TV programs for selling advertising airtime in TV programs, the Company gains customer trust to 
produce videos in form of TV programs, scoops, spots including the organization of various marketing activities also.
 TV Program
 1. TEEN PLUS SHOW
 TEEN PLUS SHOW is an entertainment variety program for new generation from which viewers will experience fun, lively and 
beyond-expectation shows performed by artists, performers and heart-throbs inside and outside the country who will parade 
in for showdown against one another in unlimited humorous games, by focusing on laughter, smiles and non-stop amusement 
throughout the show in a wide variety of entertainment with the combination of Korean-styled art direction.
 2. KAMIKAZE CLUB – A community of new generation
 It is a TV program in response to teen lifestyles by presenting magazine-like contents containing columns and features 
in which teenagers are interested such as fashion trends, technology update, and groundbreaking, modern and appealing 
activities narrated by an artist of KAMIKAZE troupe who will take turn to host the program. 
 3. ASIAN COUNTDOWN 
 ASIAN COUNTDOWN is an entertainment variety program with the coverage of every move in the ASIAN entertainment 
circle whether in Thailand, Korea, Japan and Taiwan, etc.  In other words, the show reports the movement of ASIAN artists and 
performers, broadcasts the concerts performed by leading artists in Thailand, and updates various chart rankings for top artists 
throughout Asia.
 4. BOY TOYS
 Variety programs for male teenagers who admire all aspect of modern features whether in the forms of fashion, technology or 
other creative activities. This is another alternative channel for male teenagers to update their information.
 5. Mor. Gang
 Mor. Gang is a variety program for new generation in which viewers will hear interesting stories about educational establishments 
at the high school level and share remarkable experiences with today’s high school students.  The program arranges a stage for 
students to show their talents and battle against leading artists, followed by special shows from artists to create a full-scale fun 
and entertainment 
 Marketing and Competition
 Marketing
 a)  Marketing Strategies
  1) Branding and program positioning
  The Company clearly defines the business’s market position in each program category. The communication of the 
Company’s image and program design are aimed at responding to the needs of new generations, by considering the behavior of 
viewers in each group and current popular trends, which corresponds with the strategy of RS Group that is strong, competent 
and highly competitive in the market.
  2) The creation of TV programs in line with consumer trends and tastes
  The Company continuously analyzes the behaviors, needs and tastes of target viewers and takes account of domestic 
and international trends like Asian Trend, Korean Trend, New Media and New Technology as a factor to develop and create a 
style of program that can serve the needs of target viewers and get a positive feedback from target viewers.
  3) Proactive strategies to reach target viewers who are major customers of advertising agencies
  The Company employs proactive strategies to approach viewers who are the major target group i.e. high school and 
university students, both males and females, whom advertising agencies want to present products and information, by designing 
TV programs in a way that shooting tape is recorded in an educational establishment of target group, by using famous artists in 
our care to host the program and selecting activities in the interest of the target group to effectively draw viewer
attention and obtain positive feedback.
  4) Capitalizing on RS Group’s strength as a key element in producing quality TV programs     
In addition to the clearly defined target groups and quality-focused program designs & productions,
the Company has capitalized on RS Group’s competitive strength in the teen market, which is very
large with high purchasing power, by using artists/singers/actors/actresses/teen emcees in RS Group,
RS music label and other RS contents as a key element in TV productions plus the team’s expertise
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and vast experience in producing TV programs and videos.  By this synergy, the Company’s works always obtain top quality 
and excellent feedback. 

 5) The design of selling method to create maximum value for customers
 It involves a design for the sale of advertising media to serve consumer needs and create maximum value for customers in a 
package deal i.e. the sale of airtime for a loose spot together with product tie-in to create brand awareness which is a formula 
that gains high popularity.   Our teams place emphasis on the creation of product tie-in that is in perfect harmony with the 
program and can effectively communicate product properties, as well as on the package design of a loose spot to be on air in 
many shared programs to make customers’ budget spending in advertisements be most cost effective.
 6) Building an overall quality for getting recognized by customers
 Focus on the overall quality of every work unit in the organization to win trust and acceptance of customers, not only 
production quality but also pre and post production services, by responding to the needs of customers in a rapid and right 
manner, listening to and solving customers’ problems, etc.
 7) Managing operation costs and systems      
 Set up an organizational structure that facilitates robust management of operation costs and systems, whether produced by 
the Company’s team or outside parties (outsourcing).
 Client Description and Distribution Channels 
 1) Advertising Clients 
  - Agencies 
  - Direct Customers 
 RS Group makes advertising airtime sales, visual media sales and marketing activities through agencies and direct customers 
in the proportion of 80% and 20% of total television media sales. 
 2) Target Audiences 
Target audiences vary among each program due to a different type of program and the on-air time. 
 Competition 
 a. Business Operators
 The business operators in TV productions tend to develop their operations into one-stop production services and continuously 
expand their business into new market segments to boost their competence and competitive advantages. Large-scale 
enterprises often gain a competitive edge because they have talented personnel in their care such as famous stars, performers, 
artists and emcees including production crew members that are specialized in entertainment business by creating new concepts 
and adopting new technologies for a TV program in order to fully respond to consumer tastes, and they have production facilities 
and studios of their own while small-scale enterprises tend to boost their capacity of producing a program of quality in response 
to customers of specific groups (niche markets)
 b.   Competition Tendency
 At present, the number of enterprises in customary TV media does not increase very much. These enterprises tend to place 
greater emphasis on the development of concepts and technologies to meet the tastes and requirements of target groups.   
However, the steady and rapid growth of enterprises in new media such as satellite TV, cable TV, digital TV, online TV or internet 
have led to more intense competition compounded by the remaining uncertainty of both domestic and world economy and 
political instability which prompt customers to tighten their belts and spend their advertising budgets in a careful manner with the 
aid of customary TV media to rapidly approach target groups by means of mass marketing, while at the same time having the 
tendency to allocate some parts of their advertising budget into new TV media for niche markets. However, the decision on the 
budget allocation for advertising in a TV program is chiefly based on its popularity among viewers or program ratings.
 Procurement of Products or Services 
 The Company has a recruitment policy for selecting best employees, both onstage and backstage, who are qualified and 
specialized in their fields. As for employees onstage, the Company focuses on artists/actors/actresses within RS Group and 
other famous independent artists/performers for add-on entertainment to target viewers, including the cast of both existing and 
new performers of great entertainment talent.  As for the creation of work concepts and production control, they are operated 
by in-house production teams, while some parts of production are operated in house and the others are outsourced.
 As regards the Company’s broadcasting tools and equipment i.e. studios, cameras, shooting facilities, image & voice editing 
rooms, they are leased from RS Studio Company Limited, a subsidiary of RS Group, for producing TV programs owned by the 
Company and those owned by others for which the Company works as their supplier, to create quality and cost-effective TV 
productions. 
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil-
 Satellite TV Business
 Nature of Products or Services
 RS Public Company Limited launched its satellite TV business available for services at 4 channels i.e.
Sabaidee TV, YOU Channel, Channel 8 and YAAK TV, commencing the broadcasting trial on 1st August 2009,
operated by the C Band system at the frequency wave of 3,960 MHz (megahertz) and KU Band at the
frequency wave of 12,355 MHz (megahertz), aimed to serve its regular fans of more than 10 million
households, and the number of viewers is likely to increase every year. 
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 YOU Channel
The theme of YOU Channel is “Keep You Company 24 Hours” consisting of infotainment for teenagers, who are the key target 
group of the programs under this channel. The details of each program are outlined hereunder:
 1. YOU RELEASE 
The program plays heart-striking songs for teenagers to fulfill their satisfaction at their request, by voting in, through SMS, for 
their favorite songs.  The program also breaks the news about artists and updates the chart of weekly hits that receive the most 
popular votes (similar to BOX OFFICE, HOT BILLBOARD, and so on)
 2. HI! FRIEND
 A variety program that responds to every need of teenagers because any thing they want to talk or any song they want to hear 
will be heard.   They can tell whatever they need through the program’s mascot, best dude, HI! Friend and hot female emcees 
who will take turn to visit popular teen hangouts at Siam Square to update the trends of fashion, music, and hear stories they 
want to tell/share.   They will be given one full hour for song requests as if they were a VJ.   Any song they want to hear will be 
played and any message they want to communicate to special ones will be broadcast.  If you meet our Mascot, you will be surely 
on the screen of YOU CHANNEL. As for those who do not meet our Mascot Hi! Friend, you may text us your needs through SMS.
 3. Go Go Guide
 This program focuses on a variety of tourist attractions under the theme of “Style on Street” which there is no need to pack 
your bags or book your tickets. Just take on your favorite shoes and set out for pleasure in several shopping or eating places 
around Bangkok you may have heard of them but never get a real touch. The program emphasizes a zone where people can 
easily get to, with some tourist attractions nearby where can be reached on foot or within a few bus stops if riding a bus, for 
example – Go-Go Guide in Bangkok, begin your day with the boost of your brain in a fun environment at Museum Siam - an 
innovative museum, enjoy your lunch at Aroy (deliciousness) restaurant, owned by Uncle Louise, located along the river bank in 
Tachang area, have an afternoon pleasure in shopping second-hand cute items at Wang Lang (Rear Palace) Market and learn 
about a trick on how to select a good item, have a late afternoon chill out with a cup of coffee and books at “Dueng Tang” (travel) 
bookstore on Arthit road, and at the end of the day, cross the river to learn and play juggling in the sunset environment at Suan 
Santi Chai Prakarn Park. The program will show you around fascinating places of one zone per week, by our Go Go tour guide 
at your service, introducing new hangouts which probably meet your lifestyle.
 4. POP YOU
 Indulge your passion for a wide variety of pop music, provided by the program, circulating one after another hits to entertain 
viewers via TV screens.
 5. ROCK YOU
 The program represents a platform for viewers to jerk their latent instinct of a rocker to become known to the world.
 6. Gossip Teen News: VJ Live
 The program clings on to new situations and every issue of artists/performers, including the update of every move/trend in 
which teens are interested. 
 7. Time Machine
 The program will take you to your good old days through old hits you’ve missed, by giving you two full hours everyday in 
search of old hits with us to wax nostalgic.
 8. You Live : VJ Live
 The live program in form of a full-scale variety & interactive entertainment at the cool airport of teenagers who will drop by to 
share their off-the-wall ideas and update their fun activities with our crazy emcees of high-flying times who are prepared to seek 
and transport a full load of interesting new stories and hot hit issues from every corner of the world for gliding and landing at the 
emergency runway for teens to learn, witness, play and enjoy without dull moment throughout the program. Fun is added to 
the program by hotshot artists of each style taking turn to visit the show as a guest to update their pieces of work and answer 
every question people are in doubt or a surprise question from their fellow artists in a way that you cannot guess an answer 
what it would be like, intermitted by the playing of new music videos you are the first to watch and the playing of fun games 
reading artists’ minds or mano a mano combat against the program’s emcee, as well as the giving away of many different prizes 
throughout a week and the giving of an opportunity for teens with eye-catching talents to perform a show based on the power 
of teenager being, and last but not least, meet-and-greet activities for fan clubs to join and have fun with their favorite artists and 
emcees throughout a month.
 Sabai Dee (Feeling Good) TV
 Sabai Dee TV channel focuses on the target group with appreciation of Thai songs not only limited to country music but also 
included songs for life, hit songs in the past, rare-to-hear old songs, string music, including underground music market where 
a music maker is given an opportunity to promote their work, under the slogan “a variety of Thai music for the pleasure of the 
whole family.
 The strengths of Sabai Dee TV channel of which its contents are produced and managed under R Siam
record label is capitalized on to present a wide variety of programs, both in depth and in width, by drawing
and utilizing the full potential of artists in our care along with the selection of an emcee with unique identity,
well remembered and liked by people of many different groups.  All of the aforesaid characteristics make
Sabai Dee TV a channel of pleasure people can watch all day where people can communicate all
the time via SMS which will be shown on TV screen.  Sabee Dee TV consists of the programs
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as follows:
 1. Sao Koon Song (Girl multiplies two)
 The program is run by beautiful twin emcees to present useful information and tips for modern women, update latest 
happenings on and behind the scene including interesting activities in the country music show business, and the playing of 
popular hits in form of music videos 
 2. Sod Cheun (Liveliness)
 Jazz up your life with a variety of beautiful music and heart-striking hits through a sexy emcee i.e. Nat Evitra, plus news update 
from famous artists you like, and games to win yourself a prize given away by the program on a regular basis.
 3. Siam Plaza
 Designed as an entertainment mini mart full of laughter from emcee duo by featuring Tak Siriporn and Tai Chuenyim as the 
funny shopkeeper to draw viewers’ smiles and deliver a full-scale entertainment of every gag, every style of music, and every 
gossip to be told every day in a style of Siam Plaza.
 4. Celebrity’s Favorite Songs
 The program’s concept is about getting to know 10 favorite songs of a celebrity guest for each week, spiced it up by an 
interview with those guests about their viewpoints, perspectives and life experiences towards those favorite songs.
 5. Lunch-Time Entertainment
 All-inclusive entertainment program is specially served for your satiety, consisting of music, information and activities from 
leading artists, hosted by two fizzy buddies – Tum and Kwang.
 6. Feel Good Freestyle
 Come tail everyday life of famous artists at every moment and every interesting move the program will dig into and present to 
you in an exclusive freestyle any other program cannot make.  The program is presented by ad-hoc funny hosts who will take 
turn to make you laugh. 
 7. Top 21 Downloads
 View and listen to weekly hits in greater numbers than any other program, update top 21 chart of songs mostly downloaded 
by music fans.  If you want to know which song will champion this chart for each week, tune in and keep your fingers crossed 
for an artist whom you support.
 8. Rub Jang Kerd (Open for Talent Registration)
 The program organizes a stage, awaiting/challenging heroes/talents to show their performances and get registered the best 
performing one to fame.  This program is another identity receiving overwhelming feedback from viewers both inside and outside 
the studio, throughout the country, covering diverse performances whether singing, dancing, and/or performing a show of any kind.
 9. Sabaidee Tua Thai (Feeling Good Everywhere)
 The program features a tour nationwide from one to another place to meet and greet its fans in every region, introducing 
eating places; tourist attractions and interesting products in each province, as well as organizing fun activities and giving away 
a prize for its fans at their houses. 
 10. Luk Thung Tee Kid Thueng (Always Remembered Country Music) 
 Back to good old days for unforgettable impression with legendary country music of rare old songs from music gurus so you 
feel the classic touch of original voice.
 11. Hit Sanan Mua Wan Wan (Yesteryear Hits)
 The program collects old music of all styles for your utmost satisfaction, for example, a music style you were ever fond of, the 
songs you ever sang, the songs that used to create fame for your favorite artists/singers, every song that makes a legend and 
remembrance, etc.
 Channel 8
 Channel 8 is operated under the concept of free T.V with 24 hours varieties which presents its works to serve demands for all 
age and gender groups of audiences by producing and creating all forms of entertainment varieties.
 Channel 8’s strength characterizes by its first run series such as “Koey Roj Sa – Porta Roj King”; with leading roles by Santisuk 
Phromsiri, Fluke – C-Quint, Four-Sakolrat Woraurai, Mai-Sukhontrava, and directed by Ping Lumprapleng; another series called 
“Superstar’s Love Story”; with leading roles by Film-Rattapoom Tokongsub, Kaew-Jarinya Sirimongkolsakul, Bowie-Atthama 
Cheewanitchapan, Pop-Supasit Chinwinijkun, and directed by Ong-Art Singlumpong; and another series called “ChueyDueyKrub-
PomRakLookSourChawPor”; with leading roles by Dan-Worrawech Danuwong, Gybzy-Wanida Termthanaporn, Chain-Thana 
Limpayaraya,Gail-Kiss Me Five,Taq-Parunyou Rojanawuttitum, and produced by Geinokai Company Limited, etc.
 Moreover, other local and foreign films, Asian series, entertainment news, comedian shows, game shows, talk shows, reality 
shows, and concerts are being circulated in 24 hour broadcasting.
 YAAK TV
 YAAK TV is the 24 hours uncensored free T.V. for the new generation that presents its strong and difference contents. The 
main target group is aimed at teenagers between 13 – 35 age groups which consist of the following programs:
 1. “Artist Uncensored” is the live broadcasting program that shows leading artists from the RS and Kamikaze
group at works. Nationwide viewers are invited to give morale support with live votes for their favorite artists
through YAAK T.V. 
 2. “NarRak Ah” is the teenager style’s entertainment news that presents artists’ news on their activities
with video clips, and analyses them in teenager’s style by using teenager’s news feeders from
77 provinces nationwide.
 3. Program from 5 popular artists such as updating the difference life style of C-Quint, going to
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the seaside with Zee, updating trendy activities that teenagers should not miss with Rookie BB, local
and foreign travel with Faye FangKaew, and follow up on life of 5 teenagers K-OTIC.
 4. S.O.S program that updating all trendy teenagers’ lifestyle in eating, travelling, shopping and partying.
 5. PAPAYAAKZI program represents entertainment news desk that follow up on activities of RS artists.
 6. YAAK Music Space program is the reporting on hit songs’ music chart and artist activities with updating on music movements.  
 Marketing and Competition
 Advertising on satellite TV spends much less money than on free TV; however, it can reach more target groups in various 
regions; especially, it provides an alternative to small and medium enterprises with small advertising budgets. The Company is 
capable of formulating a plan for the use of advertising space to meet customer requirements.  Though, the advertising budgets 
through cable and satellite TV channels are relatively small when compared with the overall budget/billing of over Baht 90,000 
million in the advertising industry.  Upon looking on the bright side, there is plenty of room for satellite TV to expand.  Currently, 
there are many customers expressing interest in buying airtime both directly and through advertising agencies.
The Company sees that the diversity of programs via cable and satellite TV channels will make them become alternative media 
for products and services required to communicate message/information to customers in individual niche markets to meet their 
specific demands, lifestyles or preferences or satisfy viewers in each specific region.
 Marketing
 a. Marketing Strategies 
  1) Product Branding and Program Positioning
  The Company clearly set the market position of the business in each type of program. The communication of an image of 
the Company and the design of programs are aimed at responding to specific needs of individual target groups, by taking into 
consideration the pattern of behaviors of viewers in each group and hot trends which correspond to the strategies of RS Group 
of companies possessing strength and high competitiveness in the market.
  2) Capitalization on the competitive strength of RS Group as a major element of production to obtain a top-quality program
  In addition to clearly determine target viewers, the Company capitalizes on the competitive strength of our organization, in 
the teen market of large scale and high purchasing power, in the design and production of work to obtain top-quality programs, 
using talented artists/performers/singers/teen emcees in our care, our music and other contents as a major element to create 
work, upon combined with the strength of our crew members who are highly skilled and experienced in the production of TV 
programs and videos, top-quality work is produced and great feedback is achieved. 
  3) Formulation of sale patterns to create maximum value for customers
  The design of sale patterns of advertising media to respond to the needs of and create maximum value for customers 
in a package deal i.e. the sale of loose spot airtime in tandem with marketing activities to repeat and create brand awareness 
among customers by placing emphasis on the creation of marketing activities in a CSR concept (Corporate Social Responsibility) 
to encourage conscience and publicize knowledge about the social responsibility towards consumers, presented in a way that 
blends into with the program content and is able to communicate the properties of the product in an effective manner to make 
the spending of advertising budget of customers most value for money.
  4) Creation of overall quality to gain customer recognition
  The Company focuses on the creation of overall quality in every work unit to gain customer trust and recognition, not only 
limited to production quality for customer satisfaction but also included before and after sale services such as the response to 
customer needs in a prompt and proper manner, listening to their problems and coming up with solutions for them.
  5) Program development to meet the tastes of target viewers
  An analysis of target viewer requirements is conducted on a regular basis from which the results are used to develop 
production style and technique in line with the requirements of target viewers and customers to steadily boost program ratings 
and sales.
  6) Administrative and cost management
  A structure has been laid to give flexibility in administrative and cost management by using our employees to produce work 
of some parts and hiring outsiders to produce work of other parts (outsourcing).
 Competition
 a. Entrepreneurs
 As consumer behaviors in Thailand have changed, many of them begin to seek 
distinctive information that meets their preferences, but free TV media available  now cannot supply such specific information 
and contents to serve individual tastes and needs. Recently, many entrepreneurs have been more engaged in satellite TV 
business in diverse forms including music, news update, infotainment and even product selling channel, thus making satellite 
TV the business with high-growth potential; additionally, the development of technology helps bring down the cost and the 
break even point can be reached in a few year’s time. Like others, the Company has the policy to expand services or increase 
bandwidth/channels in response to today’s consumer preferences and lifestyles.
 b. Competition Tendency
 The provision of satellite TV services is a hot new trend evolving worldwide because of not-so-high investment
when compared with free TV which requires an intensive capital of several billion baht, and satellite TV will have
a larger number of specific viewers than free TV which has a wider range of viewers.   Currently, free TV
can generate income from the sale of advertising airtime in an average amount of 40,000 million baht;
so, if a satellite TV station is operated at the full scale, its advertising airtime sales may be as high as
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100,000 million baht for both inbound and outbound.
 Two marketing communication models have been so far adopted by suppliers in Thailand i.e. 1) a type of advertising through 
media or above-the-line activities and 2) a type of advertising through direct means of communication or below-the-line activities.   
In the wake of rising advertising costs compounded by various rules, regulations, prohibitions banning the advertisement of some 
products on free TV, lots of record labels shift their focus to direct marketing activities towards the target group, thus heightening 
the percentage of spending in below-the-line activities which better reach the target group while at the same time generate 
sales.   However, upon the time satellite TV plays a greater role, the percentage of above-the-line spending will regain popularity 
due to its much cheaper cost; moreover, the development of technology will enable product owners to shoot advertising spots 
towards each specific zone as required to boost sales in any area they are still the underdogs, and this will intensify battle lines 
in the provinces because local marketing activities and the direct shooting of advertising spots at/to a specifically defined zone 
can be organized or made easier.
 Procurement of Products and Services
 The Company is in alliance with several leading satellite service providers like PSI, DTV and many more to come in the future, 
with the aim of expanding channels to reach the target groups, by striving to minimize constraints on an access to bandwidth 
as well as having a policy to open more channels to satisfy the requirements of consumers in the globalization age.     There is a 
meticulous selection of personnel, both on-stage and back-stage, who are talented, experienced and recognized by the target 
groups.  Personnel on-stage will be, of course, artists and performers in RS care; however, we cast independent artists and 
performers as well.   As regards concept creation and production control, they are wholly managed by our in-house teams, while 
some parts of production are managed by our in-house teams and the other parts are managed in an outsourcing manner.
 Environmental Effects 
 -Nil-
 Radio Business
 Nature of Products or Services 
 Sky High Network Co., Ltd., produced 1 radio program : FM 93.0 MHz, focusing to generate incomes from advertising airtime 
sales and event organizing. Its targeted audience and program style as shown in the table below :

Radio Station F.M. 93.0 MHz. COOL93 Fahrenheit

Concessioner Navy Radio Station 

On Air Date and Time 24 hours 

Signal Coverage Bangkok and vicinity 

Program Concept Eco Evolution

Target Audience Students and Employed people aged 20 - 34 years old 

 COOL93 Fahrenheit proceeds as per the Company’s policy in conducting the fully commercialized business of radio operation. 
Emphasize is still on maintaining its original popularity, and increasing its audience base. At present, it still maintains clear 
audience base, and popularity, and manages to receive the most popularity vote in each of the audience base from surveying 
data of Nielsen Media Research. This, results in confidence in using media for advertising purpose from the Company’s clients 
of advertising agencies, and products; owners.
 Radio Station Theme
 Radio Station: FM 93.0 MHz (93 COOL FM)

Mon - Fri PJ

06.00 a.m. - 09.00 a.m. Danu Singhaseni 

09.00 a.m. - 12.00 p.m. Pipat Wittayapunyanon

12.30 p.m. - 3.00 p.m. Warongporn Wichaidith
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3.00 p.m. - 6.00 p.m. Chatchai Jaroenchusana

8.30 p.m. - 11.00 p.m. Kunda Srithammanupathum 

11.00 p.m.-02.00 a.m. Rungrong Vannaroth 

Sat - Sun

02.00 a.m.- 06.00 a.m. Sweep music

 Cool 93 Fahrenheit offers easy-listening Thai songs which are favored by their audience. It is the first radio station, hosted by 
accepted professional PJs, that allows the audience to listen to voted songs for 50 minutes continuously. Activities that respond 
to the audience’s lifestyles and challenge the working group listeners are also part of the program, which enhances Cool 93 
Fahrenheit to become number one radio for working people in a short period and by mutual consent according to Neilsen Media 
Research polls. 
 For these reasons, Cool 93 Fahrenheit has proved to be a popular radio station according to the Neilsen Media Research 
popularity poll, 7 years frequencies from 2004 to present (data as of December 2011). It has been ranked as the top station in 
the Easy Listening category for working people aged 20-34 years. 
 Marketing and Competition 
 Marketing 
 Marketing and Competition Strategies 
 1) Value for money Strategy 
 In 2011, the Company has used value for money strategies to create an optimum benefit that suits their customer’s advertising 
budget by selling packages, expanding the loose-spot time and organizing “activities in programs” and marketing events. These 
have added to the value of sales promotions and investment. 
 2) Promotion Strategy 
 Surrounded by the intense competition in the radio business that necessitates the differentiation of programs for value 
addition to the radio frequencies, customers and products that are engaged in the promotion activities, the sale of advertisement 
time no longer adequately corresponded to the demand of customers and the branding of the company and radio frequency. 
Accordingly, the Company has adjusted its policy by emphasizing the promotion activities by forging the business synergy with 
other kinds of alliance by joining as media partner for activities or concerts with the same target customers’ group.
 In all of these promotion activities, the Company emphasized the quality activities that will both enlighten and entertain the 
participants and simultaneously correspond to the marketing policies of customers in an efficient manner. This proves to be 
another channel of revenue-generating of the Company by arranging the promotion activities for customers. 
 In addition, the Company used the potential of its Advertising and PR Departments to publicize the activities of its radio 
stations. The clients’ activities were widely accepted in the form of PR news and advertisements on TV programs, in magazines, 
and on outdoor and mobile media. 
 3) Advertising Planning Service 
 With its long experience in the radio business, the company has a thorough understanding of all aspects of the business. Its 
staff can advise clients how to plan the best quality media management. They can also help them choose the most appropriate 
airtime or advertising package to suit their purpose and reach the audience. 
 The Company has planned advertising campaigns with special activities to meet the needs of the customers and the limitations 
on each product type, especially alcohol-mixed beverages or other products that need an access to the particular market target. 
Based on the policies of its business partners, the Company and the program sponsors have planned advertising strategies that 
will keep Sponsors’ interested and return the greatest benefit to them as they use the Company’s media service. 
 Customer description and target group 
 1) Target group 
  - Advertising agencies
  - Direct customers
 2) Target audience
 93.0 MHz. COOL93 FAHRENHEIT
 Male and female students and working adults aged between 18 and 35 years. 
 Distribution Channels   
 In 2011, Some 60% of radio airtime will be distributed to the advertising agency while 40% of total
airtime will go directly to the product owner. 
 Competition
 Radio Station Operators 
 Three radio stations broadcasting mainly Thai songs with similar target listeners are presented
on the table below.
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Radio Station Teenagers 10-18 
years old 

Students 15-25 
years old 

Working 
group18-35 years 

old 

Adults 25-45 years 
old

F.M. 89.0 Chill FM Competitor 

F.M. 93.0 Cool 93 Sky-high Network Sky-high Network 

F.M. 103.5 FM ONE Competitor คคคคคคค

F.M. 106.5 Green Wave Competitor คคคคคคค

 Competition Trends 
 There is strong competition in the radio business because of limits on advertising expenditure. Clients prefer to buy advertising 
airtime on radio stations with good ratings. Consideration is given to pricing strategies that will allow the client to buy more 
airtime or choose a variety of advertising styles. This will depend on the sales strategy of each company; those who can show 
that they are providing the best value-added service will stay ahead of the competition. 
 Procurement of Product or Service 
 PJ and Production and Creation Personnel 
 The company has successfully brought about the innovation to the radio circle by employing the new marketing strategy, “PJ 
MARKETING” after the accomplishments in the program production of 93 Cool Fahrenheit and other affiliated radio frequencies 
by moving the DJ era into the PJ (Program Jockey) one. Each PJ is required to enhance one’s own potential by possessing the 
basic marketing knowledge and optimal technology utilization in particular. PJs are the key factor contributing to the reputation 
of the radio station as they are responsible people who have a good understanding of the music, and the ability to communicate 
with the listeners. With training, they can improve their knowledge of technology in order to be able to handle state-of-the-art 
equipment and software. They host their programs in a style that meets the taste of the target listener, and may also work 
externally as program hosts for sales promotion activities. 
 Broadcasting System
 The Company uses a computer system for automatic broadcasting control which is the technology of international standards 
by which its software is regularly updated to keep up with the ever-changing trends and achieve top broadcasting quality.
 Environmental Effects 
 - Nil -
 In-Store Media Business
 Nature of Products or Services
 Media Business - P.O.P. Radio 
 RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. is the radio program production unit for P.O.P Radio or radio media at point of purchase which 
obtains the sole radio broadcasting concessions in modern trade stores. These consist of 3 radio stations i.e. Tesco Lotus FM, 
Tops Radio and Big C Station which emphasize on sales of advertising times with different target group audiences and specific 
programming concepts as shown below.

  Radio Station

Stores TESCO LOTUS

LOTUS EXPRESS

TOPS BIG C

No. of Branches 677 127 127

 Airing Date and Time TESCO LOTUS

09.00a.m.-11.00 p.m.

LOTUS EXPRESS

24 hours

12-24 hours 12-15  hours
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 Broadcasting
Coverage

62 provinces including

Bangkok, its out skirting 

areas and provinces

18   provinces including

Bangkok, its out skirting areas 

and provinces

35   provinces 

including Bangkok, 

its out skirting

areas and

provinces

Programming concept Easy Listening, with 

knowledge and entertaining 

concept.

Easy Listening, Modern Trendy Modern Family, 

enjoyable shopping  

with knowledge 

and entertaining 

concept.

 Target group Student, working group,

and family member

age 25 – 40 

male 25%

female 75%

Student and working group

age 20 - 35 

male 25%

female 75%

House wife,

working group, and 

large family

age 21 -  34 

male  24%

female 76%

 Production of the radio programs, for broadcasting through closed circuit wirings within these 3 megastores operate under 
the Company’s policy with only some exceptional cases that operate under the stores’ supervision. Main broadcasting music 
will emphasize only on RS’s songs, and songs from other music labels must receive written approval prior to broadcasting. Easy 
listening music style with some additional joyful music is to be broadcasted. The Company realizes potential in the production of 
point of purchase radio (P.O.P Radio) as a new media channel which links efficiently between product advertising of the Above 
the Line and Below the Line concept.
 On the main P.O.P Radio administration concept, customer’s groups in the store must be considered as a very important 
aspect.  Pleasant atmosphere, with assertive coloring and easy to remember tune, has to be built to lengthening listeners to stay 
in the store as long as possible. At present, the Company produces distinctive programs to the 4 mega stores which consistently 
receive more attraction from their customers. In 2007, result from the Nielsen (Thailand) Co., Ltd. surveys indicated only 66% 
acknowledgement of this media, comparing to recent survey in August 2009 resulted in an increase to 78% acknowledgement 
of this P.O.P Radio through closed circuit wirings within the megastores, or 8 from 10 persons were able to recognize this type 
of advertising media.
 Results from surveys of Nielsen (Thailand) Co., Ltd. could also be evaluated that there were circulating listeners of 21 million 
people nationwide on this P.O.P Radio programs. Indications were made from more than 31 million receipts on purchases in the 
3 main megastores i.e. Tesco Lotus, Tops and Big C on the average of 2 – 3 visits per month. The results encouraged advertising 
agencies’ clients, and companies who own products to have higher confidence in this P.O.P Radio media, and, thus, purchased 
advertising times until the end of 2011.
 Type of Program in each store 
 1. Tops
 The Company produces programs for TOPS by considering its customer’s groups who come for shopping in the store, 
including their length of stay and the store concept as important factors. At present, there are 3 types of Tops i.e. Tops 
Supermarket, Tops Market, and Tops Daily which are specified by the program concepts as follows:
  1.1 Tops Supermarket
  The program offers contemporary easy listening Thai music presented by DJ with 2 types of program i.e. life show and 
recorded CD program.
  1.2 Tops Market
  Tops Market emphasizes on 100% international music with DJ presentation in Thai 30%, and English 70% through live 
show and recorded CD program similar to Tops Supermarket.
  1.3 Tops Daily
  It is a concise, non-DJ program, focusing on variety, with the alternation of hit songs and product promotion/advertising 
spots via CDs, because of the diversity of target groups in a community.
 2. Tesco Lotus
 The Company produces programs for Tesco Lotus by considering its customer’s groups who come for
shopping in the store, including their length of stay and the store concept as important factors. At present,
there are 4 types of Tesco Lotus i.e. Hyper Market, Value Market, Supermarket, and Lotus Express.
 The outstanding program for Tesco Lotus emphasizes on dual male and female DJ presentation,
and playing only in contemporary Thai music (except branches in the provinces that include additional
1-2 country music songs per hour). This is considered as its highlight, and creates differentiation from
other stores.
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 The production of programs in TESCO LOTUS is divided into the following categories:
  1. Hyper Market, Value Market, Super Market
  2. Lotus Express
  3. Lotus Plus & Community
 Moreover, programs for Tesco Lotus have additional highlights in separating productions as per each region such as midland, 
north, north eastern, and south whether in the forms of local jingle, or local back ground music. Additional country music for 
each particular area also results in more reach to listeners.
 3. Big C
 The Company produces programs for Big C by considering its customer’s groups who come for shopping in the store, 
including their length of stay and the store concept as important factors. The Big C consists of 2 types of store i.e. large Big C, 
and small Big C. The program is in the form of recorded CD in MP3 format with 12 - 15 hours length according to the opening 
– closing hours of each store.
 The program emphasizes on Thai contemporary music with joyful melody together with easy listening music. Moreover, 
well-known DJ, up-to-date and interesting contents were added in the program. The songs broadcasted shall emphasize the 
modernity of the modern age family.
 Media Business IN-STORE TELEVISION 
 The in-store television department presented the advertising media in a way that making-a-difference was focused to surpass 
our competitors, whether it is in-program media presentation and/or a broadcasting software system to keep up with ever-
changing technology, as detailed hereunder:
 Production
 1. In-program presentation model development
  - New-styled concerts in accordance with the requirements of target groups
  - Weekly campaign for product promotion
  - The use of interactive media such as SMS to build a close relationship with target groups.
 2. Public relations by organizing activities with LCD media 
  - Give away gift vouchers such as spa coupon, restaurant coupon and/or concert tickets
  - Organize a special schedule of a movie for customers joining activities through media.
 System
 1. Develop the application of data sending-and-receiving system through VPN to safeguard data and system against 
unauthorized use or outside attack.
 2. Improve broadcasting software for greater efficiency on news update & feeding, voice/volume tuning in accordance with 
a time range.
 Remote control through ADSL (VPN) is a strategic innovation to provide solutions for customers who want speedy media in 
changing advertising spots in a fast, safe and accurate manner to truly strengthen the potential of media at a point of sale
 City Bus
 The city-bus media is the in-bus media aiming at commuters of over 1.2 millions a month.
 Product Characteristics
 1. Be the advertisement on 49 air-conditioned NGV buses running 24 hours from/to the heart of the city to/from suburb 
areas. The percentage of female commuters is 55% and the percentage of male commuters is 45%.  The target group is in the 
age range of 21-30.  Working-age people are the major target and students are the secondary target.  The average commuting 
time is from ½ to 1 hour, with the commute frequency of 4-5 times per week per person.
 2. The installation of 4 televisions of 19 inch-sized screen per bus, thus totaling 196, with a one-hour program consisting 
of main contents i.e. music, short movie, sports and entertainment, played all day and alternately with commercial ads for 
commuters to enjoy and kill time during heavy traffic.
 3. Customers who are sponsors or advertising media buyers may advertise products by wrapping advertising materials 
behind passenger seats, 26 seats/bus, and advertising on digital TV which is a direct penetration into the market of consumers 
commuting/traveling on the road or by bus.
 Marketing and Competition
 Marketing 
 a) Marketing Strategy and Competition
  1) Monopolistic Partnership Strategy
  The Company engaged its operation on Monopolistic Partnership strategy, and made adjustment on media advertising 
rate to suit the economic situation and mechanism. Highest benefit to customers’ budget would be generated for advertising in 
the form of package with special price i.e. loose spot sales. This also included arrangements on activities and events marketing 
for the stores, and opened opportunity for new customers to have trial on the media in order to assess its
capability. Result measurements were assigned to Nielsen (Thailand)) Co., Ltd. to monitor on acknowledgement
and capability of the P.O.P Radio media. Evaluation measurements showed that P.O.P Radio generated awareness
of 78%, and also created brand switching deliberation, or could build brand switching deliberation from
intended purchase to other brand that P.O.P Radio was advertising. In-store TV remains highlighted as
a key PR tool while city bus can help boost the strength for the Company’s business.
 From execution of the above strategy, the Company has received trust from its customers and
supporters to conduct activities under prudence budgets with signed contract through out the year.
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  2) Strategy on Sales Promotion Activity
  To be in accordance with present economic situation which generates intense media competition, sales on advertising 
times are not enough to serve customers’ requirements. Advertising sales together with sales promotion activities to build 
additional value in the form of P.O.P Radio In-store TV and City Bus are essential to customers, and products that participate in 
the sales promotion activities and brand awareness building of the companies. Hence, the Company has improved its operating 
strategy by stressing the importance to sales promotion activities by using the Monopolistic partnership strategy with various 
business allies, and brings activities or concerts with the same target customers’ group into these 4 megastores and on the bus 
for the communication of a message to a large number of commuters.
  The Company emphasizes only on quality sales promotion activities which generate useful information and entertainment 
to participants and at the same time can serve customer’s marketing policy efficiently. On this part, the Company has its 
marketing department that is responsible for marketing strategy, and makes special sales promotion activities’ proposal to 
customers. Activities are clearly arranged and directly aimed at the target groups, and results in generating revenue through 
sales promotion activities for customers.
  3) Strategy on Advertising Plan Services
  The Company has experienced and seasoned personnel for In-Store media with good knowledge and understanding in 
the media business of P.O.P Radio, and In-Store TV. Customer’s consultation in media administration planning can be given with 
highest quality, and media buying times, or advertising package that suits customer’s requirement and listener’s target groups of 
P.O.P Radio and In-store TV at the stores can also be consulted.
  Advanced technology, highly skilled personnel, and strong contents will certainly make the city bus media successful 
in the future.
  The Company also offers advertising plan by creating specifically special activity to serve customer’s requirement, and also 
limitation on certain product type. The Company uses this business ally’s policy with the product in creating advertising plan for 
all supporting products in generating deliberation and highest value in choosing the Company’s media services.
 b) Customer Profiles and Target Groups
  1) Target Groups
   • Advertising Agency
   • Direct Customer
 c) Distribution Channel
 Sales of media time in the radio media business of P.O.P Radio and In-store TV will be done through the advertising agencies 
at 30%, and direct sales to the direct customers at 70% of total sales.
 Competition
 a) Operator
 The In-Store advertising media business operator consists of 4 major players

Radio Station TESCO LOTUS TOPS BIG C CARREFOUR

P.O.P. RADIO RS IN-STORE 

MEDIA

RS IN-STORE 

MEDIA

RS IN-STORE 

MEDIA

RS IN-STORE 

MEDIA

IN-STORE TELEVISION VGI RS IN-STORE 

MEDIA

RS IN-STORE 

MEDIA

RS IN-STORE 

MEDIA

VISUAL AD VGI VGI

SHELF TALKER ACT MEDIA ACT MEDIA

DEMO TESTING DEMO POWER DEMO POWER DEMO POWER

A large-scale enterprise in the city bus media that is our main rival is Plan B Company Limited which runs the same line of 
business as ours but has a larger number of buses and routes because they have been an old hand engaging in this business 
for more than 7 years.
 b) Competitive trend
 Competition in media business in the modern trade has become more intense from limiting advertising
budget so that customer can make selection in purchasing media advertising from stores which
generate the best direct revenue. At the same time, pricing strategy is still importance towards decision
making on the advertising purchase as customer can buy more advertising time, or variety on type
of advertising. All these, depend on the sales strategy of each company to convince customers that
their money are well spent.
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 Procurement of Products or Services
 a) DJ for P.O.P Radio and Production and Creative Personnel
 At present, the Company has 40 DJs who are capable of proceeding with the already set-up P.O.P Radio programs similar 
to the real live show with style in accordance with the target group. The Company’s present DJs must have skills in operating 
programs in the field on sale promotion activities in order to serve special activities which are another way of sales 
promotion as well.
 Environmental Impact
 -Nil-
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Risk Factors

RS Group has evaluated the risks that might affect its Companies and subsidiaries.
 Industrial Risks
 • Copyright violation
 From the past up to the present day, music business suffers from the copyright violation impact mainly from its physical 
products (CD, VCD, DVD), and in the digital form. Thus, incomes from both the physical products and music download do 
not reflect the real consumption figure. The real cause is from the widely spreading distribution of various copyright violation 
products in many areas of the market which enables easy access for consumers’ purchasing. Also, the impact comes from 
consumers’ behavior that originally purchases music through the physical products but changes to downloading more music 
through the telephone system, or websites. At present, downloading music files, or various contents are very easy, convenient, 
and faster which is due to the results of technology advancement, communication development that assists speed and more 
coverage, or the widely spreading of music download websites. These are the factors that resulting in more consumers to turn 
to music download. Additionally, as most music download through the websites is free, it encourages some consumers’ groups 
the tendency to use this channel. Moreover, consumers’ perception is still impassive on campaign for the copyright product, 
and perceives that copyright violation through music download is quite an ordinary matter. Hence, from the stated consumers’ 
behaviors, some of the Company’s income has been decreased to a lesser extent. 
 However, in the past, all parties involved, in the Government and private sectors, including entrepreneurs, music composers, 
and artists   have joined in to collaborate in encouraging consumers to purchase copyright products and refrain from supporting 
all type of pirate products. 
 The Company has realized the importance of this problem, and has adjusted its strategies and implementations to stimulate 
the recovery of its sales figure. These are in the forms of adjusting product pricing to a more suitable level, digital system’s 
development and legal music download channel with copyright that facilitates consumers with easy access. The adjustment of 
product image, and new service to serve the changing need and living pattern of consumers, such as the introduction of MP3 
products, and launching of the downloading membership service (such as Super Mao *339). The Super Mao *339 which uses 
the same number for all networks, with monthly prepaid service, encourages more consumers to turn back to legal copyright 
music download as it is worthwhile and not expensive. However, the Company still explores options on new product styling and 
new distribution channel to serve consumers’ requirements in order to protect the Company’s income and preserve continuous 
growth. Moreover, the Company has developed the copyrights collection system to be more effective with its marketing activity 
through public relation process by publishing information to business operators who want to use copyright materials must 
respect the right of copyright’s owners and make payments on copyright prior to usages. This also includes policy on regulations 
to legally enforce the copyright violators by establishing the units for control, suppress, and watch over violators all over the 
country. 
 On the Government part, it has set up guidelines in supporting companies to develop their own tangible and distinctive 
copyright’s collection system. Various operational measures are set up to campaign on protection, force, and suppress 
copyright’s violators on a more realistic and tangibly way. 
 Thus, from cooperation of the stated parties, the Company expects to result in reducing the copyright’s violations which have 
an important effect on business operations.
 Risks in business operations 
 • Risks from concessions renewal
 Currently, the Company is granted three kinds of concessions, i.e. airtime lease for radio broadcast, airtime lease for television 
broadcast, and airtime lease for radio broadcast in modern trade stores, valid for average 1-3 years. If the Company is not 
granted any concessionary lease renewal, the resulting impact will pose a negative effect on the program continuity and the 
Company’s revenues. Additionally, risk from change in the concessionary contract may result in less favorable condition. 
Moreover, the search of new airtime as replacement may cause disadvantage to the Company by the loss of business continuity, 
and making a rating to be like a former program will require painstaking efforts, or may increase the searching cost for new 
airtime. However, the Company is confident that, by continuously producing quality programs that have won popularity among 
regular audiences, having regular listeners on a large customer base as well as the Company’s being a key player in the 
entertainment business, while maintaining standard on payment conditions and strictly observing conditions on lease payment, 
as well as good relationship with the concessioners, the Company will  receive assurance and can reduce
risk that may occur from the concessionary lease renewal.  Nevertheless, the Company will also consider the
extension of concession contract by comparing with investment feasibility. If concession contract’s extension
does not benefit the Company, then, contract extension may not be considered.        
 • Risk from occasional huge marketing events
  The Company has diversified its business towards an all-inclusive entertainment network.
However, some projects required a rather high investment cost which may create risk from
failure on income management not according to plan. The risk may result in contract
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termination, or any unforeseeable situation that stops the project to proceed further. However, the Company has stipulated the 
screening process, evaluating its usefulness, and cost effectiveness prior to investment. Study on the project feasibility has to be 
conducted prior to signing any contract or any other binding condition by using experts from related fields to jointly consider for 
cautiousness and conciseness of the project. Moreover, advanced planning and early preparation have to be conducted by the 
arranging of pre-sale from supporting sponsors when the project is still in its production process. Additionally, large project has 
to be approved by the Company’s Board of Directors in order to reduce any risk that may occur from the investment. 
 • Dependence on Company Executives
  In the past, management under the RS Group had been under the major shareholders and founders, the Chetchotisak 
family. During the recent years, Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak who was one of the founders from the beginning, and at present, is 
still one of the major shareholders, engages in the important roles on planning and managing overall picture of the Company.
  The present management has been transformed into Management as a Professional in which each specialized executive 
is in charge in each business unit. Executive in each business unit is knowledgeable with skill and experience in the specialized 
field. Executive in each business unit will manage in specifying the clear direction and goal, including the comprehensive action 
plan and stipulate the management strategies in achieving the goal. By using this procedure, risk from depending on the 
Company executives has been reduced.
 • Risk from Artist Management
  Throughout the lengthy period of business operations of RS Group, the Company and the top management always attach 
importance to personnel wellbeing because the Company and the management is well aware that the entertainment business 
operations cannot achieve success without employees who are instrumental in steering the Company’s business towards the 
path of growth and security. Seeing to the growth and remuneration of artists and staff members is an important matter the 
management always pays attention to, plans for, and reviews the terms and conditions on a regular basis to ensure that every 
one is satisfied and to prevent the loss of valuable human resources.
  As regards the Company’s artists, there is the Artist Management Unit to supervise all activities of Artists. The comprehensive 
content management are planned for them i.e. album promotion, presenting artist as commercial product presenters or to 
perform a role in a TV series or to appear in various events and other activities that can generate income for them. Moreover, 
they are allowed to participate in the business operations and receive best benefits in return for such participation, thus making 
them feel secure, willing to grow and develop themselves along with the Company.
  Hence, the Company believes that its ability to handle risk management efficiently has been demonstrated by the absence 
of significant risks in all segments of its business.
 Management Risk from major shareholder 
 As of December 30, 2011, Chetchotisak Group held 45.34% of the Company’s shares, giving the Chetchotisak Family the 
ability to control all resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting, including appointment of directors or any other resolutions which 
require the majority vote of the shareholders, with the exception of issues by law or Company’s article of association, which 
require 3/4 of votes from shareholders’ meeting. As a result, other shareholders may not be able to accumulate enough votes to 
review and perform check and-balance tasks on issues proposed by the major shareholder.
 However, as can be seen from the Company management structure which comprises of Board of Directors, the Executive 
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee and Good 
Corporate Governance Committee, it shows that the Company appointed qualified members to suitable positions and clearly set 
the scope of duties and authority of each committee with transparency. In matters related to the Committee, major shareholder 
and business controllers, or such issues with conflicts of interest, those involved will be ineligible to vote. This is to assure 
shareholders that the company’s management is transparent in its dealings.
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Capital Structure

(a) Ordinary share
 As of December 31, 2011, the Company has the registered capital of Baht 1,026,000,280 including 1,026,000,280 ordinary 
shares at one Baht par value. The Company has the paid-up capital of Baht 708,068,528 including 708,068,528 ordinary shares 
at one Baht par value. 
(b) Warrants
 (1) Warrants of RS Public Company Limited #2 (RS-W2)
 The Stock Exchange of Thailand has granted a listing of certificates representing the rights to purchase shares (warrants 
RS-W2) of the Company from June 14, 2010 (Trade date) with the following details:
 Type of Securities RS Public Company Limited Warrants # 2 (RS-W2)
Secondary Market  Main Market
Number of Warrants 140,000,269 units 
Underlying Shares 140,000,269 shares  
Issuer :                           RS Public Company Limited. The warrants were offered to existing shareholders whose 
    names appeared in the shareholder register on May 12, 2010  in accordance to Section 
    225 of Securities and Stock Exchange of Thailand Act regarding the closing method of the 
    shareholders register book and determining the rights of the Shareholders on May 13, 2010, 
    at a ratio of 5 existing ordinary shares to 1 unit of Warrant for free. 
Rights of Warrants The Warrant holders certificates have rights to purchase ordinary shares of RS Public 
    Company Limited at the Exercise Ratio of 1 unit of Warrant for 1 ordinary share at an Exercise 
    Price of Baht 1.90 per share.  However, the Exercise Price and Exercise Ratio are subject to 
    any adjustment in the Exercise Price and Exercise Ratio.
Type of Warrants Transferable named certificate
Term of Warrants 4 years from the issued date (Date of Issuance is on May 20, 2010, Date of Maturity and Last 
    Exercise Date is on May 19, 2014 and warrants will be delisted on the next day.)
Offering Price Baht 0 (Baht Zero)
Exercise of Warrants : Warrant Holders can exercise the right to purchase ordinary shares of the Company on the 
    last Business Day of June and December of each year. The first exercise date is on June 30, 
    2011 and the last exercise date is on May 19, 2014. 
 Shareholders 
 The 10 major shareholders as at the book closure date on December 30, 2011 are as follows :

Company’s Securities

No. Shareholder No. of Shares %

1 Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak 205,000,000 23.225

2 Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak 100,000,000 11.329

3 Mr. Sorut  Wanichwarakij 96,700,000 10.956

4 Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak 70,472,353 7.984

5 Mr. Charnyuth Laoruthdecha 23,000,000 2.606

6 Mr. Sompong  Chonkadeedamrongkul 18,400,000 2.085

7 SIX SIS LTD 15,404,240 1.745

8 Mr. Kitichai  Techangamlert 14,300,000 1.620

9 Mr. Anant Limprasert 12,530,000 1.420

10 Mrs. Nopparath Sibuolert   10,150,000 1.150
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 List of major shareholders who, according to their conducts, were able to assert their influences towards the management 
policy and operation procedure of the company with ulterior motives (Shareholding groups or shareholders who owned over 
10% and holding position as the company’s director or sending representative as the company’s director), are Mr. Kriengkai 
Chetchotisak, Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak and Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak. 
 Dividend payment policy 
 The company and its subsidiaries will pay a dividend not less than 50 per cent of net profit after tax and legal reserve. 
However, the Board of Directors may consider and decide not to follow this policy, or adjust it in order to maximize the benefit 
to the shareholders. 
 Shareholding Structure and Management
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Remark :  In case of non 100% subsidiary, the rest of core shareholders are not the connected person of RS Public Company Limited.
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 Management structure of the company consists of 7 set of committees and subcommittees including: Board of Directors, 
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee, Risk Management Committee, Good 
Corporate Governance Committee and Human Development Committee. Details are as follows: 
 Board of Directors
 As at December 31, 2011. The Board of Directors consists of the following qualified persons:
 1. Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak   Chairman 
 2. Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak  Vice Chairman 
 3. Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak   Director 
 4. Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul Director, Secretary to the Board and Company Secretary
 5. Mr. Darm Nana  Director 
 6. Mr. Danaisidh  Peslapunt   Director 
 7. Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom  Independent Director and Audit Committee Chairman 
 8. General Pairoj  Panichsamai      Independent Director and Audit Committee 
 9. Associate Professor Witaya Danthamrongkul Independent Director and Audit Committee 
	 Definition	of	Independent	Directors	
 Independent Directors are defined as external director, not involving in Executives, company staff, Executive Director 
or authorized signatory director, and be independent from major shareholders, Executives and related parties. In addition, 
Independent Directors are able to consider equitable treatment to shareholders and to preempt any possible conflict of interest 
between the company and related parties. Independent Directors shall possess the qualifications as follows: 
 (1) Hold shares not exceeding 0.5% of the total number of shares entitled to voting rights in the Company, the parent 
company, the subsidiary companies, the associated companies or any corporations that may cause a conflict of interest, which 
shall be inclusive of the shares held his/her related parties*.
 (2) He/she has been neither Executive directors** nor been an employee/staff member/advisor getting salary paid, both in 
present time and two years before the appointment, of/by the Company, the subsidiary companies, the associated companies, 
the affiliated companies*** or any corporations that may cause a conflict of interest.
 (3) No relationship by blood or legal registration as parent, spouse, sibling, son/daughter and/or son/daughter in-law of an 
executive officer or a major shareholder with controlling power, or a candidate who will be nominated as an executive or a person 
in charge of the operations of the Company or the subsidiary companies.
 (4) Business relations can be divided as follows:
  (a) Relationship types
   • Relationship between professional service providers and users 
             - Features: Auditors, other professional service providers such as legal consultants, financial advisors, property  
     appraisers, etc.
    - Significant levels that are categorized non-independence.
    - Auditors: be prohibited in all cases
    - Other professional service providers:  Transaction value exceeds Baht 2 million a year.
   • Trade/Business Relations (apply the similar guidelines to the Stock Exchange’s requirements regarding related 
    party transactions.
    - Features: Business transactions in all types including normal transactions, real property leases/out-leases, asset/
     service-related transactions, and financial assistance grants or receipts.
    - Significant levels that are categorized non-independence:
     Transaction value is ≥ Baht 20 million or ≥ 3% of the Company’s NTA (net tangible assets), whichever is lower. 
     While considering a value in each time of transaction, the total value of previous transactions over the past 6   
     months shall be inclusive.
  (b) The same relationship as Type (a) with corporations that are categorized non-independence such as major 
    shareholders, directors (except independent/audit directors) and executives or partners of those corporations.
  (c) Prohibited period for no relationship in both types (a) and (b): In present time and two years before the appointment. 
  (d) Exemptions: In a necessary and reasonable case which does not happen frequently or constantly, an independent/
    audit director may bear a relationship beyond the significant levels, as set out above, during his or her term in office, 
    provided that a prior and unanimous approval from the board of the Company is obtained.   Furthermore, the board 
    of the Company must provide the disclosure of information regarding the aforesaid relationship in a registration 
    statement for a public offering or securities placement (filing form), an annual information disclosure (Form 56-1) 
    and an annual report (Form 56-2). If that independent/audit director is nominated for another term, the board
    of the Company shall provide a description of the said relationship in the notice of the shareholders’ meeting
    on an agendum for the election of director.
 (5) Be not appointed as a representative of any board members or major shareholders of the company, as well as being not 
appointed as a representative of other shareholders who bear relationship with major shareholders of the Company.
 (6) No restrictions that make him/her unable to freely express his/her opinions.
 (7) An independent director, with the complete qualifications, as stated in clauses 1-6, may be designated and authorized 
by the board of the Company to make a decision regarding the operations of the Company, the parent company, the
subsidiary companies, the associated companies, the affiliated companies and/or other corporations that may cause a
conflict of interest, which such decision can be collectively made (collective decision).
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 If an independent director of the Company also holds office as an independent director for the parent company, the subsidiary 
companies and/or the affiliated companies, the board of the Company shall provide the disclosure of such information as well 
as the disclosure of overall remuneration that certain independent director gets paid, in the filing form, Form 56-1 and Form56-2 
respectively.
 Notes
*    Related parties mean persons under Section 258 of Securities and Exchange Act.
** Executive directors mean persons who involve in the management of the Company, hold office and are in charge of the 
Company as an executive, and are authorized signatories to execute a binding document on behalf of the Company, except a 
specified person in any transaction already been approved by the Board to sign a binding document jointly with other director(s).
***Affiliated companies mean subsidiaries of two and up having the same parent company.
 Authorized signatory directors 
 Directors authorized to sign for the company are Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak, Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak, Mr. Suwat 
Chetchotisak, Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul, Mr. Darm Nana and Mr. Danaisidh  Peslapunt. Two of above directors can jointly 
sign and affix the company seal. 
 Roles of Board of Directors 
 The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2003 held on January 13, 2003 had the resolution to determine 
the scope of Board of Directors’ authority in that Board of Directors is authorized to commit any acts necessary for or related to 
the normal business operation of the company. The Board of Directors is in charged with overseeing the company’s operations 
to be in compliance with the country’s laws and regulations as well as the policies and resolutions of shareholders’ meetings. 
The Board of Directors can appoint the committee or assign any other persons to take any or several actions under the control 
of the Board of Directors except for the actions stated below. Those actions can be performed after receiving the approval from 
the shareholders’ meeting. 
 In cases where the committee or any person has a conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiaries, the committee 
involved in that conflict may not vote on that case. 
 (A)  Any case that the laws mention must be in compliance with the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. 
 (B)  Performing cases where the committee gains the interest or where the laws and regulations the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand are mentioned must be approved by the shareholders’ meeting. 
 The following cases must be approved by the Board of Directors’ meeting and the shareholders’ meeting with a voting score 
of three-fourths of the number of shareholders attending the meeting and voting: 
(A)  Trading or transferring the company’s businesses or an important part of the business. 
(B)  Acquiring or receiving transferred business from other companies or private entities. 
(C)  Making, rectifying or terminating the renting contracts for the entire business of the company or an important section of it. 
Appointing any person to run the company’s business or form a merger with any person for the purpose of profit and loss sharing. 
(D)  Amending the Articles of Association or Memorandum of Association. 
(E)  Increasing or reducing capital, issuing debentures, forming mergers or closing the company. 
(F)  Any actions mentioned in the Securities Act or announcements  by the Stock Exchange of Thailand requiring the approval 
of  the shareholders’ meeting, such as the acquisition or disposal  of assets of the listed company or any related items. 
 The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for consideration the list of new Directors who have been screened 
and presented by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The listed Directors must be ready to dedicate their times, 
knowledge, and capabilities for the company, and understand the duties and responsibilities of Director as well. The company 
has in place the procedure to keep new directors informed about its business and operation for them to possess profound 
knowledge and understanding in the company’s business. 
 In addition, the Board of Directors conduct the annual assessment of their performance in line with the self-assessment form 
to inspect, as well as enhance the efficiency of, their performance. 
 Board of Directors Meeting Attendance for year 2011
 Name    Title                       No. of Attendance      
1. Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak   Chairman   4/5
2. Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak   Vice Chairman   5/5
3. Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak   Director   5/5
4. Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul  Director   5/5
5. Mr. Darm Nana  Director   5/5
6. Mr. Danaisidh  Peslapunt  Director  5/5
7. Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom  Independent Director  5/5
 and Audit Committee Chairman
8. General Pairoj  Panichsamai      Independent Director and  5/5
        Audit Committee
9. Associate Professor Witaya Danthamrongkul Independent Director  5/5
        and Audit Committee
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 Audit Committee 
 As at December 31, 2011. The members of the Audit Committee are : 
 1. Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom  Independent Director and Audit Committee Chairman 
 2. General Pairoj  Panichsamai      Independent Director and Audit Committee 
 3. Associate Professor Witaya Danthamrongkul  Independent Director and Audit Committee 
 Remark : Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom is the Audit Committee Member that has knowledges and experiences in reviewing the 
Financial Statements. He is the certified auditor CPA License No. 966. He renders his audit services for non-listed company.  
 Responsibilities of Audit Committee 
 Audit Committee’s responsibilities are as follows: 
 A. Attend the Board of Directors Meetings as to participate in policy determination, business decision making and corporate 
governance issues.
 B. Consider and recommend the appointment of the auditor and the proposed audit fee including the following issues :
  • To ensure the independence of the external auditor, the Audit Committee shall consider any factors that may conflict   
  with the auditor’s efficient and professional operations. 
  • To freely discuss significant matters, the Audit Committee shall meet privately with the external auditor once a year, 
   without the management team being present.
 C. Consider the policy and code of conduct of the internal audit department as to ensure their continual appropriatenesses 
and effectivenesses.
 D. Review the annual audit plans of the internal audit department.
 E. Review the internal control and internal audit system as to ensure their appropriatenesses and effectivenesses by 
coordinating with the internal and external auditors. The Audit Committee shall consider the following issues :
  • To strengthen the independence of the internal audit department, the Audit Committee shall approve any selection, 
   promotion, rotation or termination of the department head.
  • To ensure the independence of the internal audit department, the Audit Committee shall consider other factors that 
   might impact its independent performance, including reporting and supervision processes.
 F. Consider the quarterly audit report and recommendations of the internal and external auditors as well as follow up the 
action taken according to such recommendations.
 G. Review the quarterly Company and subsidiaries financial reports as to ensure that they are accurate, credible and have 
adequate information disclosures according to the good corporate governance principle.
 H. Ensure that the Company is in compliance with the rules or regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and 
any other laws related to its business.
 I. Review the related transactions of the Company, its subsidiaries and any persons that may cause the conflict of interest, 
to ensure that the related transactions are in appropriate conditions without any benefit embezzlement.  
 J. Coordinate with the external auditor to consider any problems or restrictions encountered in performing financial 
statements audit.
 K. Prepare the Audit Committee report. The report must be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee and disclosed 
in the Company’s Annual Report. Its report should include the following information :
 • The number of committee meetings and attendance of each member.
 • Comments on :
  - Accurateness, completeness and creditability of the company’s financial report.
  - Adequacy of the firm’s internal control system.
  - Compliance with SEC’s and SET’s laws and regulation and other laws relevant to the company’s business.
  - Suitability of the external auditor.
  - Transactions that may cause conflicts of interest.
  - Other concerns that have arisen as the audit committee performed its duties as defined in the committee’s charter.
 • Anything else which should be made available to shareholders and general investors within the scope of duties
  and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors. 
 L. The Audit Committee is authorized to invite the executive directors, Management or concerned persons to either provide 
necessary information or attend the meeting.
 M. Consider any other matters as assigned by the Board of Directors with the consent of the Audit Committee.
 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 As at December 31, 2011. Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of four qualified persons:
 1.  Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom   Chairman
 2.  General Pairoj  Panichsamai  Director
 3.  Mr. Suwat  Chetchotisak   Director
 4.  Associate Professor Witaya Danthamrongkul  Director 
 Responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 Duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 (a) Establish criteria and procedures for selecting a person who is qualified to hold office as a director, select best
candidate in adherence to the procedures set out, and make the recommendation to the board who shall subsequently
propose the nominee for appointment by the meeting of the shareholders of the Company.  The duties and responsibilities
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can be outlined as follows:
 • Determine qualifications of a director in accordance with the  structure, size and composition set forth by the board,
  by taking the following steps:
 • Consider a combined suitability of knowledge, experience and expertise to determine desired qualifications
 • Assess the independence of each candidate to see whether he/she is completely or incompletely qualified as an 
  independent director, and to consider whether or not it is necessary to find a new independent director in the case that 
  the number of independent directors do not reach the numbers as stated in the board’s policy.
 • Consider each candidate’s promising dedication of time.
 • Select and nominate a suitable candidate for the board to consider and propose that nominee for final consideration and 
  appointment by the meeting of the shareholders of the Company.
 • Determine a method of director selection that suits the Company’s characteristics.
 • Go through the list of candidates, and select the best one who meets the qualification requirements set out.
 • Conduct a careful check to make sure that the best candidate who will be nominated for the appointment by the 
  shareholders’ meeting is duly qualified in accordance with the rules and regulations established by the authorities.
 • Approach that qualified candidate to make sure that he/she agrees to accept the position as director when he/she is 
  appointed by the shareholders of the Company.
 • Propose his/her name for consideration and approval by the board. Upon the board’s approval, a notice of the meeting 
  of the shareholders of the Company in this regard will be made and sent to the shareholders calling them to meet, discuss 
  and consider whether or not to appoint that nominee .
 (b) Develop a model and guidelines on the payment of directors’ remuneration which will be recommended to the Board who 
will then propose them to the meeting of the shareholders of the Company for approval.
 (c) Establish guidelines for evaluating CEO performance.
 (d) Determine the annual remuneration of directors
 (e) Offer new ESOP (or warrants) to directors and employees under diverse conditions that will induce directors and staff 
members to perform duties with their best effort, add a long-time value to the shareholders, and truly enable to retain efficient 
and competent personnel; however, such incentive scheme should not cost too much and should be fair to the shareholders of 
the Company.
 Executive Committee
 As at December 31, 2011. The members of Executive Committee are:
 Mr. Surachai  Chetchotisak  -   Chairman
 Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak  -   Vice Chairman
 Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul -   Director
 Mr. Darm Nana  -   Director
 Mr. Komsan Chetchotisak  -   Director
 Responsibilities of the Executive Committee 
 The Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2003 held on January 28, 2003 and the Board of Directors Meeting No. 5/2005 held 
on 31 October 2005 had the resolution to determine the scope of Executive Committee’s authority in that Executive Committee 
is authorized to commit any acts necessary for or related to the normal business operation of the company. 
 (A)  To approve loans or apply for credit from financial institutions  as well as acting as surety or making payments for general  
activities of the company. The credit limit of each item must  be less than 50 million baht or equivalent. 
 (B)  To appoint and remove the company employees who are ranked below Managing Director (currently changed to Chief 
Executive Officer). 
 (C)  To initiate, suggest and formulate policy for the business direction and business strategy of the company and present it  
to the Board of Directors. 
 (D)  To form corporate and management structures and Executive Committee. To oversee all aspects of the recruiting, 
training, employment and removal of company employees. 
 (E)  To formulate business plans and management powers. To approve the annual budget for business operations and 
expenses. To run the company following the business plan  and strategy as well as the policy and business direction presented 
to the Board of Directors. 
 (F)  To be responsible for other duties assigned by the Board of  Directors in each period. 
 Approval for carrying out the activities mentioned above would not be granted in cases where the Executive Committee, or 
parties authorized by the Executive Committee, is authorized to approve activities that may conflict with the company’s interests 
under the regulations and announcements of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. 
 Exceptions would be made for those activities carried out under policies and regulations approved by the Board of
Directors, whereby the Board of Directors has the authority to amend or change the responsibilities of the Executive
Committee whenever necessary. 
 Risk Management Committee
 As at December 31, 2011, the Risk Management Committee consists of 3 qualified persons:
 1. Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul Chairman
 2. Mr. Darm Nana  Director
 3. Mr. Komsan Chetchotisak  Director
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 Duties and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
 (a) Consider the policy, framework, and procedure on the risk management which includes giving advice to
the Company’s Board of Directors and management team on risk management.
 (b)  Supervise and support the risk management so that it is according to plan, and results in achievements for the 
organization as well as in the project level.
 (c) Consider the Company’s important risks on the organization level, and evaluate the risk management procedures to be 
in accordance with the Company’s strategy and business plan.
 (d) Report performance to the Audit Committee and the Company’s Board of Directors. 
The Company’s Board of Directors meeting No. 5/2010 on August 16, 2010, had the resolution to appoint and authorize the 
scope of responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee.
 Good Corporate Governance Committee 
 As at December 31, 2011, the Good Corporate Governance Committee consists of 3 qualified persons:
 1. Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul Chairman
 2. Mr. Darm Nana  Director
 3. Mr. Komsan Chetchotisak  Director 
 Duties and responsibilities of the Good Corporate Governance Committee
 1. Propose guideline or policy on the good corporate governance to the Audit Committee and the Company’s 
Board of Directors
 2. Review or improve guideline or policy on the Company’s good corporate governance
 3. Give suggestions on good corporate governance  to the Audit Committee and the Company’s Board of Directors 
 4. Supervise Directors and the Management team to comply with the good corporate governance’s policy
 The Company’s Board of Directors meeting No. 1/2011 on February 23, 2011 had the resolution to appoint and authorize 
the scope of responsibilities of the Good Corporate Governance Committee. 
 Human Development Committee 
 As at December 31, 2011. The members of Human Development Committee are: 
 1. Mrs. Pornpan  Techarungchaikul Chairman 
 2. Mrs. Napaporn Treepayak   Director 
 3. Mr. Niwes Buakhom   Secretary 
 Responsibilities of Human Development Committee 
 Human Development Committee’s responsibilities are as follows :
 (A)  To present human resource policy and management direction 
 (B)  To draw techniques and strategies for human resource development 
 (C)  To oversee and supervise human resource operation 
 (D)  To consider and make decisions on human resource development issues based on the direction approved by the 
company’s committee 
 Management Team
 As at December 31, 2011. The members of Management Team are as follows :-
 1. Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak  Chairman
 2. Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak  Chief Executive Officer                                      
 3. Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak  Vice Chairman to Executive Committee
 4. Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul Chief Operating Officer
 5. Mr. Darm  Nana  Chief Financial Officer 
 6. Mr. Komsan Chetchotisak  Chief Commercial Officer
 Remark 
 1. “Executive” in this section refers to directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the top four executives ranked below the 
president or any persons of an equivalent position to the top four executives.
 Roles and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer 
 The Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2003 held on January 28, 2003 and the Board of Directors Meeting No. 5/2005 
held on 31 October 2005 had the resolution to determine the scope of Managing Director’s authority in that Managing Director 
(presently called “Chief Executive Officer”) is authorized to approved commit any acts necessary for or related to the normal 
business operation of the company. The Managing Director (presently called “Chief Executive Officer”) is concerned with the 
company in general and has the authority to carry out any activity that is necessary. The credit limit of each item must be less 
than 25 million baht or equivalent. However, the Managing Director (presently called “Chief Executive Officer”) has no
authority to deal with important assets received or sold out of the company; or matters concerning persons who
may be in conflict with, or have conflict of interest with the activities of the company or affiliated companies. In such
instances, the Audit Committee and/or the Board of Directors, depending on the case, will consider the matter. 
 Nomination of Directors and Executives 
 The Board of Directors Meeting No. 3/2007 held on February 26, 2007 had its resolution to appoint the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and also approved the responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Hence, personnel selection for the company’s Director must proceed through the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
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 The Director’s selection procedures must be done by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee whose consideration will 
be based as per qualification in section 68 of the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535 (1992) and the related announcements of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Moreover, considerations will be based on ability, experiences, knowledge, and
specific skill for the benefit and development of company’s business, and dedicating their times and
efforts in conducting their duties. Then, the list will be submitted to the Board of Directors and shareholders’ meeting for approval.
 To elect the Board of Directors, the shareholders’ meeting appoints the director based on majority scores with the following 
regulations and guidelines: 
 (A)  The voting score of each shareholder is equal: one share equals one score 
 (B)  Shareholders can vote for each directorial appointment. 
 (C)  Persons who receive the highest scores will be appointed to the committee. In the case of any persons receiving equal 
scores, the nomination president will make the final decision. 
 Executive Remuneration 
 Cash Remuneration 
 (A)  Directors

 Detail of Remuneration and Meeting allowance are as follows: 

List

Year 2011

No.
Amount of money 

(Baht)
Detail of Remuneration

Directors 9 900,000
Fixed remuneration and Meeting 

allowance

Audit Committee 3 1,620,000
Fixed remuneration and Meeting 

allowance

No. Board of Director

Year 2011

Fixed remuneration 

(Baht)
Meeting allowance 

1 Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak - (Baht)

2 Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak - 100,000

3 Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak - 100,000

4 Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul - 100,000

5 Mr. Darm Nana - 100,000

6 Mr. Danaisidh  Peslapunt - 100,000

7 Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom - 100,000

8 General Pairoj  Panichsamai - 100,000

9 Mr. Witaya Danthamrongkul - 100,000

Total - 900,000
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 (B) Executive Directors and Management Team  

List 

Year 2011

No.
Amount of money 

(million baht) 
Detail of remuneration 

Executive Directors 5 - -

Management team 6 48.07 Salary/bonus/ other allowance 

 Other Remuneration 
 -Nil-
 Corporate Governance
 The Company has stipulated its policy on corporate governance by emphasizing on the control and internal audit system, 
and corporate governance of Management to efficiently following its policy. This is for long term benefits of shareholders, 
including transparency on business operations, information disclosure, and with proper risk management as well as the Social 
and Environment Responsibility for sustaining development.
 In 2011, the Company has been granted the Excellent CG Scoring from Thai Listed Companies Good Corporate Governance 
Survey Year 2011. 
 Summarization on corporate governance practices in 2011 are as follows:-
 Good Corporate Governance Policy
 The Company’s Board of Directors stipulates policy on good corporate governance in a written format, and considers 
reviewing the good corporate governance policy and code of conduct manual for the Company Group. Follow up on evaluation 
of policy compliance is set to at least once a year. The Company publishes manuals to Directors and employees for references 
and practices and announced in the Company’s intranet. 
 The Company’s Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2012 on February 22, 2012 reconsidered, improved, and had its resolution 
to approve the good corporate governance policy and code of conduct manual for the Company Group, and followed up on 
evaluation of policy compliance.
 Shareholder Rights
The Company stresses the importance of respecting the shareholders’ right by following regulations as stipulated by law.
 In 2011, the Company had ordinary shareholders’ meeting on April 1, 2011. All Directors attended the meetings (list of the 
Company’s Board of Directors attendances could be checked at the minutes of the shareholders’ meeting)
 The Company has policy on equal treatment of shareholders by realizing on the importance of shareholders’ right on 
sufficient and timely information disclosure. Concerning shareholders’ meeting, the Company will issue notice of meeting which 
includes details on different meeting’s agendas at least 7 days prior to the meeting date as stipulated by law.
 In 2011, Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd., which was the Company’s registrar, issued notice of meeting to 
shareholders at least 7 days in advanced, or 14 days as stipulated by law. 
 In 2011, the Company had issued notice of meeting which included details on different meeting’s agendas prior to the 
meeting date as stipulated by law, and  each agenda contained principles, and reasons and suggestions of the Board of 
Directors. Moreover, the Company also published shareholders’ notice of meeting, and documents for the meeting in Thai 
and English language at the Company’s website on http://www.rs.co.th/corporate/th/meeting.htm, and http://www.rs.co.th/
corporate/eng/meeting.htm , at least 30 days before the meeting date and the Annual Report was posted in the website at least 
7 days before the meeting date, as to facilitate rapid access for shareholders. Minutes of the meetings in 2011 were posted in the 
website 14 days afterwards. Prior to the start of meeting, Chairman of the meeting explained voting procedure to the meeting, 
and during the meeting, the Chairman gave equal opportunity to shareholders in asking additional questions, and making 
suggestions prior to vote casting in each agenda. Support was also given in using voting paper in case of important agenda for 
transparency and accountability. Minute of the meeting was written correctly and completely within the specific timeframe as 
stipulated by law, and had good filing system for shareholders’ checking.
 In 2011, the Company gave shareholders’ right much more than stipulated by law such as publishing important and
updated information through its websites, and not curtailing the shareholders’ right on the Company’s information that
had to be disclosed by regulations. Concerning the meeting, no additional meeting agenda, or changing of important
information would be conducted without prior notification to shareholders, including additional important information
would not be distributed abruptly in the meeting, and not limiting shareholders’ right to come in late for the meeting.
During the meeting, the Chairman opened equal opportunity to shareholders to ask questions, giving ideas, and making
suggestions on operating results of the Company. Moreover, shareholders were given opportunity to send in their questions
in advanced of the meeting date through the Company’s websites, or by mail to the Board of Directors. Thus, rights
given to shareholders, and supporting shareholders to exercise their rights were in accordance with good corporate
governance policy.   
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 Equal Right to Shareholders
 For shareholders who cannot attend the meeting, the Company proposes proxies to be given to the Independent Director, 
who is Chairman of the Audit Committee, to vote on their behalves in the meeting. In the 2011 shareholders’ meeting, there were 
five shareholders gave proxy to Chairman of the Audit Committee.
 On November 9, 2011, the Company published information through its websites for minority shareholders to propose 
agenda for the ordinary shareholders’ meeting. This included clear cut regulations in advanced for consideration on additional 
agenda for minority shareholders to make proposal. The Company also regulated procedures for minority shareholders to 
propose person’s names for consideration as Director, and including assisting information on qualifications, and agreement of 
the proposed person. However, no shareholder proposed on new agenda, and person’s name for Director.
 The Company has established the measure in a written statement to prevent directors, executives, staff members and 
employees from abusing insider information in the interests of their own or their related parties. By this measure, the Company’s 
directors, executives, staff members and employees are required to report a transaction that may cause a conflict of interest 
between the organization and them or their related parties via the designated law office to screen and forward such report 
completed with its comments to the Board, and the Board is fully authorized to make a decision on any transaction, which may 
cause a conflict of interest, for the Company’s overall benefit.     The Company’s directors and/or executives with their interests in 
any transactions shall be banned from participating in a decision making process on those transactions, as detailed in the topic 
of insider information protection; moreover, related party transactions shall be made in accordance with relevant requirements 
established by Stock Exchange of Thailand, as detailed in the topic of precautionary measures or procedures for the approval 
of related party transactions.   The certain policy has been implemented since the year 2008 for banning directors and top 
executives(**) from buying and selling their shares in the Company three weeks before the publication of financial statements 
and two days after that.
 The Company has regulation in prohibiting the using of opportunity or information by Director, Executive, or employee for 
their own benefits, or conducting business competition with the Company, or with related business. This includes using of inside 
information for the Company’s stock trading. All regulations have been stated in the code of conduct manual, and discloses in 
the topic of using of internal information.
 Remark:  (**) means Executive as per definition of the Securities and Exchange Commission who is responsible for changes 
in shareholding as stipulated by law.
 Rights of Stakeholders
 The Company recognizes the importance of rights for all groups of stakeholders whether from internal stakeholders such 
as employees, the Company’s Management, and its subsidiaries, or external stakeholders such as competitors, creditors, 
Government agencies, and other related parties. The Company realizes the supporting pressure from stakeholders especially 
from communities and public, in which it always gives significance to the causes (example can be seen from the Role and 
Social Responsibility and Human Resources Development Policy). Regulations and procedures are in written format, including 
rules on disciplinary punishment, so that there will be guideline procedures for related persons i.e. Directors, Management and 
employees of RS Group etc. to follow when performing duties for the Company with honesty and ethics towards the Company 
and groups of stakeholders. Details in the Code of Conduct manual which covers business and employee’s code of conduct are 
as follows : 
 Responsibilities toward social and environment
 The Company has the policy to conduct its business for the benefits of the economy, society, and environment by 
considering its duties and responsibilities towards the nation, society and environment. Businesses must be operated and 
controlled completely under the laws and regulations, as well as determinations to press on developing trends for social quality 
and environment internally or cooperation with Government agencies and communities. Responsibilities toward social and 
environment must be whole heartedly and consistently promoted to all levels of employees on becoming good citizens who 
make beneficial contributions toward communities and societies. Employees must also be supported to jointly participate in 
constantly creating activities for communities and societies in order to create good corporate culture in the future. These have to 
be reviewed, evaluated, and followed up consistently on progress of the company’s operations to ensure that policies on social 
and environment have been executed as planned (example can be seen from the Role and Social Responsibility and Human 
Resources Development Policy).
 Customer 
 The Company is determined to distribute quality products and provide quality services to its customers. 
 Shareholders 
 The Company is run with a good and efficient expertise. The current and future risk is carefully assessed for the benefit of 
shareholders, and controlled to be certain that the operational results and financial situations of the company as well as
information to shareholders are completely reported.
 Employee 
 The Company considers employees its precious assets and acknowledges the value of employees. The appropriate
welfare and remuneration are arranged in line with the knowledge, ability, responsibility and performance of each employee.
RS group also realizes the importance in healthcare, safety, and working environment as safe precaution against life and
property of its employees, and follows on the labor laws’ regulations. Hence, the Company has arranged for health check,
life and health insurances for employees, and consistently checks safety in the work place too. 
 The Company supports knowledge training for its employees, Directors and executives. (Examples are under topics
Social Role and Responsibilities, and Human Resources Development Policy)
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 Trading Partner and Creditor 
 The Company adheres to honesty and justice towards its trading partners by taking into consideration for the best
benefits to the company, and bases on justified remunerations on both sides, and avoids bias or any circumstances that
give rise to the conflict of interests and upholds and complies with agreements. This also includes anti-corruption and anti bribery 
payment  to obtain benefit for the Company’s business.  
 Competitor 
 The Company supports free and fair trade competition. 
 Virtue 
 The Company is engrossed in doing the rightful things and performing its duties with honesty and straightforwardness 
in accordance with legislations and regulations. This conduct is applied to any activities and decision-making. The company 
operates its business with honesty and takes into account the influencing risks. 
 Equality and Human Rights for All Parties Concerned 
 The Company neither hinders or withholds the privileges from, nor discriminates against any persons who are different in 
races, nationalities, religious, genders, age, or education, including non involvement on any human rights infringement.
 Copyright 
 The Company has the policy on non violation of any copyright. 
 The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and makes improvement on Code of Conduct manual of RS Group at least once 
a year. In 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors meeting No. 1/2012, has reviewed, improved and approved RS Group’s 
Code of Conduct manual, and publishes in the Company’s website. It includes information on new employee’s training for all 
employees’ acknowledgement, and controlling process for strict compliance on the Code of Conduct.
 The Company has had the policy that directors, executives and staff members at all levels are required to strictly observe 
and follow the best practices described in the Group’s ethics handbook.   In the past year, the Company and the subsidiaries 
had no legal dispute that significantly affected the Company’s business or posed negative effects on the Group’s assets of which 
its overall value, as at 31 December 2011, was higher than 5% of shareholders’ equity.  The Company and the subsidiaries had 
no legal dispute arisen from an out-of-the-ordinary course of business of the Group either.
 The Company has anticipated in sharing the development mechanism with stakeholders in strengthening operating results of 
the Company. This is to build business security with information transparency, listening to comments, complaints, or suggestions, 
etc. Action that may lead to fraud or suspected behavior within the organization either from employee or from stakeholder can 
be reported directly to the Management, Internal Audit unit, Investor Relation unit, Company Secretary or Audit Committee as to 
pass to the Board of Directors through website http://www.rs.co.th/investor.html or through telephone numbers 0-2511-0555 
ext. 1503 or to the stated units above. All information will be collected and checked through the Company’s stipulated process, 
and will be reported to the Board of Directors.
 Complaint concerning financial and accounting reports, internal control, risk management, compliance with law and code 
of conduct can be done through the Company’s secretary who receives and summarizes all topics, and quarterly submits to 
the Audit Committee, and Board of Directors. The Company gives importance to the secrecy of information received in order to 
build confidence to sender, and complaint will only be known to assigned and related persons.  
 Information Disclosure and Transparency
The Company gives the importance to efficient internal control system on the Management and operational levels, by clearly 
stipulated the Management’s business authorizations. Assets’ usages are controlled, and responsibilities of operator, controller, 
and evaluator are separated from each other to create suitable check and balance system. Moreover, there is internal control on 
the financial system with financial report system reporting directly to the responsible management unit.
 The Company’s internal control unit reports directly to the Audit Committee to be certain that the main operations and 
important financial activities proceed efficiently within the directed guidelines. The Company has its policy on Compliance 
Control in correspondence with the concerned law and related regulations.
 Duties of the Board of Directors and Sub-Committees 
 The Company’s Board of Directors appoints sub-committees in order to assist on corporate governance as follows:-
 • Audit Committee has duration of 3 years, and consists of 3 Independent Directors. Names and duties of the Audit 
Committee 
  are listed in topic “Shareholding Structure and Management”.
 In 2011, the Audit Committee had 6 meetings in which all members attended all meetings, and consistently reported their 
operating results to the Company’s Board of Directors. There is one meeting that the Audit Committee meet privately with the 
external auditor without the management team being present.
 • Nomination and Remuneration Committee
  The Company’s Board of Directors meeting No. 3/2007, on February 26, 2007, has appointed the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, its scope of authority, and remuneration. The committee consists of 4 qualified persons
which has 3 Independent Directors in which one of them is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
the committee has 3 years duration (details in the “Shareholding Structure and Management”)
 In 2011, the committee had 2 meetings in which all members attended all meetings. The committee consistently
reported their operating results to the Company’s Board of Directors.
 Details of important performances in 2011 could be summarized as follows:-
 1. Considered the nomination and selection of qualified and suitable person as replacement for Board of Directors
retired member.
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 2. Considered, reviewed and approved the charter of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
 3. Considered and reviewed the appropriateness of the pattern and criteria of the remuneration.
 4. Reviewed the annual Directors’ remuneration.
 5. Considered the Chief Executive Officer evaluation criteria.
 6. Reported the performances of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board of Directors
on regular basis.   
 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee commented that the stated items were suitable to the utmost long-term 
benefit for the Company, Shareholders and Stakeholders.
 • The Executive Committee consists of 5 qualified persons, and their names are listed in the “Shareholding Structure and 
  Management” topic.
 In 2011, the Executive Committee had total 12 meetings.
 • Risk Management Committee
  The Company’s Board of Directors meeting No. 5/2010 on August 16, 2010 had the resolution to appoint, authorize 
  the scope of responsibilities and consider remuneration of the Risk Management Committee. The Committee consisted 
  of 3 qualified persons with 3 years duration. (Details are under the Shareholding Structure and Management) In 2011, 
   the Company’s Risk Management Committee had 1 meeting.
 • Good Corporate Governance Committee
  The Company’s Board of Directors meeting No. 1/2011 on February 23, 2011 had the resolution to appoint, authorize 
  the scope of responsibilities and consider remuneration of the Good Corporate Governance Committee. The Committee 
  consisted of 3 qualified persons with 3 years duration. (Details are under the Shareholding Structure and Management).
 In February 2011, Good Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed and improved the Good Corporate Governance 
Policy and Code of Conduct. The Committee also followed up the compliance of such policies. 
 • The Human Development Committee consists of 2 qualified persons, and their names and responsibilities are listed in the 
“Shareholding Structure and Management” topic.
 Investor Relation
 The Company’s Board of Directors realizes that financial and non-financial information result in decision making impact 
on investors and stakeholders. Then, disclosure on information must be importantly correct, complete, and adequate through 
various media channels of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the Company’s website. Moreover, meetings have been 
arranged between the Company’s Management team and securities analysts, and general investors in order to have question 
and answer sessions equally.
 Hence, the Company assigns the “Investor Relation Unit” to communicate and provides services on information, corporate 
news, and Company’s various activities to institutional investors, shareholders, analysts, related Government agencies, and the 
general public. Investors can contact this unit at telephone number 0-2511-0555 extension 1503, or at the website http://www.
rs.co.th/investor.html or at e-mail address: supanutp@rs.co.th
 Moreover, in 2011, the Company published information through many activities such as:-
 • Meeting of Analysts to announce the Company’s operating results in every quarter. The analysts had opportunity 
  to ask questions on various topics with the Management with the meeting’s documents to be published in the 
  Company’s website.
 • Participate with other registered companies in the “Opportunity Day”, organized by the Stock Exchange of Thailand in 
  March and June 2011.
 • Report on annual form F 56-1, and the annual report F 56-2 were published through SET Community Portal (SCP) 
  system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and through the Company’s website. The annual report would be delivered 
  to shareholders and general public annually.
 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
 The Board of Directors Independence from Management
The Company’s Board of Directors consists of 3 non-Executive Directors (3 Independent Directors), and 6 Executive Directors, 
details of each Directors are shown in topic “Description of Management Team and Other Persons Overseeing the Company”
 Chairman of the Board of Directors must not be the same person as the Chairman of Executive Committee, and represents 
major group of shareholders. However, as structure of the Company’s Board of Directors consists of 1/3 of Independent 
Directors, there is check and balance in business operations.
 The Company’s Board of Directors acknowledges that the 3 Independent Directors have qualified as per regulations 
stipulated by the Company as in details from “Management Structure of the Company”. The Company’s Board of Directors is in 
agreement and appoints Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom, the Independent Director, who has vast knowledge and experiences
in financial and accounting field, to become Chairman of the Audit Committee.
 The Board of Directors supports the concept of position successor which helps facilitate smooth operations. Moreover, 
the Board of Directors has made arrangement on executive development project in order to make planning preparation for
the position successor of the Chief Executive Officer, and high-level Executive (**) in case they cannot perform their duties.
 Suitability of the Board of Directors
 The Company’s Board of Directors has stipulated suitable qualifications for persons to hold this position as person with 
knowledge, experiences, and specific capability for Company’s benefit. This includes donating time, knowledge, capability,
and effort in performing duty for the Company. There is also regulations for all Directors and high level Executives(**)
to report their securities holding consistently to the Company’s Board of Directors. Directors are not allowed to hold
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position as Directors in the registered companies of more than 3 companies, and holding positions of Chairman of
Executive Committee, and high level Executive (**) in other registered companies must be approved by the Company’s
 Board of Directors beforehand.
 The Board of Directors’ Efficiency in Performing Its Duties
 Policy Stipulation
 The Company’s Board of Directors participates in regulating vision, mission, duty, strategy, target, business plan, and 
budget of the Company. This also includes supervision on the Management team to proceed as business plan, and agreed 
budget efficiently and effectively, arrangement on good corporate governance policy, internal control system, internal auditing 
and suitable risk management and policy, including consistently follow up on operating performances in the Board of Directors’ 
meeting. Moreover, the Board of Directors has to make consideration on regulations and separation of duties, and responsibilities 
clearly among the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management 
Committee, Good Corporate Governance Committee, Executive Committee, Human Development Committee and the 
Chief Executive Officer. 
 Management Supervision 
 The Company’s Board of Directors has to make evaluation on adequacy of internal control, and result on risk management 
and compliance with the good corporate governance policy at least once a year. On February 22, 2012, the Company’s Board 
of Directors meeting No. 1/2012 has evaluated on the adequacy of internal control, result on risk management and compliance 
with the good corporate governance policy.  
 Sub – Committees 
 The Company’s Board of Directors appoints the Sub-Committees to make details screening by regulating their responsibilities 
and scope of duties within each committee.
 Most members of the Sub-Committees are Independent Directors except the Executive Committee, Risk Management 
Committee, Good Corporate Governance Committee and Human Development Committee and the Chairman of the Board 
will not hold positions as member in all committees. Moreover, it also regulates Independent Directors as Chairman of each 
committee with exception in the Executive Committee, Risk Management Committee, Good Corporate Governance Committee 
and Human Development Committee. At present, the Company has 6 Sub-Committees of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee, Risk Management Committee, Good Corporate Governance Committee 
and Human Development Committee.
 Details concerning the member’ names, duties, and responsibilities are in topic “Shareholding Structure and Management”.              
 Company Secretary
 The Board of Directors has appointed the Chief Operating Officer to be the Company Secretary. The present Company 
Secretary is Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul. The Company Secretary duty is to ensure that the Company comply with the Good 
Corporate Governance of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The major role and duty of the Company Secretary are as following : 
 • Advise the legal, accounting and tax issue and necessary regulations to the Board of Directors.
 • Oversee the Board of Directors’ activities.
 • Coordinate the concerned party as to ensure the implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors.
 • Functioning investor relation, coordinate and communicate regulators such as the Securities and Exchange 
  Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand etc.
 Director Meeting
 The Director meetings are arranged at least quarterly and extraordinary meetings in between as deemed necessary. All 
meetings have apparently set-out agenda and planned meeting date and are intended to consistently monitor company’s 
performance. In case that the Company does not has a monthly meeting, the Company has the policy to send the monthly 
operational report to the Board of Directors, so that the Board of Directors can supervise, and control management’s operations 
consistently and effectively. Invitation, agenda and information hand-outs are duly distributed 7 days prior to the meeting so 
directors have a chance to familiarize themselves to the issues.
 Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer make decision on agendas for the Board of Directors’ 
meeting with emphasizing that important subjects have to be in the meeting agendas. Directors can freely submit agenda and 
the Board of Directors can access necessary information from the Chief Executive Officer.
 Independent Directors/ Audit Committee (the definition and qualification shown in Management Section) has attended all 
meetings. In 2011, there have been 5 meetings at the Company premises. Every director attends all meetings except
Mr. Kriengkai  Chetchotisak, who miss 1 meeting due to urgent business engagement.
 If any director has significant conflict of interest in any agenda, such director shall not attend the meeting during the 
consideration of that agenda.
 The Company’s Board of Directors has its policy in allowing the non executive Directors to conduct their own meeting
as deem necessary. This is to debate all issues concerning the Management without their present, and the Chief Executive Officer 
will be informed of the meeting result.
 Self-Evaluation
 The Company’s Board of Directors arranges for its self-evaluation annually by using the Company’s self-evaluation form. The 
Board of Directors will jointly consider their performances and problems in order to improve for more efficient
operations. Moreover, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will supply inputs on regulations for the
evaluation on performance of Chief Executive Officer and propose for the approval of the Board of Directors. Results
on the performance will be evaluated by the Company’s Board of Directors which only consists of Independent 
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 Directors for further improvement.
 The Company’s Board of Directors arranged for its self-evaluation every year. On February 22, 2012 in the Company’s Board 
of Directors’ meeting No. 1/2012, had made annual consideration on self-evaluation of the Company’s Board of Directors of 
2011, so that the Company’s Board of Directors could jointly consider the performances, and problems for further improvement. 
Results on performance of the Chief Executive Officer for the year 2011 had been evaluated by the Company’s Board of 
Directors which consisted of only Independent Directors for further consideration and improvement.
 Remuneration
 The Company has clearly and transparently stipulated policy on remuneration for Directors and Executives.
 During the ordinary shareholders’ meeting No. 1/2003 and the Company’s Board of Directors’ meeting No. 5/2003, 
remuneration for Directors was approved to be within the similar level of the same industry which was high enough to attract 
and protect the qualified Directors and be in accordance with the Company’s operating results. The Executives remuneration 
would be in accordance with the Company’s operating results, and individual Executives performance. For Chief Executive 
Officer’s performance evaluation, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee supplied inputs on regulations for the evaluation 
on performance of Chief Executive Officer and propose for the approval of the Board of Directors. Results on the performance 
were evaluated by the Company’s Board of Directors which only consisted of Independent Directors. (details on remuneration 
for Directors and Executives were shown in “Shareholding Structure of the Company).
 Directors and Executives’ Development
 The Company’s Board of Directors has the policy on assigning the present Director to introduce new Director to the Company, 
and lecturing on the summarization of the Company’s business plan, operating results, strategy, competitive situations, vision, 
corporate culture, corporate governance, business ethics and other details concerning the Company’s operation etc. 
 The Company’s Board of Directors has the policy to create and develop new knowledge for Directors and Executives by 
encouraging them to attend seminars and meetings which provide useful topics that have been arranged by the Thai Institute 
of Directors, and other related organizations in order to support efficient operations, with all costs to be financially supported by 
the Company (details were shown in “Description of Management Team and other persons overseeing the Company”).
 During the year 2011, the Company fully complied with the good corporate governance policy except on the following topic;
 1. Remunerations that Executive Directors   received from positions as Directors from other companies had not been 
disclosed as they were not the Company’s information.
 Monitoring Internal Use of Information 
 The company has explained to the administrators their responsibilities in reporting the number of shares in the company 
owned by them, their spouses and their children who are considered as minors, and any changes made to the holdings, to the 
Stock Exchange of Thailand, in accordance with Article 59, where the penalty is indicated in Article 275 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992). 
 Apart from the legislative measures, the company has the policy covering the internal information usage written in the 
Code of Conduct for the group, approved by the Board of Directors on March 1, 2006, to serve as a guideline to all directors, 
management and employees. The Code of Conduct was latest reviewed, improved and approved by the resolution of the Board 
of Directors Meeting No. 1/2012 held on February 22, 2012.
 In addition, the Company has laid out rules and regulations on the use of the company’s internal information as follows: 
 (1) The Director, Executive, staff members and the employees of the company are obliged to treat the internal information of 
the company with confidentiality. 
 (2) The Director, Executive, staff members and the employees of the company should not directly or indirectly disclose 
confidential or internal information of the company for the personal benefit of any individual. 
 (3) The Director, Executive, the staff members and the employees of the company should not buy, sell, transfer or receive the 
company’s assets by using the confidential or internal information that may cause direct or indirect damage to the company. 
 The above mentioned regulations include the spouses and children who are considered minors of the Board of Directors, 
the staff members and employees of the company. Any violation of the company’s regulations would be considered as a serious 
breach of those regulations which could lead to a penalty ranging from a verbal warning to being asked to leave the company. 
 Personnel 
 The number of employees in the company and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2011 is 1,078 persons of which 
categorized into RS employees of 775 persons and subsidiaries’ employees of 303 persons . 
 The total rewards of company staff as of the year 2011 amounted to Baht 548 million, paid in the form of salaries, overtime 
and welfare payments, bonus and provident fund. 
 Human Resources Development Policy
 1. The Company realizes the importance of employees as human capital, the most valuable factor that is instrumental
in steering the organization towards growth on a sustainable basis. Human resources development is divided into three levels
i.e. Organization Development, Career Development and Training Development.
  1.1 Organization development promotes joint participation and establishes understanding of Vision, Mission, and 
     Core Values and Corporate Strategy to give employees clear directions and instill the organizational culture of 
     RS Group into them. This starts from orientation for new employees, and through various internal activities
     such as RS team building activity, RS 4 Fits activity etc. Moreover, the HR framework, which is the system foundation, 
is being built towards the same standard of RS Group of companies, for example, performance management systems by using
KPI-based evaluation (Key Performance Indicator) and competency-based measurement, and other online systems.
  1.2 Employees’ Career Development defines progressive career path so that each employee will be aware of 
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     the promotion path, or possible transfer, or job rotation to other work units or positions. This also includes 
     regulations on promotion path, and clearly stipulated training duration on management courses for group to be 
     promoted to each management level through Management e-Learning. 
  1.3 Training Development is stipulated by using the Competency Base Training together with research on the Training 
     Need with development methods on both Public Training, and In-House Training. These trainings cover on 
     the Knowledge Development, Attitude Development, and Skill Development i.e., IT course, Marketing course, 
     Sale course, Creative course etc. The Company also organizes non-training activities and knowledge-sharing 
     programs in which employees are allowed to attend if they are interested which are in the form of special 
     lectures by successful executives and speakers from external organizations such as the case studies on How to 
     change our organization to be Digital Entertainment and Social Media Marketing on Facebook & Twitter etc.
 2. The Company indicates the importance in continuously building employee engagement through diverse activities on 
entertainment, sports, and employees’ well being such as RS Sport Day and New Year party etc.
 3. The Company also realizes in building appreciation towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) to employees.
 To be in accordance with the corporate vision, in 2011, Volunteering activities under campaign “RS Commando Spirit” were 
organized as follows:
 - Second-Hand Books Donation 84 Schools for HM the King 84th Birthday Anniversary Project with Raks Thai Foundation.
 -  Activity on blood donation on Mother’s day at Siriraj Hospital.
 -  RS – Coordinate our Hearts to Help Flood Victims Project at Siam Paragon
 -  Big Cleaning Day Project at Ha-Yak Ladphrao with Bangkok  Metropolitan Administration.
 4. Moreover, the Company also emphasizes on safety and health in the office by communicating knowledge, and news 
within the organization through various media, and organizes training activities on fire extinguishing and fire escaping methods.
 Internal Audit 
 The Company emphasized the importance of building and developing an internal control system sufficiently and appropriately 
in line with the business operations. This is to prevent the company’s assets from any damage or being exploited wrongfully, with 
the internal audit unit responsible for examining important financial transactions and reporting on their auditing which was carried 
out independently and directly by the internal audit committee. 
 The Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2012 was held on February 22, 2012 with three members of the audit committee taking 
part. The Board evaluated the requirements of the internal control system by requesting information from the administrators. 
They filled in evaluation forms on the internal control system of the company themselves. 
 The Company’s internal control system is evaluated in five sectors: the organization and surrounding environment, risk 
management; the administrators’ work control, public relations and information systems and the follow-up system. According 
to the Board, the company has a sufficient internal control system.
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No. Name/ Title Age Director
Category Education

% of 
share 

owned 

Family rela-
tionship
between 
executive

Experience in past 5 years
Director 

Training with
Thai Institute 
of Directors 
Association 

(IOD)

Director-
ship in other 
companies

that are 
not held by 
RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Period Job Title
Employ-

ment 
Record

1. Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak
Chairman 57 Authorized 

Director

Master’s Degree
Business

Administration
(Honorary)

Ramkhamhaeng 
University

11.33
Sibling of 
executive
No. 2-3

1992-
present Chairman

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP) 
2003

Nil.

2.
Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak

Vice Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

49 Authorized 
Director

Doctoral Degree
Business

Administration 
(Honorary)

Chandrakasem
Rajabhat University

Bachelor’s Degree
Political Science
Ramkhamhaeng 

University

23.23
Sibling of 
executive

No. 1 and 3

2003-
present

Vice
Chairman

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP) 
2003

Director of 
Chetchotisak 

Co., Ltd.
Director of 
SS2C Co., 

Ltd.
Director of 
Tiger Fun 
Co., Ltd.

Director of 
Primo Posto 

Co., Ltd.

1992-
present

Chief
Executive 

Officer

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

3.
Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak

Director and Vice Chairman 
to Executive Committee

46 Authorized 
Director

Bachelor’s Degre
Mass Communication

Bangkok University
7.98

Sibling of 
executive
No. 1-2

Mar. 2007-
present

Nomination 
and

Remuneration 
Committee 

Member

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP) 
2003

Director of 
Chetchotisak 

Co., Ltd.

2003-
present

Director 
and Vice 

Chairman to 
Executive 

Committee

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

October 
2003-

June 2005

Deputy
Managing 
Director –

Media
Business

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

4
Mr. Danaisidh  Peslapunt

Director and Executive Vice 
President

56 Authorized 
Director

Thai Bar Degree
Thai Bar Degree
Institute of Legal 

Education Thai Bar 
Association

Bachelor’s
Degree

Faculty of
Law

Ramkhamhaeng 
University

Certificate
International Trade Law

Institute of Legal 
Education Thai Bar 

Association

Certificate
Tax Law Institute of

Legal Education
Thai Bar

Association

0.05 Nil.

2007-
present

Executive 
Vice

President

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Directors
Certification 

Program (DCP) 
2008

Financial 
Statements for 
Directors (FSD) 

2008

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP)  
2008

Nil.

1997-2007 Legal
Advisor

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

RS Public Company Limited
Description of Management Team and other persons overseeing the Company
As at 31 December 2011
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5.
Mrs. Pornpan Techarungchaikul
Director and Executive Director

Chief Operating Officer
41 Authorized 

Director

Master’s Degree
Business

Administration
Sasin Graduate 

Institute of Business 
Administration

of Chulalongkorn 
University

Bachelor’s Degree
Statistics

Chulalongkorn
University

Executive
Development Program  
Thai Listed Companies

Association (EDP 4) 
2009

Nil. Nil.

April 2004-
present

Director 
and 

Execitive
Director

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Directors
Certification 

Program (DCP) 
2007

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP) 
2004

Nil.

July 2007-
present

Chief
Operating

Office

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

1-30 Jun.
2007-

Senior
Executive

Vice
President

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

April 2003-
May 2007

Deputy
Managing
Director

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

6.
Mr. Darm Nana

Director 
Chief Financial Officer

42 Authorized 
Director

Master’s Degree
Master of Business 

Administration (MBA)
University of Notre 

Dame, Indiana, U.S.A.

Bachelor’s Degree
Economics

Thammasat University

Nil. Nil.

September 
2007-

Present

Director 
and Chief 
Financial 
Officer

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP) 
2008

Directors
Certification 

Program (DCP) 
2008

Nil.
January 
2002-

September 
2007

Senior Vice 
President HSBC

7.
Mr. Phisit Dachanabhirom

Independent Director 
Audit Committee Chairman

70 Audit
Committee

Bachelor’s Degree
Accounting

Thammasat University

Commerce
Thammasat University

Certified Public 
Accountant License 

No. 966

Nil. Nil.

February 
2007-

present

Independent 
Director 

and Audit 
Committee 
Chairman

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Directors
Certification 

Program (DCP) 
2007

Audit
Committee 

Program (ACP) 
2005

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP)  
2004

Executive 
Chairman / 
Professional 

Alliance Group 
Limited

Indepent
Director and 

Audit
Committee 
Chairman / 

Jaymart Public 
Company 
Limited

Indepent Direc-
tor and Audit
Committee 
Chairman 
/ K-Tech 

Construction 
Public Company 

Limited

Director and 
Advisory of the 

Executive
Committee / 

Phuket Interna-
tional Hospital 

Co., Ltd.

Director /
Polifarm
Co., Ltd.

February 
2007-

present

Nomination
and 

Remuneration
Committee
Chairman

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

2001-
present

Executive
Chairman

Professional 
Alliance 
Group 
Limited

2003-
present

Independent
Director

and Audit
Committee

Jaymart 
Public 

Company 
Limited

2003-
present

Chairman
Independent

Director
and Audit

Committee

K-Tech 
Construction 

Public 
Company 
Limited

2002-
present

Chairman
Director and

Advisory 
of the 

Executive
Committee

Phuket
International 

Hospital 
Co., Ltd.

1992-
present

Director
Polifarm 
Co., Ltd.

No. Name/ Title Age Director
Category Education

% of 
share 

owned 

Family rela-
tionship
between 
executive

Experience in past 5 years
Director 

Training with
Thai Institute 
of Directors 
Association 

(IOD)

Director-
ship in other 
companies

that are 
not held by 
RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Period Job Title
Employ-

ment 
Record
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8.
General Pairoj  Panichsamai

Independent Director 
Audit Committee Member

64 Audit
Committee

Master’s Degree
Social Development
National Institute of 

Development
Administration

Bachelor’s Degree-
School of Law LL.N.

Ramkhamhaeng 
University

Nil. Nil.

January 
2007-

present

Independent 
Director 

and Audit 
Committee 

Member

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP)  
2007

Directors
Certification 

Program (DCP) 
2007

Audit
Committee 

Program (ACP) 
2007

Finance for 
Non-Finance 
Director (FN) 

2007

Nil.

February 
2007-

present

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration
Committee 
Chairman

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

2006

Deputy 
Supreme 

Command 
Headquarters

 (SCHQ)

Supreme 
Command 

Headquarters

2005

Chairman 
of the RTA 
Advisory 

Board

Royal Thai 
Army

2000

Commanding 
General Army 

Weapons 
Production 

Control 
Center

Royal Thai 
Army

9.
Mr. Witaya Danthamrongkul

Independent Director 
Audit Committee Member

49
Audit

Committee

Master’s Degree
Master of Business 

Administration (MBA)
Oregan State

University, U.S.A.
 

Bachelor’s Degree
Economics (First

Honour)
Thammasat University

Nil. Nil.

April 2007-
present
October 
2009-

present
May 2007-

present
Present
Present

2006-2007
2000-2001

Independent 
Director 

and Audit 
Committee 

Member

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Director
Accreditation 

Program (DAP)  
2007

Directors
Certification 

Program (DCP) 
2007

Independent 
Director and 

Audit
Committee 
Member / 

Prinsiri Public 
Company 
Limited

Independent 
Director 

and Audit 
Committee 

Member

Prinsiri 
Public 

Company 
Limited

Nomination 
and 

Remuneration 
Committee 
Chairman

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Associate 
Professor 
Level 9

Faculty of 
Commerce 

and
Accountancy 
/ Thammasat 

University

Lecturer of 
Faculty of 

Human 
Resources 

and 
Organization 
Management

Faculty of 
Commerce 

and
Accountancy 
/ Thammasat 

University

Director of 
MBA 

Journal 
Project

Faculty of 
Commerce 

and
Accountancy 
/ Thammasat 

University

Training 
Director

Institute For 
Small and 
Medium 

Enterprises 
Development 

(ISMED)

No. Name/ Title Age Director
Category Education

% of 
share 

owned 

Family rela-
tionship
between 
executive

Experience in past 5 years
Director 

Training with
Thai Institute 
of Directors 
Association 

(IOD)

Director-
ship in other 
companies

that are 
not held by 
RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Period Job Title
Employ-

ment 
Record
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10.
Mr. Komsan Chetchotisak
Chief Commercial Officer

36 -

Master’s Degree Illinois 
Institute of Technology

 
Bachelor’s Degree 

University of California, 
Santa Barbara

Nil.
Son of 

executive
No. 1

2009-
present

Chief
Commercial 

Officer RS Public 
Company 
Limited

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Sky-High 
Network Co., 

Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

KPMG 
(Thailand)

Nil. Nil.

2009-
present

Executive 
Vice

President - 
Film

2007-
present

Business
Managing

2004-2006
Director
Assistant 
Managing

2000-2002
Director
Financial 

Consultant

No. Name/ Title Age Director
Category Education

% of 
share 

owned 

Family rela-
tionship
between 
executive

Experience in past 5 years
Director 

Training with
Thai Institute 
of Directors 
Association 

(IOD)

Director-
ship in other 
companies

that are 
not held by 
RS Public 
Company 
Limited

Period Job Title
Employ-

ment 
Record
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 Details and information of related party transactions of the Company, subsidiary companies, and related companies are 
illustrated in Note 7 of the financial statements as of December 31, 2011. The Company’s Audit Committee had examined the 
related party transactions and made a remark that those related party transactions are in accordance with general conditions 
and normal business operations. 
 In 2011 from January 2011, the Company and its subsidiaries underwent related party transactions with individuals who may 
possess a conflict of interest as follows: 

Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions

Person who may encounter conflicts Relationship

Chetchotisak Company Limited

Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak is a director and shareholder holding 18.70% 

of the paid-up capital of Chetchotisak Co., Ltd. 

Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak is a director and shareholder holding 14.35%

of the paid-up capital of Chetchotisak Co., Ltd. 

He is also a director and shareholder holding 7.98%

of the Company’s paid-up capital.

Miss Malee Chetchotisak is a director and shareholder holding 14.50% 

of the paid-up capital of Chetchotisak Co., Ltd.

She is a sibling of Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak and

Mr. Suwat Chetchotisak.

Mr. Kriengkai Chetchotisak 
He is a director and shareholder holding 11.33%

of the Company’s paid-up capital. 

Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak 
He is a director and shareholder holding 23.23%

of the Company’s paid-up capital. 

SS2C Co., Ltd.
Mr. Surachai Chetchotisak is a director and shareholder

holding 30.00% of the paid-up capital of SS2C Co., Ltd. 

Remark : The shareholding proportion of persons who may encounter conflicts was dated on 31 December 2011.

 Nature of Related Party Transactions and Pricing Conditions and Policy 
 The pricing of related party transactions was principally concentrated on the assets rental and appropriate determined 
based on the market price and other conditions insignificantly different from those in the market. The related party transactions 
comprised of : 
 Office Rental 
 In the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company and subsidiaries made payment of the office 
rental, central service fee, public utilities expense and other rentals to Chetchotisak Company Limited (representing the party with 
whom the conflict of interest may arise) in the amount of Baht 67.39 million. 
 The party with whom the conflict of interest may arise collected the rental and central service fee from the company at the rate of 
Baht 290-300 per square meter. For the rental of studios and other nearby buildings, the charter collection was applied to rental and 
central service fee (charter service fee collection means the rental and service fee were charged to the whole building rather than the 
number of square meters based on the conditions of each building for rent). The mentioned rate was reasonable when compared to 
the rental for nearby buildings, which were charged for Baht 380-800 per square meter. 
 However, the office the Company rented from Chetchotisak Company Limited was the office Chetchotisak Company
Limited rented from the Company’s director and improved the townhouse utility space into the office. The Company
provided facilitation of public utilities and charged the rental/service fees at the charter rate, with an average rate about
Baht 260 per square meter (calculate from rental / service charge as total package cost divided by average usage area of
the building) which was at lower average rate than the Chetchotisak building 1-3. This was reasonable rate as in the detailed
comparison in previous section. Moreover, reason that the Company had to sub-rent from the Chetchotisak
Company Limited, because this company was an expert in office rental management.
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Office Rental

Building/ Address Renter Rent by

Rented 
space 

(square 
metre)

Rental 
fee,

central 
service 

fee/ 
month     
(million 
Baht)

Contract period

Approved by 
(**)

start end ( * )

1. Chetchotisak
Building 1

419/1 Soi Ladphrao 15,
Jatujak, Bangkok

Chetchotisak 
Co., Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

4,146 1.22 June 2009 May 2012
Board of 
Directors

2. Chetchotisak
Building 2

419/2 Soi Ladphrao 15,
Jatujak, Bangkok

Chetchotisak 
Co., Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

4,175 1.22 June 2009 May 2012
Board of 
Directors

Sky-High 
Network 
Co., Ltd.

1,200 0.36 June 2009 May 2012
Board of 
Directors

RS In-store 
Media Co., 

Ltd.
445 0.13 June 2009 May 2012

Board of 
Directors

3. Chetchotisak
Building 3

419/3 Soi Ladphrao 15,
Jatujak, Bangkok

Chetchotisak 
Co., Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

1,932 0.56 July 2010 July 2013
Board of 
Directors

RS Inter-
national 
Broad-
casting 

& Sports 
Manage-

ment 
Co.,Ltd.

310 0.09 July 2010 April 2011
Board of 
Directors

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

310 0.09 May 2011 July 2013
Board of 
Directors

4. Building 164/74
Soi Ladphrao 1,

Jatujak, Bangkok

Chetchotisak 
Co., Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

(Lump 
sum 

price)
0.35 June 2009 May 2012

Board of 
Directors
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Note :
*  The rental agreement may be renewed at expiry. (The rental agreement renewal may not be automatically enabled and the  
 reconsideration at any renewal shall be made).
** The Related Party Transactions were approved and disclosed as per the regulations of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
***  This agreement was proceeded by Management since the size of the transaction did not meet the criteria that required the  
 approval of the Board of Directors as per the regulations of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Land Rental 
 In the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company and subsidiaries made payment of land 
rental to Chetchotisak Company Limited in the amount of Baht 2.53 million and to SS2C Co., Ltd. in the amount of Baht 0.30 
million, respectively. 
 The Company and subsidiary company rented the land from related parties for the purpose of building the office, car park 
and warehouse. The office incurred rather low cost and was of only one storey. 
 Chetchotisak Company Limited charged the land rental at the rate of Baht 170-220 per square wah, which was considered 
reasonable when compared to the rental of nearby land. The rental details were as follows: 

Land Rental

Type Renter Rent by
Contract term 

( * )

Rental fee/ 
month
(Baht)

Approved 
by (**)

Remark

1. Land 1,609 square wah 
Soi Ladphrao  15
Jatujak, Bangkok

Chet
chotisak
Co., Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

August 2008 - 
July 2011

204,600

Management 
(***)

Did not renew 
the contract with 
Chetchotisak Co., 

Ltd., but sign 
contract directly 
with third party.YAAK

Co., Ltd.
Sep 2008- July 

2011
82,500

5. Building 203/18-20
Soi Ladphrao 15,
Jatujak, Bangkok

Mr. Kriengkai
Chetcho
tisak /

Chetchotisak 
Co., Ltd.

Thai 

Copyright 

Collection 

Co., Ltd. / 

RS Public 

Company 

Limited

(Lump 

sum 

price)

0.17 June 2009 May 2012
Board of 

Directors

6. Building 203/34-36
Soi Ladphrao 15,
Jatujak, Bangkok

Mr. Kriengkai
Chetcho
tisak /

Chetchotisak 
Co., Ltd.

Thai 
Copyright 
Collection 
Co., Ltd.

(Lump 
sum 

price)
0.14 June 2009 May 2012

Board of 
Directors

Building/ Address Renter Rent by

Rented 
space 

(square 
metre)

Rental 
fee,

central 
service 

fee/ 
month     
(million 
Baht)

Contract period

Approved by 
(**)

start end ( * )
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Note :
* The rental agreement may be renewed at expiry. (The rental agreement renewal may not be automatically enabled and the 
 reconsideration at any renewal shall be made).
** The Related Party Transactions were approved and disclosed as per the regulations of the Capital Market Supervisory  Board.
*** This agreement was proceeded by Management since the size of the transaction did not meet the criteria that required the 
 approval of the Board of Directors as per the regulations of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Purchase of Fixed Assets 
 -Nil-
 Guarantee 
 -Nil-
 The Necessity and Rationale of the Related Party Transactions
 All related party transactions are done under the necessity and rationale of the transactions to optimize the firm benefit. 2011, 
the related party transactions between the Company and the subsidiary companies and related parties, the core transaction of 
which are Land rental, Office rental and Guarantee, were under normal course of business, no special condition and no transfer 
of interest. Pricing, fee rate and/or interest rate could be compared with other entities’ transactions and has been disclosed in 
the notes to financial statements of 2011.
 The Audit Committee has reviewed the related party transactions such as sales and purchase of goods or assets, copyright, 
production service, organizing concerts and marketing activities, sales of advertising, services, loan interest, and etc., disclosed 
in the notes to financial statements of 2011 and has the following comments.
 The mentioned transactions occurred under normal course of business, necessity and rationale of the connected transactions 
to optimize the firm benefit.
 Measures or Steps of Approval in Related Party Transactions
 The Company has set a policy for the approval of related party transactions. The related party transactions has rooted in 
necessity, rationale and optimal of the firm benefit and conditions are indifferent to the transaction with external parties. In case 
of the significant related party transactions, conducted in accordance with the rule governing listed securities, all approval must 
be consented by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors and Shareholders’ meeting excluding votes of the related persons. 
Nevertheless, all procedures must be in line with concerned regulations of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
 Policy and Future Potential of Related Party Transactions, including acquisition and disposal of assets
 The Company still maintains the policy for transactions between the Company and the subsidiary companies such as office 
rental, land rental and guarantee of loan from bank by the Company and the Company’s directors. However, the Company has 
no policy that may lead to conflict of interests between the related persons (such as loan and guarantee of loan etc.), except for 
the case that will optimize the firm benefit, and conditions are indifferent or better than the transaction with external parties. The 
Company will ensure that all related party transactions according to concerned regulations of the Capital Market Supervisory 
Board, will be consented by the Board of Directors and Shareholders’ meeting.

2. Land 404 square wah 
Soi Ladphrao 15
Jatujak, Bangkok

Chet
chotisak 
Co., Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

July 2009 - 
June 2012

86,000
Management 

(***)

Terminate the 
contract on

January 2011

SS2C
Co., Ltd.

RS Public 
Company 
Limited

January 2011-
June 2011

86,000
Management 

(***)

Terminate the 
contract on

January 2011

3. Land 52 square wah 
Soi Ladphrao 15 Jatujak, 

Bangkok

Chet
chotisak 
Co., Ltd.

Sky-High 
Network 
Co., Ltd.

June 2009 
-May 2012

5,000
Management 

(***)

Type Renter Rent by
Contract term 

( * )

Rental fee/ 
month
(Baht)

Approved 
by (**)

Remark
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Management
Discussion and Analysis

Financial Position and Performance
 Summary of Financial Information

 Financial Statement Information
RS Public Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2009 – 2011

Description

2009 2010 2011

(audited)    % (audited)    % (audited)    %

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 112,709 6.6 364,371 23.4 282,174 15.1

Accounts receivable –others – net 518,068 30.4 487,009 31.3 628,006 33.5

Inventories – net 47,636 2.8 52,434 3.4 37,392   2.0

Other current assets 358,579 21.0 258,922 16.6 267,837 14.3 

Total Current Assets 1,036,992 60.9 1,162,736 74.6 1,215,409 64.9 

Non-Current Assets

Property, building and equipment – net 171,973 10.1 135,476 8.7 111,763   6.0

Intangible assets – net 382,286 22.4 163,112 10.5 469,231 25.1

Other non-current assets 112,377 6.6 96,370 6.2 76,727   4.1

Total Non-Current Assets 666,637 39.1 394,957 25.4 657,721 35.1 

Total Assets 1, 703,629 100.0 1, 557,693 100.0 1,873,129 100.0
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LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities 

Overdrafts and short-term loans from

financial institutions
263,500 15.5      -    -       - -

Account payable – others 236,952 13.9 225,314 14.5 232,613 12.4

Current portion of liabilities under

financial lease agreements
7,103 0.4 8,554 0.5 2,488   0.1

Long-term loans due and payable 152,200 8.9 15,000 1.0       -    -

Deferred income – others 205,387 12.1 86,380 5.5 66,481 3.5

Other current liabilities 252,383 14.8 328,762 21,1 363,143 19.4 

Total Current Liabilities 1,117,524 65.6 664,010 42.6 664,724 35.5

Non-Current Liabilities 

Liabilities under financial lease

agreements
7,826 0.5 3,833 0.2 10,982 0.6

Long-term loans from financial institu-

tions
20,600 1.2     -   -     -   -

Liabilities for employee benefit    -   -      -   - 15,971 0.9

Other non-current liabilities 3,259 0.2 1,902 0.1 6,142 0.3

Total Non-Current Liabilities 31,685 1.9 5,735 0.4 33,095 1.8

Total Liabilities 1,149,209 67.5 669,745 43.0 697,819 37.3

Description

2009 2010 2011

(audited)    % (audited)    % (audited)    %
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Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital 900,000 52.8 1,026,000 65.9 1,026,000 54.8 

Paid-up capital 700,000 41.1 708,069 45.5 882,654 47.1

Premium on common stocks 204,201 12.0 5,721 0.4 129,502 6.9

Other surpluses (16,594) (1.0) (16,594) (1.1) (16,594) (0.9)

Retained earnings (loss)

Appropriated – legal reserves - - 7,229 0.5 17,959 1.0

Unappropriated (344,679) (20.2) 168,945 10.8 146,908 7.8

Total Majority Interest 542,928 31.9 873,369 56.1 1,160,429 62.0

Minority interest 11,491 0.7 14,580 0.9 14,881 0.8

Total Shareholders’ Equity 554,419 32.5 887,949 57.0 1,175,310 62.7

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders’ Equity
1,703,629 100.0 1,557,693 100.0 1,873,129 100.0 

Description

2009 2010 2011

(audited)    % (audited)    % (audited)    %
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2009 – 2011

Description
2009 2010 2011

(audited)    % (audited)    % (audited)    %

Revenues

Income from music business 926,183 42.6 1,053,038 36.4 934,477 34.2 

Income from media business 537,292 24.7 663,379 22.9 941,852 34.5 

Income from show business 527,427 24.3 533,357 18.4 814,141 29.8 

Income from film business 133,516 6.1 62,280 2.2 20,230 0.7 

Income from sports business  50,051 2.3 583,845 20.2 18,655 0.7  

Total Revenues 2,174,469 100.0 2,895,899 100.0 2,792,356 100.0

Cost of sales and services* 1,661,835 76.4 1,967,538 67.9 1,853,162 67.9

Gross Profit 512,634 23.6 928,361 32.1 876,194 32.1

Other income 37,803 1.7 21,709 0.7 35,666 1.3

Income before expenses 550,437 25.3 950,069 32.8 911,860 33.4

Selling expenses 53,649 2.5 84,610 2.9 101,264 3.7

Administrative expenses* 387,215 17.8 465,897 16.1 481,065 17.6

Amortization of employee benefit      -   -      -   - 9,859 0.4

Total expenses 440,864 20.3 550,507 19.0 592,188 21.7

Profit (loss) before financing cost and

corporate income tax
109,574 5.0 399,562 13.8 319,673 11.7

Financing cost 30,762 1.4 13,901 0.5 2,707 0.1

Corporate income tax 2,583 0.1 59,411 2.1 97,304 3.6

Net income and

comprehensive income 
76,228 3.5 326,249 11.3 219,661 8.0

Income and comprehensive

income statement

Net Profit (Loss) of Majority Interest 75,589 3.5 316,652 10.9 209,352 7.7

Net loss (profit) of minority interest 639 0.0 9,598 0.3 10,310 0.4

76,228 3.5 326,249 11.3 219,661 8.0

Basic earnings per share

Majority interest (Baht) 0.11 0.45 0.24

No. of ordinary shares 700,000 703,162 870,696

Earnings per diluted share

Majority interest (Baht)       0.11       0.41      0.23

Weighted average number of shares 700,000 767,734 929,102
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Description

2009* 2010 2011

(audited)    % (audited)    % (audited)    %

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net profit 76,228 67.6 326,249 89.5 219,661 77.8 

Reconciliation of net profit (loss)

to cash flows received

from (paid in) operating  activities

Depreciation and amortization 100,209 88.9 309,996 85.1 85,419 30.3 

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(bad debt recoveries) and

withholding tax deducted at source

(6,820) (6.1) (4,607) (1.3) (2,119) (0.8)

Allowance for diminution in value of

inventories (reverse)
(498) (0.4) 142 0.0 5,218 1.8 

Allowance for sales returns (reverse) – 

net
(13,190) (11.7) (2,259) (0.6) (21,407) (7.6)

Allowance for asset impairment (reverse) 8,532 7.6 39,432 10.8 1,901 0.7 

Allowance for doubtful accounts on

Short-term loans
-    - 2,039 0.6 (2,039) (0.7)

Estimates of losses from lawsuits       -    -       -    - 3,861 1.4

(Profit) loss from the sale and disposal

of Equipment
501 0.4 (279) (0.1) (3,556) (1.3)

Provision for employee benefit       -    -       -    - 17,391 6.2

Interest received (2,118) (1.9) (858) (0.2) (4,265) (1.5)

Interest expenses 30,762 27.3 13,901 3.8 2,707 1.0

Income tax 2,583 2.3 59,411 16.3 97,322 34.5

Profit (Loss) from operations

before changes in operating

assets and liabilities

196,190 174.1 743,169 204.0 400,096 141.8

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended December 31, 2009 – 2011
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Operating assets (increase) decrease

Accounts receivable 34,234 30.4 38,219 10.5 (139,156) (49.3) 

Inventories 29,859 26.5 (4,940) (1.4) 9,824 3.5 

Other current assets 9,812 8.7 83,547 22.9 3,218 1.1 

Other non-current assets (10,323) (9.2) 102 0.0 (4,303) (1.5)

Operating liabilities increase

(decrease)

Accounts payable (55,618) (49.3) (23,465) (6.4) 14,663 5.2

Other current liabilities 102,933 91.3 (40,875) (11.2) 8,050 2.9

Liabilities for employee benefit

decreased
      -    -       -    - (1,402) (0.5)

Other non-current liabilities (2,448) (2.2) (1,356) (0.4) 379 0.1 

Cash from tax refund 28,845 25.6 43,969 12.1 26,435 9.4 

Withholding tax payment deducted at 

Source
(52,237) (46.3) (68,590) (18.8) (80.639) (28.6) 

Net cash provided by

operating activities
281,246 249.5 769,780 211.3 237,148 84.0

Description

2009 2010 2011

(audited)    % (audited)    % (audited)    %
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Description
2009 2010 2011

(audited)    % (audited)    % (audited)    %

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Interest income 2,118 1.9 858 0.2 4,020 1.4

Increase in short-term loans to related 

Individuals and parties       -    -       -    - (8,102) (2.9)

(Increase) decrease in short-term loans

to related individuals and parties
5,024 4.5 9,267 2.5       -    - 

(Increase)Decrease in other short-term 

loans
2,811 2.5 834 0.2 (901) (0.3)

Increase in investments in subsidiaries (691) (0.6)    -   -    -   -

Short-term investments-maturity

of 12 Months fixed deposit
   -   - (4,083) (1.1) (124) (0.0)

Equipment purchase (15,392) (13.7) (36,036) (9.9) (33,313) (11.8) 

Cash from the sale of assets 8,466 7.5 4,790 1.3 4,222 1.5

Increase in intangible assets (64,053) (56.8) (56,890) (15.6) (322,990) (114.5) 

Net cash provided (used)

by investing Activities
(61,717) (54.8) (81,261) (22.3) (357,188) (126.6) 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Interest payment (30,724) (27.3) (14,004) (3.8) (2,741) (1.0) 

Increase (decrease) in overdrafts

from financial institutions
(8,891) (7.9)     -    -     -    - 

Receipt of short-term loans from

financial Institutions
74,500 66.1 104,000 28.5 45,000 15.9 

Repayment of short-term loans to

financial Institutions
(394,200) (349.8) (367,500) (100.9) (45,000) (15.9) 

Receipt of long-term loans from

financial Institutions
73,100 64.9 14,600 4.0      -    -

Debt payment of long-term loan from

Financial institutions
     -    - (172,400) (47.3) (15,000) (5.3) 

Debt payment under financial lease

Agreements
(13,189) (11.7) (8,833) (2.4) (12,117) (4.3)

Changes in minority interest 1,275 1.1      -    -      -    -

Dividend receipt      -    -      -    - (220,659) (78.2)

Cash receipt from minority

shareholders for additional investment

in subsidiaries

(1,965) (1.7) (6,509) (1.8) (10,008) (3.5)

 Payment for shares      -    - 13,789 3.8 298,367 105.7

Net cash provided (used) 

by financing activities
(300,094) (266.3) (436,857) (119.9) 37,843 13.4 

Net decrease in cash and

cash equivalents
(80,566) (71.5) 251,662 69.1 (82,197) (29.1)

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 193,275 171.5 112,709 30.9 364,371 129.1 

Ending cash and cash equivalents 112,709 100.0 364,371 100.0 282,174 100.0

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow (Cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2009 – 2011

*New type of description items were rearranged by management in 2009
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 Financial Ratios
RS Public Company Limited

Key Financial Ratios
As at December 31, 2009 – 2011

Financial Ratio 2009 2010 2011

Liquidity ratio

Liquidity ratio (time) 0.93 1.75 1.83 

Quick ratio (time) 0.56 1.28 1.38 

Cash ratio (time) 0.24 0.86 0.36

Receivable turnover (time) 4.11 5.76 4.90 

Average collection period (day) 89 64 75 

Inventory turnover (time) 19.19 26.08 25.38 

Average number of days sales (day) 20 14 15

Payable turnover (time) 6.66 9.37 9.02 

Credit period (day) 55 39 41 

Cash cycle (day) 54 39 49 

Profitability Ratios

Gross profit margin (%) 23.58% 32.06% 32.10%

Operating profit margin (%) 3.30% 13.05% 10.41% 

Other profit margin (%) 1.71% 0.74% 1.29%

Net profit margin (%) 3.42% 10.85% 7.57%

Return on equity (%) 14.72% 44.72% 20.59%

Operating Efficiency Ratios

Return on assets (%) 6.11% 24.50% 18.64%

Return on fixed assets (%) 70.66% 251.13% 220.03% 

Asset turnover (time) 1.23 1.14 0.97

Earnings before interest, tax, and 

depreciation
9.48% 15.98% 14.65% 

Financial Policy Ratios

Debt to equity ratio (time) 2.12 0.77 0.60

Interest coverage ratio (time) 3.56 28.74 118.08

Debt service coverage – 

cash basis (time)
0.69 1.34 0.76

Share Information

Book value per share (Baht) 0.78 1.24 1.33

Net profit

attributable to equity holders of                                                                                           

the majority interest holders per share 

(Baht)

0.11 0.45 0.24
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 Management Discussion and Analysis
 The management discussion and analysis in this section has been prepared from the performances of RS Public Company 
Limited and the companies within RS Group (“subsidiaries”) in accordance with the financial statements examined by the auditor 
for the year ending December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011. To clearly illustrate the overall performance of RS Group of Companies, 
the operations are divided into 5 categories i.e. music business, media business, show business, film business, and sports 
business, all of which are the core business operations of the Company.

 Previous Performance by Business Category
 According to the financial statements for the year ended December 2010, and 2011, the Company’s revenues can be divided 
by business category as follows :

Revenue

By business category

2010 2011 % Change

Baht: Million percentage Baht: Million percentage Baht: Million percentage

Music business 1,053.0 36.1% 934.5 33.8% (118.5) (11.3%)

Media business 663.4 22.7% 941.9 34.1% 278.5 42.0%

Show business 533.4 18.3% 814.1 29.4% 280.7 52.6%

Film business 62.3 2.1% 20.2 0.7% (42.1) (67.6%)

Sports business 583.8 20.0% 18.7 0.7% (565.1) (96.8%)

Total revenues from

Sales and services
2,895.9 99.3% 2,729.4 98.7% (166.5) (5.7%)

Other revenues 21.7 0.7% 35.6 1.3% 13.9 64.1%

Total Revenues 2,917.6 100.0% 2,765.0 100.0% (152.6) (5.2%)
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 Comparing financial statements for the year 2011 with 2010, the overall operating performance was shown 
as follows:
  The consolidated financial statements for the year ending on December 31, 2011 showed the net profit of Baht 209.4 million, 
decreasing by Baht 107.3 million or 33.9% compared with the net profit of Baht 316.7 million in 2010 from the following causes.
 Revenues
 The consolidated revenues on the year ending December 31, 2011 amounted to Baht 765.0 million, a net decrease of Baht 
152.6 million or 5.2% from 2010 which could be explained by each category as follows: 
 Income from Music Business
 Income from music business consisted of incomes from the distribution of music production goods of CD, VCD, and DVD, 
income from digital business, and income from copyrights collection. In 2011, the Company registered an income of Baht 934.5 
million from its music business, a decrease of Baht 118.5 million or 11.3% from 2010.  Main decrease was from decreased in 
income of the “Supermao *339” project. Income from the distribution of CD, VCD, and DVD products decreased marginally from 
previous year while income from the copyrights collection increased.  
 Income from Media Business
 Income from media business consisted of incomes from television, radio, and modern trade business. In 2011, the Company 
generated income of Baht 941.9 million, an increase of Baht 278.5 million or 42.0% from 2010. This was due to increase in 
income from all type of media business especially from television which registered an increase mainly from the satellite television. 
The satellite television increased from 2 channels in the previous year to 4 channels in 2011 i.e. “Sabaidee” TV, 
“YOU” channel, Channel 8, and “Yaak TV, which resulted in increase in income for the satellite television to 467.1%. Moreover, 
from the popular rating of satellite television from “Nielsen Research” on the month of January, 2012, , “Sabaidee” TV and “YOU” 
channel received number 1 and 2 rating respectively in their music program’s group, and channel 8 received number 2 rating on 
entertainment variety group. This research showed the continuous growing in popularity among increasing audiences. Income 
from the free TV business in the previous year showed an increase growth even though the air-time had been reduced from 
previous year. This was due to reducing air-time from some less income generated programs. 
 Radio media business showed an increase in income from advertising sales, as in 2011 and 2010, the Company had only 
one radio wavelength i.e. COOL 93.0. From the most popular radio rating of “Nielsen Research” in the past years to the present, 
COOL 93.0 has been top at number one rating in the easy listening type due to its continuous popularity among listeners.
 Income from Show Business 
 Income from show business consisted of incomes from concert’s organization and marketing activities, artists’ administration, 
and production service. In 2011, the Company generated income from the show business of Baht 814.1 million, an increase of 
Baht 280.7 million, or 52.6% from 2010. This was from increase in more finished jobs in concert’s organization and marketing 
activities, and production service than previous year. The main concerts this year were Raptor, Kamikaze, K-OTIC,and Love 6 
with 9 men, while main concerts from previous year were Xcoolsive  Moment Concert-Parn Thanapon, Pong Lang Sa-Orn – Bab 
Babban, and Kamikaze Wave Concert. 
 Income from Film Business
 In 2011, income from the film business amounted to Baht 20.2 million, a decrease of Baht 42.1 million or 67.6% from 2010. 
There was only 1 film on show which was “Bangkok Kungfu”, while there were 2 films on show in previous year i.e. “Sarm Yarn”, 
and “Fan Mai”.  
 Income from Sports Business
 Income from sports business consisted of incomes from copyrights administration, and income from indoor football field 
project. Income from sports business in 2011 recorded Baht 18.7 million, a decrease of Baht 565.1 million, or 96.8% from 2010 
which was due from income through the live television broadcasting of the 2010 World Cup in previous year, and including lesser 
income from the indoor football field project under the brand name “S-One”.
 Cost, Selling and Administrative Expenses, Gross Profit Margin, and Net Profit (Loss)
 The cost of sales and production for the year ending December 31, 2011 amounted to Baht 1,853.2 million, a decrease of 
Baht 114.4 million or .8% comparing to 2010 which decreased at a similar ratio to the decrease in income. In 2011, the majority 
of cost increases were cost in show business due to increase in work quantity, and including additional investment cost in 
satellite television business with additional 2 channels. However, cost in the sports business, music business, and film business 
reduced from previous year.    
 The gross profit margin in 2011 was at 32.1%, which was similar to figure in 2010. The main gross profit margin was from the 
music business, radio media business, modern trade media business and show business.  
 Selling and administrative expenses in 2011 amounted to Baht 582.3 million, an increase of Baht 31.8 million or 5.8% from 
2010 was mainly due from increase in the selling expenses and expenses concerning employees. Moreover, the financial cost in 
2011 amounted to Baht 2.7 million, a decrease of Baht 11.2 million or 80.5% from 2010 which was due to repayments of long 
term loans during the year.
 From the overall performance in 2011, the Company registered a net profit of 7.7%, showing a decrease when
comparing to 10.9% figure in 2010.
 Assets
 As at December 31, 2011, the Company had the total assets of Baht 873.1 million of which
64.9% was current assets and 35.1% was non-current assets.
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 Total assets in 2011 increased from 2010 by 20.3% which was mainly caused by increasing
of the net intangible assets of 187.7% from payment of various copyrights fees. However, other trade accounts receivable 
increased 29.0% from an increase of additional income on production service during the second half of the year.
 Liquidity
 Cash Flow
 For the year ending December 31, 2011 the Company’s net cash and cash equivalents was at Baht 282.2 million, a decrease 
of Baht 82.2 million comparing to the previous year. This was mainly due to investment activities which mostly invested in various 
copyrights investments. However, cash flows from operating activities increased from cash received in the Company’s operation. 
Cash flow from financing activities increased from payment of the Company’s shares during early 2011, as shareholders 
exercised their rights on RS-W1.

Key Liquidity Ratios

 At the end of fiscal year 2011, the Company’s overall liquidity ratio was in a good condition as its current asset was more 
than current liabilities comparing to previous year. The Company showed continuously inflowing net cash flow from its operating 
activities while outflowing net cash flow was mainly for investments with good returns in the future which indicated strong 
financial strength of the Company. 
 Sources of Funds
 Liabilities
 Total liabilities, in 2011, increased 4.2% from figure in 2010 which was due to an increase of non-current liabilities at 477.1% from 
record on liabilities for employee benefit in accordance with the new accounting standard, and an increase on the current portion 
of liabilities under financial lease. As at December 31, 2011 the Company had total liabilities of Baht 697.8 million which consisted 
mainly of general trade liabilities, such as accounts payable, and other payable, accrued expenses and deferred income. 
 Shareholders’ Equity
 As at December 31, 2011, the shareholders’ equity of the majority interest was Baht 1,160.4 million, representing a year-on-
year increase by 32.9% as a result of additional share payments from shareholders who exercised their RS-W1 rights which 
were to be expired in early 2011.

Debt to Equity Ratio

 Debt to equity ratio in 2011 was 0.60 time, decreasing from that 20.77 time in 2010 due to an increase mainly in capital.  
 Key factors and influence that may affect the performance and financial position of the Company in the future
 None
 Professional Fee
 a) Audit Fee
  RS Group of Companies paid the audit fee for the year 2011 and 2010 in the amounts of Baht 2.4 million and Baht 2.9 
  million respectively.
 b) Others (Non-Audit Fee)
  None

2009 2010 2011

Liquidity ratio (time) 0.93 1.75 1.83

Quick ratio (time) 0.56 1.28 1.38

2009 2010 2011

Debt to Equity Ratio (time) 2.12 0.77 0.60
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 To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of RS Public Company Limited
 I have audited the consolidated statements of financial position of RS Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at 
December 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of 
changes in equity and the consolidated statements of cash flows for year ended December 31, 2011. I have also audited the 
separate statements of financial position of RS Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2011, and the related separate 
statements of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows for the year ended 
December 31, 2011. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness 
and completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my 
audit.  The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, of RS Public Company Limited and its 
subsidiaries, and also the separate financial statement of RS Public Company Limited, presented here with for comparative 
purposes, were audited by another auditor, and expressed an unqualified opinion as report dated February 23, 2011.
 I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that I plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation.  I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.
 In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respect, the consolidated financial 
position of RS Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2011, and the consolidated results of their 
operations and their cash flows for the year ended, and the separate financial position of RS Public Company Limited as at 
December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 
 As explained in notes 3, 4 and 5 to the financial statements, with effect from January 1, 2011, the Company has adopted 
certain new and revised financial reporting standards. The financial statements for the year ended  December 31, 2010, which 
are included in the accompanying financial statements for comparative purposes, have been restated accordingly.

(Ms. Wimolsri Jongudomsombut) 
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 3899
Karin Audit Company Limited
Bangkok, Thailand
February 22, 2012
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND  2010

Notes

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents  282,173,935.93  364,370,910.02  169,924,309.90  253,907,596.35 

Temporary investment

- fixed deposit with maturity of 

twelve months

 4,207,531.34  4,083,120.00  -    -   

Trade accounts receivable-net

- Others-net 8  628,005,912.50  487,009,119.81  320,245,557.20  322,691,638.68 

- Related parties-net 7, 8  -    -    151,068,212.76  116,776,855.46 

Short-term loans to related

parties - net
7  10,000,000.00  1,898,321.44  292,026,148.36  22,498,321.44 

Short-term loans to others - net  2,940,000.00  -    2,380,000.00  -   

Inventories - net 7, 9  37,391,683.36  52,434,345.00  24,481,643.64  42,302,504.83 

Accrued income 7  140,260,502.46  139,579,885.84  103,605,436.23  106,193,567.80 

Revenue department receivable  39,208,473.18  21,935,050.88  75,000.00  -   

Other current assets 10  71,220,537.02  91,425,313.41  32,277,232.06  45,258,207.99 

Total Current Assets  1,215,408,575.79  1,162,736,066.40  1,096,083,540.15  909,628,692.55 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments in subsidiaries - net 11  -    -    331,575,719.15  346,235,389.84 

Other long-term investment - net  1,457,520.71  2,348,404.02  -    -   

Property plant and

equipment - net
12  111,763,355.94  135,475,848.41  71,796,622.02  64,168,104.35 

Intangible assets - net 13  469,230,749.57  163,111,565.74  122,167,576.05  78,951,893.72 

Withholding tax deducted

at source
 57,387,019.21  80,292,386.35  37,813,794.91  39,651,743.67 

Other non-current assets  17,882,038.86  13,728,846.86  9,078,016.50  7,148,727.50 

Total Non-Current Assets  657,720,684.29  394,957,051.38  572,431,728.63  536,155,859.08 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,873,129,260.08  1,557,693,117.78  1,668,515,268.78  1,445,784,551.63 
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND  2010 

Notes

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade accounts payable and

others payable
 231,352,659.29  223,856,608.43  147,611,921.65  167,867,236.56 

Trade accounts payable and

others - related
7  1,260,184.03  1,457,716.42  28,603,922.14  38,904,688.15 

Current portion of  liability under 

financial lease agreements
15  2,487,906.12  8,553,793.99  2,487,906.12  6,756,622.68 

Current portion of long-term loan 16  -    15,000,000.00  -    -   

Short-term loans from related 

parties
7  -    -    41,243,000.00  68,993,000.00 

Unearned revenues - related 

parties
7  -    -    14,769,772.87  25,350,424.10 

Unearned revenues - others  66,480,781.31  86,380,259.34  13,647,662.15  24,560,892.56 

Accrued expenses 7  249,426,793.88  205,951,991.78  144,060,550.12  135,773,028.52 

Other current liabilities 14  113,715,960.02  122,809,509.70  82,365,052.34  98,955,687.37 

Total Current Liabilities  664,724,284.65  664,009,879.66  474,789,787.39  567,161,579.94 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities under financial lease 

agreements
15  10,981,635.40  3,832,571.05  10,981,635.40  3,832,571.05 

Provision liabilities on investment 

in subsidiaries 
11  -    -    16,031,281.66  16,052,893.09 

Employee benefit obligations 17  15,971,219.00  -    13,912,727.00  -   

Other non-current liabilities  6,141,724.40  1,902,123.50  2,121,198.86  375,484.26 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  33,094,578.80  5,734,694.55  43,046,842.92  20,260,948.40 

Total Liabilities  697,818,863.45  669,744,574.21  517,836,630.31  587,422,528.34 
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND  2010 

Notes

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

EQUITY

Share capital

Authorized share capital 

1,026,000,280 ordinary shares : 

Baht 1 per share

19  1,026,000,280.00  1,026,000,280.00  1,026,000,280.00  1,026,000,280.00 

Issued and paid - up share capital

882,654,428 ordinary shares : 

Baht 1 per share

19

(2010 : 708,068,528 ordinary 

shares : Baht 1 per share)
 882,654,428.00  708,068,528.00  882,654,428.00  708,068,528.00 

Premium on share capital 19, 21  129,502,175.48  5,720,710.00  129,502,175.48  5,720,710.00 

Difference between the purchase 

price of investment in subsidiaries

under common control and their 

net book value

 (16,593,839.52)  (16,593,839.52) - -

Retained earnings (Deficits)

   Appropriated - Legal reserve 21  17,959,026.83  7,228,639.26  17,959,026.83  7,228,639.26 

   Unappropriated  146,907,617.44  168,944,893.34  120,563,008.16  137,344,146.03 

Equity attributable to owners of 

the Company
 1,160,429,408.23  873,368,931.08  1,150,678,638.47  858,362,023.29 

Non - controlling interests  14,880,988.40  14,579,612.49  -    -   

Total equity  1,175,310,396.63  887,948,543.57  1,150,678,638.47  858,362,023.29 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

EQUITY
 1,873,129,260.08  1,557,693,117.78  1,668,515,268.78  1,445,784,551.63 
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Notes

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues 5, 23

Revenue from music  934,477,034.35  1,053,038,205.43  875,257,759.84  1,003,684,903.14 

Revenue from media  941,852,304.56  663,378,504.18  314,938,878.28  129,092,308.74 

Revenue from showbiz  814,141,478.53  533,357,095.89  422,178,027.57  492,298,048.03 

Revenue from film production  20,230,385.12  62,279,881.48  20,230,385.12  61,889,881.48 

Revenue from sport activities  18,654,960.13  583,845,212.14  -    -   

Total sales and services income  2,729,356,162.69  2,895,898,899.12  1,632,605,050.81  1,686,965,141.39 

Cost of sales and services 5, 23 (1,853,161,935.24)  (1,967,538,244.15) (1,202,934,532.80)  (1,209,381,654.79)

Gross profit  876,194,227.45  928,360,654.97  429,670,518.01  477,583,486.60 

Other income 5, 18  35,666,196.32  21,708,812.03  169,451,859.64  82,646,316.51 

Gross profit before expenses  911,860,423.77  950,069,467.00  599,122,377.65  560,229,803.11 

Other expenses

Selling expenses 5, 17  (101,263,974.98)  (84,610,457.40)  (35,898,991.61)  (15,491,145.08)

Administrative expenses 5, 17  (481,064,836.45)  (465,896,840.05)  (325,626,997.10)  (303,481,336.59)

Reversal of provision for (loss) on 

investment in subsidiaries - net
 -    -    36,425,789.10  (19,099,994.71)

Amortization of employee benefit 

expenses
3.4, 17  (9,859,110.90)  -    (8,979,761.00)  -   

Total expenses  (592,187,922.33)  (550,507,297.45)  (334,079,960.61)  (338,072,476.38)

Profit before finance costs and  

income tax
 319,672,501.44  399,562,169.55  265,042,417.04  222,157,326.73 

Finance costs 5  (2,707,202.90)  (13,901,404.88)  (3,064,274.38)  (6,699,737.93)

Profit before income tax  316,965,298.54  385,660,764.67  261,978,142.66  215,457,588.80 

Income tax  (97,304,091.79)  (59,411,440.07)  (47,370,390.96)  (27,803,477.00)

Profit and comprehensive 

income for the  year
 219,661,206.75  326,249,324.60  214,607,751.70  187,654,111.80 
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Attributable to

Owner of the Company  209,351,613.67  316,651,545.00  214,607,751.70  187,654,111.80 

Non - controlling interests  10,309,593.08  9,597,779.60  -    -   

Net profit  219,661,206.75  326,249,324.60  214,607,751.70  187,654,111.80 

Earnings per share 

Owner of the Company (Baht)  0.2404  0.4503  0.2465  0.2669 

Number of ordinary shares 

(Shares)
 870,696,489.64  703,161,838.64  870,696,489.64  703,161,838.64 

Diluted earnings per share 

Owner of the Company (Baht)  0.2253  0.4124  0.2310  0.2444 

Weighted average number of 

diluted ordinary shares (Shares)        
 929,101,509.84  767,734,096.37  929,101,509.84  767,734,096.37 

Notes

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010



RS Annual Report 
 2011 Financial Statements

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated

Notes
Issued and

Paid-up
 Share Capital

Premium on 
Share Capital

Retained earnings (deficits) Difference between
the purchase price

of investment in
subsidiaries under 
common control 

and their net book 
value

Equity attributable
 to owners of
 the Company

Non - Controlling
 interests Total

Appropriated - 
Legal reserve Unappropriated

Beginning balance as at January 1, 
2010 700,000,000.00 204,201,092.03  -   (344,679,104.43) (16,593,839.52) 542,928,148.08  11,491,216.82 554,419,364.90 

Increase in share capital 19  8,068,528.00  5,720,710.00  -    -    -    13,789,238.00  -    13,789,238.00 

Decrease in premium on share capital 21  -   (204,201,092.03)  -    204,201,092.03  -    -    -    -   

Non - Controlling  interests decreased  -    -    -    -    -    -    (6,509,383.93)  (6,509,383.93)

Legal reserve  -    -    7,228,639.26  (7,228,639.26)  -    -    -    -   

Profit and comprehensive income for the 
year  -    -    -    316,651,545.00  -   316,651,545.00  9,597,779.60 326,249,324.60 

Ending balance as at December 31, 
2010 708,068,528.00  5,720,710.00  7,228,639.26 168,944,893.34 (16,593,839.52) 873,368,931.08  14,579,612.49  887,948,543.57 

Increase in share capital 19  
174,585,900.00  123,781,465.48  -    -    -    298,367,365.48  -    298,367,365.48 

Non - Controlling  interests decreased  -    -    -    -    -   (10,008,217.17) (10,008,217.17)

Dividend 20  -    -    -   (220,658,502.00)  -   (220,658,502.00)  -   (220,658,502.00)

Legal reserve  -    -    10,730,387.57 (10,730,387.57)  -    -    -    -   

Profit and comprehensive income for the 
year  -    -    -   209,351,613.67  -   209,351,613.67  10,309,593.08 219,661,206.75 

Ending balance as at December 31, 
2011 882,654,428.00 129,502,175.48  17,959,026.83 146,907,617.44 (16,593,839.52)  1,160,429,408.23  14,880,988.40  1,175,310,396.63 

RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES  

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Notes

 Separated

Issued and
Paid-up

 Share Capital

Premium on 
Share Capital

Retained	earnings	(deficits)

Total
Appropriated - 
Legal reserve

Unappropriated

Beginning balance as at

January 1, 2010
 700,000,000.00  204,201,092.03  -    (247,282,418.54)  656,918,673.49 

Increase in share capital 19  8,068,528.00  5,720,710.00  -    -    13,789,238.00 

Decrease in premium on share 

capital
21  -    (204,201,092.03)  -    204,201,092.03  -   

Legal reserve  -    -   7,228,639.26  (7,228,639.26)  -   

Profit and comprehensive income 

for the year
 -    -    -    187,654,111.80  187,654,111.80 

Ending balance as at

December 31, 2010
 708,068,528.00  5,720,710.00  7,228,639.26  137,344,146.03  858,362,023.29 

Increase in share capital 19  174,585,900.00  123,781,465.48  -    -    298,367,365.48 

Dividend 20  -    -    -    (220,658,502.00)  (220,658,502.00)

Legal reserve  -    -    10,730,387.57  (10,730,387.57)  -   

Profit and comprehensive income 

for the year
 -    -    -    214,607,751.70  214,607,751.70 

Ending balance as at

December 31, 2011
 882,654,428.00  129,502,175.48  17,959,026.83  120,563,008.16  1,150,678,638.47 
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES   

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS   

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net profit  219,661,206.75  326,249,324.60  214,607,751.70  187,654,111.80

Adjustments to reconcile net profit 

to net cash provided 

by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization  85,419,414.57  309,996,164.13  57,434,740.07  31,903,187.96 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

(reversal) and written off 

withholding tax

 (2,118,806.04)  (4,606,759.58)  2,136,004.98  (6,909,817.62)

Allowance for decline in value

of inventory
 5,218,230.58  141,538.21  5,933,025.71  548,934.58 

Allowance for sales return - net 

(reversal)
 (21,406,563.00)  (2,258,533.36)  (21,406,563.00)  (2,258,533.36)

Allowance for impairment of

assets (reversal) 
 1,900,808.07  39,432,499.05  (16,403,884.63)  25,529,633.93 

Allowance for

impairment - investment

in subsidiaries (reversal) 

 -    -    (42,665,329.31)  134,084,341.53 

Allowance for doubtful

accounts - loan to subsidiaries
 -    -    6,261,151.64  (89,056,656.98)

Allowance for doubtful

accounts - loan to others
 (2,039,001.23)  2,039,001.23  (2,039,001.23)  2,039,001.23 

Provision for loss on investment in 

subsidiaries (reversal) 
 -    -    (21,611.43)  (25,927,689.84)

Provision for damage from litigation 

case
 3,860,661.27  -    1,200,000.00  -   

Gain on sales and

written off  equipment
 (3,555,543.48)  (279,137.62)  (3,515,649.93)  (435,440.43)

Provision for employee benefits  17,390,936.00  -    15,306,179.00  -   

Dividend income  -    -    (90,303,020.79)  (27,587,507.57)

Interest income  (4,264,648.57)  (857,595.40)  (12,013,879.74)  (584,458.98)

Interest expenses  2,707,202.90  13,901,404.88  3,064,274.38  6,699,737.93 

Income tax  97,322,091.79  59,411,440.07  47,370,390.96  27,803,477.00 

Profit from operating activities

before changes in operating assets 

and liabilities

 400,095,989.61  743,169,346.21  164,944,578.38  263,502,321.18
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(INCREASE) DECREASE IN

OPERATING ASSETS:

Trade accounts receivable  (139,156,004.08)  38,219,291.73  (31,969,537.47)  59,239,589.40 

Inventories  9,824,431.06  (4,939,835.21)  11,887,835.57  (6,422,165.71)

Other current assets  3,218,245.81  83,546,575.87  16,285,984.02  100,150,758.90 

Other non - current assets  (4,303,191.98)  102,209.60  (1,929,289.00)  (4,654,910.36)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

OPERATING LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable  14,663,210.82  (23,464,932.01)  (17,120,596.21)  (49,453,108.83)

Other current liabilities  8,050,241.14  (40,874,911.86)  (36,552,131.30)  89,195,402.36 

Payment of employee benefit

obligations
 (1,419,717.00)  -    (1,393,452.00)  -   

Other non - current liabilities  378,939.23  (1,356,440.76)  545,714.60  -   

Proceed from refunding

witholding tax
 26,434,620.01  43,968,619.79  -    36,178,121.68 

Payment of income tax  (80,638,889.63)  (68,589,720.67)  (32,750,879.66)  (35,538,964.91)

Net Cash Provided by

Operating Activities
 237,147,874.99  769,780,202.69  71,948,226.93  452,197,043.71 

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

ASSETS

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest income  4,019,680.87  857,595.40  11,048,206.95  584,458.98 

Increase in short - term loans

to related parties and related

persons

 (8,101,678.56)  -    (527,600,000.00)  (124,725,500.00)

Receipts from short-term loans to 

related parties and related persons
 -    9,267,338.56  251,811,021.40  227,910,938.56 

Decrease in short - term

loans to others
 (900,998.77)  833,612.98  (340,998.77)  133,612.98 

Cash received from decreasing in 

registered share capital
 -    -    85,000,000.00  29,276,946.60 

Payment of inventment in

subsidiaries
 -    -    (27,675,000.00)  (117,500,000.00)

Temporary investments - fixed

deposit with maturity of twelve 

months

 (124,411.34)  (4,083,120.00)  -    -   

Cash received for dividend incomes  -    -    90,303,020.79  27,587,507.57 

Purchase of fixed assets  (33,312,856.66)  (36,036,199.16)  (19,827,098.60)  (30,177,809.38)

Proceeds from disposal of

fixed assets
 4,221,926.99  4,789,685.61  4,002,624.91  1,058,999.99 

Increase in intangible assets  (322,989,557.54)  (56,889,858.87)  (59,334,931.82)  (17,544,503.75)

Net Cash Used in Investing

Activities
 (357,187,895.01)  (81,260,945.48)  (192,613,155.14)  (3,395,348.45)
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RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES  

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

ASSETS

( Unit :  Baht )

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM ACTIVITIES:

Payment of interest expenses  (2,740,776.86)  (14,004,473.20)  (2,957,569.51)  (6,627,753.74)

Receipt of short-term loans from 

financial institutions
 45,000,000.00  104,000,000.00  45,000,000.00 104,000,000.00 

Repayment of short-term loans from 

financial institutions
 (45,000,000.00)  (367,500,000.00)  (45,000,000.00)  (357,500,000.00)

Receipts of long-term loans from 

financial institutions
 (15,000,000.00)  14,600,000.00  -    -   

Repayment of long-term loans

from financial institutions
 -    (172,400,000.00)  -    -   

Repayment of liability under

financial lease 
 (12,116,823.52)  (8,832,750.50)  (10,319,652.21) (8,053,636.10)

Increase (decrease) in short-term 

loans from related parties
 -    -    (27,750,000.00) 16,510,000.00 

Dividend paid  (220,658,502.00)  -    (220,658,502.00)  -   

Dividend paid to non - controlling 

interests
 (10,008,217.17)  (6,509,383.93)  -    -   

Increase in share capital  298,367,365.48  13,789,238.00  298,367,365.48 13,789,238.00 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) 

Financing Activities
 37,843,045.93  (436,857,369.63)  36,681,641.76 (237,882,151.84)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 (82,196,974.09)  251,661,887.58  (83,983,286.45) 210,919,543.42 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
 364,370,910.02  112,709,022.44  253,907,596.35 42,988,052.93 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

AT THE ENDING OF THE YEAR
 282,173,935.93  364,370,910.02  169,924,309.90 253,907,596.35 
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ADDITION INFORMATION          
NON-CASH TRANSACTION          
- In 2011, the Company purchased vehicles in the amount of  Baht 13.20 million  by  entered into a lease agreement.   
- In 2010, The Company purchased vehicles in the amount of  Baht 6.29 million  by  paid cash for the portion of Baht
1.62 million and entered into a lease agreement for the remainder portion.       
  

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
 RS Public Company Limited, the “Company” is a company registered in Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand on May 22, 2003. The registered office of the Company is at 419/1 Soi Ladphao 15, Ladphao Road, Jompon, Jatujak, 
and Bangkok, Thailand. 
The principal activities of the Company and subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are entertainment businesses 
including music, television, modern trade, radio, production houses of films, drama series and TV programs and other businesses 
supporting the Group’s core business. 

2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 
 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, in which the 
Company has authority to control or holds more than 50% of the subsidiaries shares.
 Subsidiaries
 Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly and 
indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control 
commences until the date that control ceases.
 The preparation of the consolidated financial statements has been based on the same accounting policies for the same or 
similar accounting transactions or account events.
 The significant intercompany transactions and balances between the Company and the subsidiaries have been eliminated.
 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as follows:

RS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES  
Notes to Financial Statements
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
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Company Name Nature of Business
Rate of Shareholding

2011 (%) 2010 (%)

Operating subsidiaries

K. Master Co., Ltd.
Service provider and 

organizer
100 100

Yaak  Co., Ltd. Television production 100 100

Thai Copyright Collection 

Co., Ltd.
Copyright collection 100 100

Sky-High Network Co., 

Ltd.

Radio production and 

organizer
100 100

Poema Co., Ltd. Organizer 100 100

RS In-Store Media Co., 

Ltd.

Media service for modern 

trade
65 65

RS International

Broadcasting and Sport 

Management Co., Ltd.

Service provider and 

organizer for sport 

activities

83 83

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. Football field rental 100 100

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. Organizer 100 100

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. Organizer 100 100

Nagasia Co., Ltd. Organizer 100 100

Avant Co., Ltd. Organizer 100 100

Non-operating

subsidiaries

R Siam Co., Ltd. 100 100

R.S. Sportmaster Co., 

Ltd.
76 76

R.S. Television Co., Ltd. 100 100

RS Film and Distribution 

Co., Ltd.
100 100

Bangkok Organizer Co., 

Ltd.
100 100

D-Media and Production 

Co., Ltd. (formerly : RS 

I-Dream Entertainment 

Co., Ltd.)

100 100

Liquidated

Magic Advertainment 

Co., Ltd.
- -

Red Drama Co., Ltd. - -

R.S. Studio Co., Ltd. - -

Moradok Entertainment 

Co., Ltd.
- -

 The significant accounting transaction between the Company and the subsidiaries were eliminated from the consolidated 
financial statements.
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 The Company changed in the composition of the subsidiary companies as follows:
 1. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Magic Advertainment Co., Ltd. (subsidiary) held on June 30, 2010 passed 
the resolution to liquidate this subsidiary company and registered with the Ministry of Commerce.
 2. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Red Drama Co., Ltd. (subsidiary) held on September 30, 2010 passed the 
resolution to liquidate this subsidiary company and registered with the Ministry of Commerce.
 3. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of RS Studio Co., Ltd. (subsidiary) held on November 30, 2010 passed the 
resolution to liquidate this subsidiary company and registered with the Ministry of Commerce.
 4. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of Moradok Entertainment Co., Ltd. (subsidiary) held on September 30, 2010 
passed the resolution to liquidate this subsidiary company and registered with the Ministry of Commerce.
 5. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting No. 1/2011 of D-Media and Production Co., Ltd. (subsidiary) (formerly : RS 
I-Dream Entertainment Co., Ltd.) held on September 29, 2011 passed the resolution increase in its business to for bidding 
merchandise goods as registered to sale to public and passed the resolution to change the company name. The subsidiary 
company has registered the change increase in its business to for bidding merchandise goods as registered to sale to public 
and the change of its name to D-Media and Production Co., Ltd. on September 30, 2011.
 6. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting No. 2/2011 of Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. (subsidiary) held on October 17, 2011 passed 
the resolution to decrease the share capital from Baht 15 million to Baht 5 million by reducing from 150,000 shares at the 
par value of Bath 100 per share to 50,000 shares at the par value of Bath 100 per share.  The decrease of share capital was 
registered with the Ministry of Commerce on November 25, 2011.
 7. The Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 3/2011 of D-Media and Production Co., Ltd. (formerly: RS I-Dream Entertainment 
Co., Ltd.) held on October 14, 2011 passed the resolution to call paid up share capital at par value Baht 5 per share totaling 
Baht 675,000 to be paid up shard capital at Baht 10 million and the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting No. 2/2011 held on 
December 7, 2011 passed the resolution to increase the share capital from Baht 10 million to Baht 37 million by issuing 2.7 
million new shares capital at the par value of Baht 10 per share.  The increase of share capital was registered with the Ministry of 
Commerce on December 7, 2011. Therefore the Company invested in whole amount of share capital of this subsidiary company. 
 8. The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting No. 1/2011 of Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. held on November 22, 2011 passed 
the resolution to decrease the share capital from Baht 100 million to Baht 25 million by reducing from 1,000,000 shares at the 
par value of Bath 100 per share to 250,000 shares at the par value of Bath 100 per share. The decrease of share capital was 
registered with the Ministry of Commerce on December 26, 2011.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 3.1 Statement of compliance
 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) including related 
interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP); applicable rules and regulations 
of the Thai Securities and Exchange Commission; and with generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand. 
 The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language. These 
English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai language statutory financial statements.
 During 2010 and 2011, the FAP issued the following new and revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) relevant to 
the Company’s operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011:
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TFRS Topic

TAS 1 (revised 2009) Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 2 (revised 2009) Inventories 

TAS 7 (revised 2009) Statement of Cash Flows 

TAS 8 (revised 2009)
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 

and Errors 

TAS 10 (revised 2009) Events after the Reporting Period 

TAS 16 (revised 2009) Property, Plant and Equipment 

tTAS 17 (revised 2009) Leases 

TAS 18 (revised 2009) Revenue 

TAS 19 Employee Benefits

TAS 23 (revised 2009) Borrowing Costs

TAS 24 (revised 2009) Related Party Disclosures 

TAS 27 (revised 2009) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

TAS 28 (revised 2009) Investments in Associates

TAS 33 (revised 2009) Earnings per Share 

TAS 34 (revised 2009) Interim Financial Reporting 

TAS 36 (revised 2009) Impairment of Assets

TAS 37 (revised 2009) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

TAS 38 (revised 2009) Intangible Assets 

 The adoption of these new and revised TFRS has resulted in changes in the Company’s accounting policies. The effects of 
these changes are disclosed in note 5. 

 In addition to the above new and revised TFRS, the FAP has issued during 2010 a number of other TFRS which are expected 
to be effective for financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and have not been adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements in the following table.

 The management is still evaluating the effect of such TFRS and has not been able to reach a conclusion as to their effect to 
the financial statements.

TFRS Topic Year effective

TAS 12 Income Taxes January 1, 2013

TAS 20 (revised 2009)
Accounting for Government Grants and 

Disclosure of Government Assistance
January 1, 2013

TAS 21 (revised 2009)
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Ex-

change Rates
January 1, 2013
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  3.2 Basis of measurement   
  The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost. 
  3.3 Presentation currency 
  The financial statements are prepared and presented in Thai Baht. All financial information presented in Thai Baht has been 
rounded to the nearest thousand or million unless otherwise stated. 
  3.4 Use of estimates and judgements
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from estimates.
 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
 Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements is included in the following note:
Note 17 Discount rate, estimation of salary increase rate, employee turnover rate and mortality rate.

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 4.1  Overview
 From January 1, 2011, consequent to the adoption of new and revised TFRS as set out in note 3, the Company has changed 
its accounting policies in the following areas:   
  • Presentation of financial statements
  • Accounting for property, plant and equipment
  • Accounting for employee benefits
 Details of new accounting policies for the Company are summarised in notes 4.2 to 4.4 as follows:
 4.2  Presentation of financial statements
 From January 1, 2011, the Group has applied TAS 1 (revised 2009) Presentation of Financial Statements. Under the revised 
TAS, a set of financial statements comprises:
  • Statement of financial position;
  • Statement of comprehensive income;
  • Statement of changes in equity;
  • Statement of cash flows; and
  • Notes to the financial statements.
 As a result, the Group presents all owner changes in equity in the statement of changes in equity and all non-owner              
changes in equity in the statement of comprehensive income. Previously, all such changes were included in the statement of 
changes in equity.
 Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also is in conformity with the revised standard. Since the change in 
accounting policy only impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on reported profit or earnings per share.
 4.3  Accounting for property, plant and equipment
 From January 1, 2011, the Group has applied TAS 16 (revised 2009) Property, Plant and Equipment in determining and 
accounting for the cost and depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment. 
 The principal changes introduced by the revised TAS 16 and affecting the Company are that (i) costs of asset dismantlement, 
removal and restoration have to be included as asset costs and subject to annual depreciation; (ii) the depreciation charge has to 
be determined separately for each significant part of an asset; and (iii) in determining the depreciable amount, the residual value 
of an item of assets  has to be measured at the amount estimated receivable currently for the asset if the asset were already of 
the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life. Furthermore, the residual value and useful life of an asset have 
to be reviewed at least at each financial year-end.  
 The changes have been applied prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions of the revised TAS, except that 
consideration of the costs of asset dismantlement, removal and restoration, have been applied retrospectively. The effect from 
the change as disclosed in note 5.
 Accounting for employee benefits
 From January 1, 2011, the Group has applied TAS 19 Employee Benefits.
 Under the new policy, the Company’s obligation in respect of post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans recognized 
in the financial statements based on calculations by the independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Previously, 
this obligation was recognized as occurred.  
 The Group’s liability for long-term employee benefit obligations as at January 1, 2011 has been determined
to be Baht 43.62 million (consolidated) and Baht 39.33 million (separated).  The Company has opted to
recognise this liability as an expense through profit or loss on a straight-line basis over five years from
the date of adoption of TAS 19, in accordance with the transitional provisions of TAS 19 as disclosed in note 5.

5. EFFECT FROM FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF THAI FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
 From January 1, 2011, consequent to the adoption of new and revised TFRS, the Company has effected
to the financial statements as follows:
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In Baht

Consolidated Separated

Statement of financial position as at

December 31, 2011

Decrease in depreciation resulting in 

expenses were decrease follow: 

Costs of service 2,668,900.46 -

Increase in profit 2,668,900.46 -

Increase in earnings per share 

Basic (Baht) 0.003 -

Diluted (Baht) 0.003 -

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

Statement of financial position 

Present value of unfunded obligation as 

at January 1, 2011
43,616,697.00 39,325,014.00

Unrecognised transitional obligation as at 

December 31, 2011
33,757,586.10 30,345,253.00

Recognition through statement of

comprehensive income during the year
9,859,110.90 8,979,761.00

Accounting for property, plant and equipment

Accounting for employee benefits
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The Company has disclosed the additional details of TAS 19 Employee Benefits in note 17.

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements 
except as explained in note 4, which addresses changes in accounting policies.
 Foreign currencies
 Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.  
 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the Statement of financial position date are converted to 
 Thai Baht at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.  Foreign exchange differences arising upon conversion are 
recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.
 Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost in foreign currencies are converted to Thai Baht using the foreign 
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. 
 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid short-
term investment.  Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are a component of financing activities for the purpose of the 
statement of cash flows.
 Trade and other accounts receivable
 Trade and other accounts receivable are stated at their invoice value less allowance for doubtful accounts.
 The allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and future expectations of 
customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred.
 Inventories and work in process
 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value 
 The finished goods including cassette tapes, CDs, VCDs, DVDs. raw materials and others are stated at first-in, first-out method.
 The finished goods and work in process of films, drama series, tele-movies and others are stated at cost which consists of 
direct production cost and other production expenses. 
 Other inventories are valued at first-in, first-out method.
 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to complete and 
to make the sale. 
 The Company set up allowance for damaged goods and obsolete stock.
 Investments in subsidiaries
 Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of the Company are accounted for using the cost method less 
allowance for impairment (if any).
 Other long-term investment
 Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other long –term investments, are stated at 
cost method less allowance for impairment (if any). 
 Property, plant and equipment
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and losses on decline in value.

(Increase) in administrative expenses (6,031,499.00) (5,600,712.00)

(Decrease) in profit (9,859,110.90) (8,979,761.00)

Earnings per share (Decrease) 

Decrease basic earnings per share 

(in Baht)
(0.011) (0.010)

Decrease diluted earning per share

(in Baht)
(0.011) (0.010)

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

Increase in employee expenses

resulting in:

(Increase) in costs of  sales (3,557,611.40) (3,379,589.00)

Statement of comprehensive income for the years ended                

December 31, 2011
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Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes 
the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their 
intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised 
borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised
as part of that equipment
 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from 
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other income in profit or loss. 
 Leased assets
 Leases in terms of which the Company substantially assumes all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired by way of finance leases is capitalised at the lower of its fair value and the 
present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and losses on decline 
in value. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are charged directly to the statement of income.
 Subsequent costs
 The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it 
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
 Depreciation
 Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for 
cost, less its residual value. 
 Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item 
of property, plant and equipment as follows:

Years

Land improvement 8 years 7 months as land lease agreement term

Building and construction 20 as land lease agreement term

Machines and equipment 5 – 10

Furniture and office equipment 5 – 10

Vehicles 5

 Intangible assets
 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the useful economic useful life and tested 
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is 
charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.
 A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:
 Software are amortized on the basis of estimated useful lives of 10 years.
 Others copyrights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement.
 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually either individually or at 
the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually.
 Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives is the Copyright of musical master tape, Copyright of drama, Copyright of films.
 Impairment
 The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated. For intangible assets that 
have indefinite useful lives or are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same times.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is 
charged to equity.
 Calculation of recoverable amount
 The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value less costs to sell. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does 
not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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 Reversals of impairment
 Impairment losses recognised in prior periods in respect of other non-financial assets are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 
 Provision for goods returns
 Provision for goods returns is estimated with reference to past experience of actual goods returned and calculated based on 
the proportion of sales. 
 Employee benefits
 Post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s obligation in respect of post employment 
benefits under defined benefit plans recognized in the financial statements based on calculations by the independent actuary 
using the projected unit credit method estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their 
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. 
 The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income and 
all expenses related to defined benefit plans in profit or loss.  
 Short-term employee benefits
 Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. 
 A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the Company has a present legal 
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.
 Financial Leases
 The group recorded the property, plant and equipment under financial leases as asset and liability equal to the fair value 
of leased assets at the time of the beginning of the leases or the present value of the minimum payment under leases.  The 
Company used implicit interest rate for calculation of the present value of the minimum payment under the lease.  Interest 
expense from each instalment was recorded by calculating from the outstanding payables at end of each instalment period.
 Revenue Recognition
 Revenue exclude value added taxes or other sales taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts.
Revenue from sales is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
have been transferred to the buyer.  No revenue is recognised if there is continuing management involvement with the goods or 
there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of goods. 
 Revenue from service is recognised when service has been provided.
 1. Revenue from music
 Revenue from music sales represents the revenue from sales and services, revenue from copyright, revenue from commercial 
use or other benefit of music copyright and revenue from digital downloads.
 Revenue from copyright is recognized once the copyright has been delivered.
 Revenue from commercial use or other benefit of music copyright is recognized on a straight-line basis over the agreement period.
 Revenue from digital downloads are recognized once it has been delivered or the download service has been provided.
 2. Revenue from showbiz
 Revenue from showbiz represents the revenue from ticket distribution, revenue from sales of advertising and sponsorship, 
revenue from production and revenue from artist.
 Revenue from ticket distribution is recognized when the concert has been provided.
 Revenue from sales of advertising and sponsorship is recognized at invoice value less discounts when the service has 
been provided.
 Revenue from production is recognized upon delivery of completed work or recognized based on the proportion of completed 
service, whichever is the case.
 Revenue from artist is recognized when the service has been provided.
 3. Revenue from films
 Revenue from films represents the revenue from box-office sharing between cinema’s owner and Group of Companies, 
copyright and sales of sponsorship. 
 Revenue from box-office sharing between cinema’s owner and Group of Companies is recognized when the film has 
been exhibited.
 Revenue from film copyright is recognized when the film have been exhibited.
 Revenue from sales of other film copyright is recognized based on the agreement and/or the rights attaching to the said film.
 Revenue from sales of sponsorship is recognized at invoice value less discounts when service has been provided.
 4. Revenue from media
 Revenue from sales of advertising, being the revenue from the sales of advertising media, i.e., the media of
TV, radio, modern trade, publishing and others, is recognized at invoice value less discounts when service
has been provided.
 Revenue from publishing distribution is recognized at invoice value once delivered, after deduction of goods
returned and discounts.
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 Revenue from production of drama, TV programme, advertising film and other productions is recognized
upon delivery of completed work or recognized based on the proportion of completed service, whichever is
the case.
 Revenue from production of market activities is recognized upon delivery of completed work or recognized
based on the proportion of completed service, whichever is the case.
 Television station sublease income is recognised over the period of the sublease.
 5. Interest and dividend income
 Interest income is recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income as it accrues.  Dividend income is recognized in the 
Statement of comprehensive income on the date the Group’s right to receive payments is established.  
 Expenses
 1. Operating leases
 Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis 
over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are recognized in the Statement of comprehensive income as an integral 
part of the total lease payments made.  
 2. Other expenses
 Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
 3. Finance costs
 Interest expense and similar costs are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income for the period in which they 
are incurred.
 Income tax
 Income tax on the profit for the year comprises of current tax.  Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income 
for the year, using tax rates enacted at the reporting date and applicable to the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years.
 Earnings per Share 
 Basic earnings per share as presented in the Statement of comprehensive income is calculated by dividing the net income  
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued and paid up during the years. 
Diluted earnings per share calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average 
number of common shares assuming all warrants were exercised.

 7. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
 Related parties are those parties linked to the Group and the Company as shareholders or by common shareholders or 
directors. Transactions with related parties are conducted at prices based on market prices or, where no market price exists, at 
contractually agreed prices. 
 Basis of pricing for intercompany revenues and expenses
 1. Revenue from sales is determined per unit on a cost basis.
 2. Revenue from copyright is determined either by per unit on historical cost or by a proportion of copyright usage to   
 revenue collection.
 3. Revenue from production is determined from original cost plus operating margin based on normal business operations. 
 4. Revenue from concert and marketing activities is calculated from cost plus operating margin based on normal business   
 operations.
 5. Revenue from advertising is determined per unit by referring to the market price. 
 6. Radio and television stations lease income is determined on a cost basis.
 7. Services income is determined on a cost of service basis by referring to the market price.
 8. Revenue from management services is charged on the basis of agreed contracts which based on cost of service. 
 9. Interest income derived from related parties is based on the borrowing cost or at market rate of approximately 2 - 8%
 per annum.
 10. In the consolidated financial statements, the transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries with Chetchotsak 
 Co., Ltd., for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows :

2011 2010

Cost of sales and service 34,800,994.87 35,778,561.93

Administrative expenses 35,122,752.84 38,113,371.79      

 Basis of pricing
 Unit price comparable to the market price survey of rental and common service fee.
 Significant balances at each Statement of financial position date and transactions for years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, with related parties were as follows:
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In Baht

Trade accounts receivable

K. Master Co., Ltd. 24,587,794.46 15,323,735.11

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 3,098,876.22 1,161,077.33

Yaak  Co., Ltd. 68,919,726.39 76,355,968.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 3,013,637.08 1,310,289.01

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 2,179,418.17 1,208,076.43

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. 1,391,000.00 6,504,559.96

RS International Broadcasting and 

Sport Management Co., Ltd.
- 11,480,779.00

Poema Co., Ltd. 246,100.00 671,371.50

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. - -

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 23,469,492.86 -

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 24,162,167.58 2,760,999.12

Total 151,068,212.76 116,776,855.46

Short-term loans to 

K. Master Co., Ltd. 277,500,000.00 -

Yaak  Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 -

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. 21,100,000.00 7,100,000.00

Poema Co., Ltd. 6,000,000.00 13,500,000.00

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 3,000,000.00 -

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 4,600,000.00 -

D-Media and Production Co., Ltd 

(formerly :  RS I-Dream Entertain-

ment Co., Ltd.

- 23,912,700.00

R.S. Sportmaster Co., Ltd 2,340,000.00 2,340,000.00

Subsidiaries' director - 1,898,321.44

Idea Power Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 -

Total 334,540,000.00 48,751,021.44

Less Allowance for doubtful ac-

count
(32,513,851.64) (26,252,700.00)

Short-term loans to related
parties - net

302,026,148.36 22,498,321.44

 As at December 31, 2010, the Company had loan to subsidiaries’ director, at call, of Baht 1.90 million, respectively, was 
guaranteed by shares certificate of RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd., which were held by a third party, of 105,000 shares, at the par 
value of Baht 100 per share totalling Baht 10.50 million.  
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In Baht In Million Baht

2011 2010

Movement of loans to related 

companies

Beginning balance 48,751,021.44 151,936,460.00

Increase during for the years 527,600,000.00 124,725,500.00

Paid during for the years (251,811,021.44) (227,910,938.56)

Ending balance 324,540,000.00 48,751,021.44

Work in process (presented in

inventory)

Yaak Co., Ltd. - 120,000.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 280,373.83 150,000.00

Total 280,373.83 270,000.00

Advance

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 120.00 -

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 126.50 -

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 360.00 -

Avant Co., Ltd. 1,174.00 -

D-Media and Production Co., Ltd. 

(formerly :                                      
300.00 203,605.50

R Siam Co., Ltd. 364.00 -

R.S. Sportmaster Co., Ltd. 73,246.00 47,522.00

RS Film and Distribution Co., Ltd. 177,369.00 151,905.00

R.S.Television Co., Ltd. 364.00 -

Bangkok Organizer Co., Ltd. 474.00 -

Total 253,897.50 403,032.50

Accrued income

K. Master Co., Ltd. 486,484.26 -

Yaak Co., Ltd. 7,380,000.00 50,000.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. - 712,716.86

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. - 6,990,092.48

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 5,961,723.01 -

Avant Co., Ltd. 2,458,900.94 -

Total 16,287,108.21 7,752,809.34

  On September 26, 2011, a subsidiary company had unsecured loan to a related company of Baht 10 million which has 
maturity date within February 29, 2012.
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Trade account payable and other

K. Master Co., Ltd. 3,411,901.51 4,828,268.00

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 604,703.00 359,520.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 12,250,280.07 8,591,129.52 

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 739,461.65 6,406,461.81

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 688,495.23 361,744.47  

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. - 99,215.40

RS International Broadcasting and 

Sport Management Co., Ltd.
642,836.74 4,903,275.00

Poema Co., Ltd. - 57,780.00 

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. - 3,631,467.27 

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. - 383,247.94

Avant Co., Ltd. 2,430.33 2,430.33 

R Siam Co., Ltd. 4,746,210.96 4,746,210.96 

R.S.Television Co., Ltd. 4,184,640.53 4,184,640.53

Bangkok Organizer Co., Ltd. 349,296.92 349,296.92

Chetchotsak Co., Ltd. 983,665.20 -

Total 28,603,922.14 38,904,688.15

Short-term loans from

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. - 30,000,000.00

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 15,000,000.00

RS International Broadcasting and 

Sport Management Co., Ltd.
10,000,000.00 -

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 3,500,000.00 1,900,000.00 

Nagasia Co., Ltd. - 3,000,000.00 

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. - 3,000,000.00

Avant Co., Ltd. 828,000.00 853,000.00 

R Siam Co., Ltd. 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00

R.S.Television Co., Ltd. 1,120,000.00 1,145,000.00 

Bangkok Organizer Co., Ltd. 2,295,000.00 595,000.00

Total 41,243,000.00 68,993,000.00

Movement of loans from

Beginning balance 68,993,000.00 52,483,000.00

Increase during for the years 105,700,000.00 64,500,000.00

In Baht In Million Baht

2011 2010
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Paid during for the years (133,450,000.00) (47,990,000.00)

Ending balance 41,243,000.00 68,993,000.00

Unearned revenues

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 14,769,772.87 25,350,424.10

Total 14,769,772.87 25,350,424.10

Accrued expenses

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 862,369.00 273,809.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 52,793.98 9,815,625.00

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. - 6,930,000.00

Total 915,162.98 17,019,434.00

 The Company’s financial statements include significant transactions between the Company and subsidiaries for each of 
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 as follows :

In Baht In Million Baht

2011 2010

Revenue from music 

K. Master Co., Ltd.

   - Revenue 9,677,142.87 609,257.25

   - Sales return (94,109.00) (396,229.00)

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 89,626,357.78 69,866,688.60

Yaak Co., Ltd. 414,490.00 1,060,000.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. - 6,598,719.70

RS In-store Media Co., Ltd. - 6,981,625.00

Poema Co., Ltd. 430,033.98 238.80

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 119,000.00 -

Total revenue from music 100,172,915.63 84,720,300.35

Revenue from music

Revenue from media

K. Master Co., Ltd. 1,149,200.00 3,929,000.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 41,286,640.62 48,496,750.47

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 300,000.00 6,380,386.07

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 666,000.00 -

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. 700,000.00 -

In Baht In Million Baht

2011 2010
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RS International Broadcasting and 

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd. 
- 4,396,200.00

Poema Co., Ltd. 281,000.00 60,200.00

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 162,500.00 -

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 316,900.00 -

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 270,600.00 -

Total revenue from media 45,132,840.62 63,262,536.54

Revenue from showbiz

K. Master Co., Ltd. 2,776,484.26 13,688,975.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 10,119,000.00 3,269,000.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. - 1,150,000.00

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. 1,166,700.00 20,513,000.00

RS International Broadcasting and 

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd. 
- 13,945,060.00

Poema Co., Ltd. 2,050,691.76 1,712,641.40

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 14,796,256.32 1,660,794.39

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 21,933,405.47 1,660,886.92

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 32,095,123.10 4,242,185.16

Avant Co., Ltd. 2,458,900.94 -

Total revenue from showbiz 87,396,561.85 61,842,542.87

Other income

Revenue from

management service

K. Master Co., Ltd. 200,000.00 620,000.00

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 11,547,624.00 4,265,616.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 9,182,376.00 2,546,640.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 11,152,176.00 7,156,824.00

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 8,020,116.00 4,291,836.00

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. 600,000.00 2,215,920.00

RS International Broadcasting and

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd.
- 900,00.00

Total 40,702,292.00 21,996,836.00

Interest income

In Baht In Million Baht

2011 2010
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K. Master Co., Ltd. 5,768,010.58 121,954.14

Yaak Co., Ltd. 210,465.75 -

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. 933,943.01 263,623.68

RS International Broadcasting and

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd.
- 600,222.60

Poema Co., Ltd. 935,310.51 4,589,059.45

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 25,068.50 -

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 110,917.82 -

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 200,907.94 -

D-Media and Production Co., Ltd.

(formerly:RS I-Dream Entertainment 

Co., Ltd.)

1,117,738.55 985,771.99

R.S. Sportmaster Co., Ltd. 114,095.83 106,485.53

Total 9,416,458.49 6,667,117.39

Other income

K. Master Co., Ltd. 23,200.00 54,800.00

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 133,158.00 115,275.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 1,056,345.79 443,955.00

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 187,678.00 175,439.27

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 221,996.49 237,383.29

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. - 11,644.00

RS International Broadcasting and

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd.
- 9,838,098.92

Poema Co., Ltd. 11,250.00 3,450.00

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 522,900.00 -

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 532,884.00 -

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 1,050.00 -

Total 2,690,462.28 10,880,045.48

Total other income 52,809,212.77 39,543,998.87

Cost of sales and services

K. Master Co., Ltd. 3,208,252.00 3,655,880.65

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 1,767,160.00 3,183,000.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 37,608,687.00 35,530,033.33

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 1,242,822.47 4,930,240.65

In Baht In Million Baht

2011 2010
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RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 12,192,456.07 10,570,666.79

RS International Broadcasting and

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd.
2,100,000.00 1,582,500.00

Poema Co., Ltd. - 54,000.00

R Siam Co., Ltd. - 40,000.00

Total cost of sales and services 58,119,377.54 59,546,321.42

Selling expenses

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. - 2,203,344.00

Administrative expenses

K. Master Co., Ltd. - 120,915.00

Yaak Co., Ltd. 785,046.73 -

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 189,439.26 765,500.00

RS International Broadcasting and

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd.
- 3,119,950.00

Total Administrative expenses 974,485.99 4,006,365.00

Finance costs – Interest ex-

penses

K. Master Co., Ltd. - 18,960.35

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 270,534.23 97,808.23

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 671,065.08 210,958.95

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 208,777.40 122,534.33

RS International Broadcasting and

Sport  Management Co.,Ltd.
51,780.82 -

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 33,776.72 15,486.33

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 9,611.32 11,085.63

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 10,042.82 27,195.23

Avant Co., Ltd. 18,964.41 6,988.57

R Siam Co., Ltd. 33,816.81 5,542.82

R.S.Television Co., Ltd. 25,547.40 9,368.57

Bangkok Organizer Co., Ltd. 25,640.00 4,859.31

Moradok Entertainment Co., Ltd. - 8,481.55

Magic Advertainment Co., Ltd. - 27,742.66

R.S. Studio Co., Ltd. - 10,055.38

Total finance costs –

Interest expenses
1,359,557.01 577,067.91

In Baht In Million Baht

2011 2010
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 8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - NET
 As at December 31, 2011, and 2010, accounts receivable was classified by aging as follows :

In Baht 

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Accounts receivable – related parties

Current - - 71,276,644.33 23,517,528.08

Overdue

Less than 3 months - - 14,954,109.47 24,590,500.92

3 - 6 months - - 21,827,374.21 23,968,709.90

6 - 12 months - - 20,930,887.15 33,772,587.48

Over 12 months - - 22,079,197.60 10,927,529.08

Total accounts receivable -

related parties
- - 151,068,212.76 116,776,855.46

Accounts receivable – others - net

Current 326,244,721.06 322,553,422.86 226,096,869.66 207,330,424.03

Overdue

Less than 3 months 232,943,716.72 152,656,085.21 84,084,155.87 100,927,114.42

3 - 6 months 54,263,580.56 1,184,963.16 1,127,847.12 274,463.00

6 - 12 months 5,821,051.26 9,267,167.52 40,706.26 8,741,298.22

Over 12 months 62,004,517.08 56,459,943.84 17,348,582.61 13,746,681.66

Total 681,277,586.68 542,121,582.59 328,698,161.52 331,019,981.33

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (53,271,674.18) (55,112,462.78) (8,452,604.32) (8,328,342.65)

Total accounts receivable - others - net 628,005,912.50 487,009,119.81 320,245,557.20 322,691,638.68

 The overdue receivable over 12 months of Baht 8.92 million represented the amount due from government entity. 
 The Management did not provide for the allowance for doubtful account due to the management believes that it will be collectible.
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9. INVENTORIES – NET
 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, inventories were as follows :

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Finished goods: Films and Music,

Tapes, CDs,VCDs,DVDs
24,823,488.09 22,379,292.94 22,636,737.21 20,040,142.31

Work in process : movie, drama,

tele-movie and others

Music 5,868,301.77 7,508,940.65 3,277,383.67 4,918,022.55 

TV Programe 4,315,693.44 4,012,341.67 1,857,497.39 793,387.00 

Concert and marketing activities              2,113,458.98 10,804,371.20 632,704.23 9,523,616.45 

drama series 5,259,795.96 - 5,259,795.96 -

Telemovie 1,511,271.03 1,511,271.03 1,511,271.03 1,511,271.03 

Film 1,944,710.22 20,423,950.69 - 18,479,240.46

Production house 19,226,443.33 6,005,200.95 11,691,408.42 1,268,174.45 

Total work in process 40,239,674.73 50,266,076.19 24,230,060.70 36,493,711.94 

Raw material 2,535,293.01 4,756,072.15 2,535,293.01 4,756,072.15

Other 492,289.29 513,734.90 - -

Total 68,090,745.12 77,915,176.18 49,402,090.92 61,289,926.40

Less  Allowance for devaluation

of inventories
(30,699,061.76) (25,480,831.18) (24,920,447.28) (18,987,421.57)

Inventories - net 37,391,683.36 52,434,345.00 24,481,643.64 42,302,504.83
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10. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, other current assets were as follows :

In Baht 

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Undue input Value Added Tax        22,175,163.50 17,273,050.75 7,201,560.53 6,369,678.42

Prepaid expense 25,992,849.56 15,857,566.87 12,126,024.32 9,649,591.30

Advance receivable 15,532,723.94 52,037,119.79 7,794,981.16 25,201,898.26

Other Account receivable 1,563,367.63 1,884,510.03 1,138,218.25 1,078,944.17

Other 5,956,432.39 4,373,065.97 4,016,447.80 2,958,095.84

Total        71,220,537.02 91,425,313.41 32,277,232.06 45,258,207.99



In Baht

Paid up capital Cost Method
Allowance for

impairment
Carrying value Provision

Dividend

Received

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Operating subsidiaries

K. Master Co., Ltd. 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 199,999,300.00 199,999,300.00 (129,317,560.61) (176,816,795.60) 70,681,739.39 23,182,504.40 - - - -

Thai Copyright Collection Co., Ltd. 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,999,400.00 4,999,400.00 (3,021,213.24) (1,645,431.63) 1,978,186.76 3,353,968.37 - - - -

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd. 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 5,199,993.00 80,199,993.00 - - 5,199,993.00 80,199,993.00 - - 71,718,237.96 15,499,891.50

Poema Co., Ltd. 120,000,000.00 120,000,000.00 120,000,000.00 120,000,000.00 (83,305,112.09) (102,979,238.69) 36,694,887.91 17,020,761.31 - - - -

RS In-Store Media Co., Ltd. 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 19,499,300.00 19,499,300.00 - - 19,499,300.00 19,499,300.00 - - 18,584,782.83 12,087,616.07

Yaak Co., Ltd. 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 2,499,300.00 2,499,300.00 (2,499,300.00) (2,499,300.00) - - 13,302,552.81 11,245,484.67 - -

RS International Broadcasting and

Sport Management Co., Ltd.
150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00 285,000,000.04 285,000,000.04 (105,770,418.05) (105,770,418.05) 179,229,581.99 179,229,581.99 - - - -

S-One Sport Co., Ltd. 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 33,800,530.00 33,800,530.00 (33,800,530.00) (29,642,616.61) - 4,157,913.39 - - - -

Aladdin House Co., Ltd. 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,999,300.00 4,999,300.00 - - 4,999,300.00 4,999,300.00 - - - -

Blu Fairy Co., Ltd. 5,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 4,009,993.00 14,009,993.00 (4,009,993.00) (10,303,139.19) - 3,706,853.81 - - - -

Nagasia Co., Ltd. 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,999,300.00 3,999,300.00 - (708,989.32) 3,999,300.00 3,290,310.68 - - - -

Avant Co., Ltd. 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,999,300.00 3,999,300.00 (1,976,203.94) (2,003,391.21) 2,023,096.06 1,995,908.79 - - - -

Total 565,500,000.00 650,500,000.00 688,005,716.04 773,005,716.04 (363,700,330.93) (432,369,320.30) 324,305,385.11 340,636,395.74 13,302,552.81 11,245,484.67 90,303,020.79 27,587,507.57

Non-operating subsidiaries

R Siam Co., Ltd. 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 999,300.00 999,300.00 (999,300.00) (999,300.00) - - 206,709.94 614,865.73 - -

R.S. Sportmaster Co., Ltd. 4,500,000.00 4,500,000.00 2,667,594.68 2,667,594.68 (2,667,594.68) (2,667,594.68) - - 1,219,927.95 1,089,473.85 - -

R.S. Television Co., Ltd. 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,999,300.00 3,999,300.00 - - 3,999,300.00 3,999,300.00 - - - -

RS Film and Distribution Co., Ltd. 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,999,300.00 4,999,300.00 (4,999,300.00) (4,999,300.00) - - 1,302,090.96 1,286,002.29 - -

Bangkok Organizer Co., Ltd. 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,999,300.00 2,999,300.00 (549,177.05) (1,399,605.90) 2,450,122.95 1,599,694.10 - - - -

D-Media and Production Co., Ltd. (formerly : 

RS I-Dream

Enterainment Co., Ltd.)

37,000,000.00 9,325,000.00 32,775,000.00 5,100,000.00 31,954,088.91 5,100,000.00 820,911.09 - - 1,817,066.55 - -

Total 54,500,000.00 26,825,000.00 48,439,794.68 20,764,794,68 (41,169,460.64) (15,165,800.58) 7,270,334.04 5,598,994.10 2,728,728.85 4,807,408.42 - -

Grand Total 620,000,000.00 677,325,000.00 736,445,510.72 793,770,510.72 (404,869,791.57) (447,535,120.88) 331,575,719.15 346,235,389.84 16,031,281.66 16,052,893.09 90,303,020.79 27,587,507.57

 11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
 Investments in subsidiaries which recorded by the cost method as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, consisted of :

RS Annual Report 
 2011 Financial Statements
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 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET
 Movements of property, plant and equipment during year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 , are summarized below :

Consolidated

Land and Land

improvements

Building and 

building

improvements

Machines and 

operating equip-

ment

Furniture and 

office

equipment

vehicles

Equipment 

under

installation

Total

At Cost

Balance as at January 1,2010 17,462,730.49 55,017,663.31 248,609,791.20 185,994,660.01 43,148,080.08 1,187,448.05 551,420,373.14

Acquisitions - - 13,965,339.38 19,131,210.91 6,332,056.07 4,725,232.80 44,153,839.16

Transfer in (out) - net - - 430,764.26 2,572,112.15 - (5,454,001.41) (2,451,125.00)

Disposal - - (6,275,332.69) (15,356,848.38) (1,998,376.56) (59,679.44) (23,690,237.07)

Balance as at December 31, 2010 17,462,730.49 55,017,663.31 256,730,562.15 192,341,134.69 47,481,759.59 399,000.00 569,432,850.23

Acquisitions - 1,359,400.00 10,158,766.05 19,641,690.58 13,325,000.00 2,028,000.00 46,512,856.63

Disposal - - (860,246.17) (8,675,498.70) (17,588,411.24) - (27,124,156.11)

Balance as at December 31, 2011 17,462,730.49 56,377,063.31 266,029,082.03 203,307,326.57 43,218,348.35 2,427,000.00 588,821,550.75

Accumulated depreciation

As at January  1, 2010 3,224,071.16 27,153,666.75 152,598,690.35 166,999,806.32 29,400,459.76 - 379,376,694.34

Depreciation for the year 2,034,500.08 6,029,583.46 22,090,478.81 20,778,261.03 8,867,037.19 - 59,799,860.57

Transfer in (out) - net - - - (623,485.00) - - (623,485.00)

Disposal - - (2,613,248.19) (14,738,652.49) (1,827,788.40) - (19,179,689.08)

As at December 31, 2010 5,258,571.24 33,183,250.21 172,075,920.97 172,415,929.86 36,439,708.55 - 419,373,380.83

Depreciation for the year 2,034,500.08 5,318,772.64 20,363,389.35 17,238,194.24 7,384,140.24 - 52,338,996.55

Disposal - - (780,992.23) (8,475,737.26) (17,201,043.14) - (26,457,772.63)

As at December 31, 2011 7,293,071.32 38,502,022.85 191,658,318.09 181,178,386.84 26,622,805.65 - 445,254,604.75

Provision for impairment of asset

As at January  1, 2010 - - - 71,108.75 - - 71,108.75

Increase (Decrease) 4,087,931.50 6,083,819.24 4,221,372.06 119,389.44 - - 14,512,512.24

As at December 31, 2010 4,087,931.50 6,083,819.24 4,221,372.06 190,498.19 - - 14,583,620.99

Increase (Decrease) 4,093,614.45 6,092,276.83 3,047,199.85 3.986,877.94 - - 17,219,969.07

As at December 31, 2011 8,181,545.95 12,176,096.07 7,268,571.91 4,173,376.1 - - 31,803,590.06

Net book value

As at December 31, 2010 8,116,227.75 15,750,593.86 80,433,269.12 19,734,706.64 11,042,051.04 399,000.00 135,475,848.41

As at December 31, 2011 1,988,113.22 5,698,944.39 67,102,192.03 17,951,563.60 16,595,542.70 2,427,000.00 111,763,355.94
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 Depreciation for the year 2011 of the Group of companies are totaling Baht 52.34 million (in 2010: Baht 59.80 million).   The 
amount of Baht 33.69 million (in 2010: Baht 41.41 million) was included in cost of sales and service and the amount of Baht 
18.65 million (in 2010: Baht 18.66 million) was included in administrative expenses, in the consolidated financial statements.
 Depreciation for the year 2011 of the Company are totalling Baht 24.91 million (in 2010: Baht 27.95 million). The amount of 
Baht 11.75 million (in 2010: Baht 17.54 million) was included in cost of sales and service and the amount of Baht 13.17 million 
(in 2010: Baht 10.41 million) was included in administrative expenses, in the separated financial statements.
 As at December 31, 2011 Group of companies’ property plant and equipment at cost of Baht 194.58 million, respectively, 
have been fully depreciated but still in use (in 2010: Baht 120.16 million).
 As at December 31, 2011, the Company’s property plant and equipment at cost of Baht 135.02 million,
respectively, have been fully depreciated but still in use (in 2010: Baht 71.30 million).
 As at December 31, 2011, the book value of vehicles and equipment under financial lease agreements of the Group of 
companies is Baht 16.30 million (in 2010: Baht 9.68 million), respectively, and of the Company is Baht 16.30 million (in 2010: 
Baht 8.86 million), respectively.

Separated

Building and building improvements

Machines and 

operating equip-

ment

Furniture and 

office

equipment

Vehicles

Equipment 

under

installation

Total

At Cost

Balance as at January 1,2010 8,245,802.22 23,768,195.58 166,006,003.46 34,955,920.28 1,043,399.94 234,019,321.48

Acquisitions - 9,378,201.36 17,861,900.48 6,332,056.07 4,127,576.47 37,699,734.38

Transfer in (out) - net - 344,439.26 3,195,612.15 - (4,771,976.41) (1,231,925.00)

Disposal - (2,071,889.00) (13,311,740.96) (1,998,376.56) - (17,382,006.52)

Balance as at December 31, 2010 8,245,802.22 31,418,947.20 173,751,775.13 39,289,599.79 399,000.00 253,105,124.44

Acquisitions - 3,964,100.00 14,049,998.60 13,325,000.00 1,688,000.00 33,027,098.60

Disposal - - (5,892,958.97) (15,924,335.54) - (21,817,294.51)

Balance as at December 31, 2011 8,245,802.22 35,383,047.20 181,908,814.76 36,690,264.25 2,087,000.00 264,314,928.43

Accumulated depreciation

As at January  1, 2010 5,654,223.89 17,297,081.73 131,664,278.40 23,130,916.75 - 177,746,500.77

Depreciation for the year 1,481,703.57 2,245,667.15 16,388,039.36 7,833,556.10 - 27,948,966.18

Disposal - (2,071,882.00) (12,858,776.56) (1,827,788.40) - (16,758,446.96)

As at December 31, 2010 7,135,927.46 17,470,866.88 135,193,541.20 29,136,684.45 - 188,937,019.99

Depreciation for the year 956,488.94 3,633,004.95 13,807,108.92 6,515,003.14 - 24,911,605.95

Disposal - - (5,793,350.09) (15,536,969.44) - (21,330,319.53)

As at December 31, 2011 8,092,416.40 21,103,891.83 143,207,300.03 20,114,718.15 - 192,518,306.41

Allowance  for impairment

As at January  1, 2010 - - 71,108.75 - - 71,108.75

Increase (Decrease) - - (71,108.75) - - (71,108.75)

As at December 31, 2010 - - - - - -

Increase (Decrease) - - - - - -

As at December 31, 2011 - - - - - -

Net book value

As at December 31, 2010 1,109,874.76 13,948,080.32 38,558,233.93 10,152,915.34 399,000.00 64,168,104.35

As at December 31, 2011 153,385.82 14,279,175.37 38,701,514.73 16,575,546.10 2,087,000.00 71,796,622.02
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 13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET
 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, intangible assets are as follow :

 For closing the year-ended account, the Management reviewed the future benefits of its copyright of music and found that the 
value in use of such copyright discounted to present value was higher than its net book value. The Company therefore reversed 
the allowance of impairment.

 During the second quarter of year 2011 one subsidiary company obtained sport licensing from a foreign company (see Note 26.6).

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Cost

Beginning balance 670,646,969.35 1,089,587,404.27 496,353,882.74 478,809,378.99

Addition 322,989,557.53 56,889,858.87 59,334,931.82 17,544,503.75

Disposal / Transfer - (475,830,293.79) - -

Carry forward balance 993,636,526.88 670,646,969.35 555,688,814.56 496,353,882.74

Accumulated amortization

Beginning balance 221,577,264.81 444,955,281.24 139,443,850.22 135,489,628.44

Amortization for the periods 33,080,418.01 249,678,148.86 32,523,134.12 3,954,221.78

Disposal / Transfer - (473,056,165.29) - -

Carry forward balance 254,657,682.82 221,577,264.81 171,966,984.34 139,443,850.22

Balance 738,978,844.06 449,069,704.54 383,721,830.22 356,910,032.52

Less Allowance for impairment (269,748,094.49) (285,958,138.80) (261,554,254.17) (277,958,138.80)

Net book value 469,230,749.57 163,111,565.74 122,167,576.05 78,951,893.72

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Copyright of music 80,750,357.36 53,098,660.94 81,422,278.13 54,233,556.65

Copyright of drema 15,330,250.00 16.00 15,330,243.00 9.00

Copyright of film 957,571.79 69.79 957,566.79 64.79

Other copyright 372,192,570.42 110,012,819.01 24,457,488.13 24,718,263.28

Total 469,230,749.57 163,111,565.74 122,167,576.05 78,951,893.72
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 14. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, other current liabilities was as follows :

 15. LIABILITY UNDER FINANCIAL LEASE 
 As at December 31, 2011, and 2010, the Group had liability under financial lease as follows :

 As at December 31, 2011, the Group has financial lease agreements for vehicles. These are payable monthly in the amount of 
Baht 0.26 million (consolidated) and Baht 0.26 million (separated), (2010: Baht 0.61 million and Baht 0.53 million, respectively). The 
current portion of Baht 2.49 million and Baht 2.49 million, respectively, (2010: Baht 8.55 million and Baht 6.76 million, respectively) were 
presented under current liabilities.
 As at December 31, 2011, the Company and subsidiaries have committed to pay the lease under the financial lease agreements 
as follows :

 16. LONG-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
 On March 17, 2009, a subsidiary company entered into loan agreement with a local bank with the credit line of Baht 50 million for 
repayment the outstanding loan of the Company. The repayment will be made within 36 months from the first draw down date on 
quarterly basis in the amount of Baht 4.2 million each. The loan bears the market interest rate.
 As at December 31, 2010, the current portion amount of Baht 15 million was presented under current liabilities.
During the year 2011 the subsidiary company has already paid the whole amount of such loan.
 17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
 In 2011, new independent actuary carried out an evaluation of the Company’s obligations for employees by
Projected unit credit method.  The employee benefit obligations as at January 1, 2011, amount of Baht 43.62 million
(consolidated) and amount of Baht 39.33 million (separate) see note 4.4.

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Allowance for sale return 46,738,805.84 68,145,368.84 46,738,805.84 68,145,368.84

Undue output Value Added Tax 45,414,970.50 32,289,669.30 22,554,550.88 18,687,985.82

Others 21,562,183.68 22,374,471.56 13,071,695.62 12,122,332.71

Total 113,715,960.02 122,809,509.70 82,365,052.34 98,955,687.37

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Liability under financial lease 13,469,541.52 12,386,365.04 13,469,541.52 10,589,193.73

Less Current portion of liability

under financial lease
(2,487,906.12) (8,553,793.99) (2,487,906.12) (6,756,622.68)

Liability under financial lease - net 10,981,635.40 3,832,571.05 10,981,635.40 3,832,571.05

Year
In Baht

Consolidated Separated

1 3,178,083.36 3,178,083.36

2-5 12,076,153.32 12,076,153.32

15,254,236.68 15,254,236.68
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 The Company has provided the provision for employees benefits with new independent actuary as at December 31, 2011 as follow :

 18. DIVIDEND RECEIVAED FROM SUBSIDIARIES 

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

Provision for employee benefits -
beginning - -

Add  recognized amount 17,390,936.00 15,306,179.00

Less  liability decrease from actual paid (1,419,717.00) (1,393,452.00)

Provision for employee benefits - ending 15,971,219.00 13,912,727.00

Present value of unfunded obligation as 
at December 31, 2011 15,971,219.00 13,912,727.00

Expense recognised in profit or loss 

    Current service cost 5,918,005.00 4,871,394.00

    Past service cost 9,859,113.00 8,979,761.00

    Interest cost 1,613,818.00 1,455,024.00

Total - recognized in the statement of  
Comprehensive Income 17,390,936.00 15,306,179.00

 Principal actuarial assumptions Consolidated / Separated

For the year ended December 31, 2011

Discount rate (%) 3.7

Estimation of future salary increase (%) 6 - 7

Retirement age (year old) 60

Companies

Dividend

Per share

Baht
Total amount Millions Baht

2011 2010 2011 2010

RS In-store Media Co., Ltd

First 31.81 6.99 6.20 1.36

Second 63.50 55.00 12.38 10.72

Sky-High Network Co., Ltd 

First 11.72 12.50 11.72 12.50

Second 240.00 3.00 60.00 3.00

Total 90.30 27.58
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 19. SHARE CAPITAL
 The Extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of the Company No.1/2010 held on February 12, 2010 passed the resolution 
as follows;
  19.1 Reduction of the Company’s registered capital from Baht 900,000,000 to Baht 875,000,000 divided into 875,000,000 
shares at a par value of Baht 1.00 each by canceling the registered capital which is not allotted in the amount of 25,000,000 
ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 1.00 each. These ordinary shares were reserved for the exercise of warrants allotted to the 
employees of the Company and/or the subsidiary which was already cancelled. The company has registered the decrease of its 
share capital on March 9, 2010.
  19.2 Reduction of the Company’s registered and paid-up capital by decreasing of 50,000,000 shares for compensation 
of the Company’s accumulated losses. Number of shares of the Company’s shareholders will be reduced from 1 share to 
approximately 0.9285715714 shares. The registered capital shall decrease from Baht 875,000,000 to Baht 825,000,000 divided 
into 825,000,000 shares at a par value of Baht 1.00 each and the paid-up capital shall decrease from Baht 700,001,400 to Baht 
650,001,400 divided into 650,001,400 shares at a par value of Baht 1.00 each. Subsequently, the annual general meeting of 
shareholders for the year 2010 held on April 28, 2010 passed the resolution to cancel the reduction of the Company’s registered 
and paid-up capital.
  19.3 Issuance and offering of Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of the Company #2 (RS-W2) not exceeding 
130,000,280 units to the existing shareholders at the ratio of 5 existing ordinary share per 1 unit of Warrant for free, with any 
fraction to be discarded, by 1 unit of Warrant will be entitled to purchase 1 new ordinary share at the price of Baht 1.20 per 
share. Subsequently, the annual general meeting of shareholders for the year 2010 held on April 28, 2010 passed the resolution 
to amend the details of Warrants by changing the offering units to not exceeding 140,000,280 units by 1 unit of Warrant will be 
entitled to purchase 1 new ordinary share at the price of Baht 1.90 per share.
  19.4 Approval of the increase of the Company’s registered capital from Baht 825,000,000 to Baht 966,000,280 by issuing 
of 141,000,280 new ordinary shares at the par value of Baht 1 each totaling Baht 141,000,280 as to reserve for the exercise 
of the Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of the Company #2 (RS-W2) totaling 130,000,280 shares and the adjustment 
of the terms of rights of the Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of the Company #1 (RS-W1) totaling 11,000,000 shares. 
Subsequently, the annual general meeting of shareholders for the year 2010 held on April 28, 2010 passed the resolution to 
cancel the increase of the Company’s registered capital of issuing 141,000,280 shares and had the resolution to increase the 
registered capital by issuing of 151,000,280 shared at the par value of Baht 1 per share. As a result, the new Company’s register 
capital will be Baht 1,026,000,280. This increase of Company’s registered capital is reserve for the exercise of the Warrants to 
purchase the ordinary shares of the Company #2 (RS-W2) totaling 140,000,280 shares and the adjustment of the terms of rights 
of the Warrants to purchase the ordinary shares of the Company #1 (RS-W1) totaling 11,000,000 shares. The Company has 
registered the increase of its share capital on May 12, 2010.

 The Stock Exchange of Thailand has granted a listing of certificates representing the rights to purchase shares (warrants)   
(RS-W2) of the Company from June 14, 2010 (Trade date) with the following details:

Type of Securities :               Warrants for purchase ordinary shares of RS Public Company Limited

Secondary Market :                 Main Market

Number of Warrants :               140,000,269 units

Underlying Shares :                140,000,269 shares

Issuer :                           RS Public Company Limited. The warrants were offered to the existing shareholders of
      the Company whose names appeared in the share register at the closing date of the share 
      register book as of May 12, 2010, at the ratio of 5 ordinary shares to 1 warrant unit at Baht
      (zero) offering price.

Rights of Warrants :               One warrant unit is entitled to purchase one ordinary share at Baht 1.90 per share (the exercise  
      price and the exercise ratio are subject to variation in accordance with the specified adjustment)

Type of Warrants :                 Specify Warrant holders and transferable

Term of Warrants :                 4 years from the issued date (May 20, 2010). The last exercise date is on
      May 19, 2014. If the  last exercise date falls on the Company’s holiday, such
      exercise date shall be the last working day of the Company prior to the last
      exercises date.
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Offering Price :                   Baht 0 (Baht Zero)

Exercise of Warrants : Warrant Holders can exercise the right to purchase ordinary shares of the Company after 1   
      year since the date of issue of the warrants. Warrant holder may exercise the warrants on the last 
      business day of June and December throughout the term of the warrants. The first exercise date
      is on June 30, 2011 and the last exercise date is on May 19, 2014.

 The Stock Exchange of Thailand has granted a listing of certificates representing the rights to purchase shares (warrants)   
(RS-W1) of the Company from February 13, 2008 (Trade date) with the following details:

Type of Securities :  Warrants for purchase ordinary shares of RS Public Company Limited

Secondary Market :  Main Market

Number of Warrants : 174,999,984 units

Underlying Shares :                174,999,984 shares

Issuer :    RS Public Company Limited. The warrants were offered to the existing shareholders of the 
      Company whose names appeared in the share register at the closing date of the share register
      book as of December 21, 2007, at the ratio of 4 ordinary shares to 1 warrant unit at Baht 0 (zero)
      offering price.

Rights of Warrants :               One warrant unit is entitled to purchase one ordinary share at Baht 1.80 per share (the exercise
      price and the exercise ratio are subject to variation in accordance with the specified adjustment)

Type of Warrants :                 Specify Warrant holders and transferable

Term of Warrants :                 3 years from the issued date (January 15, 2008). The last exercise date is on January 14, 2011. 
      If the last exercise date falls on the Company’s holiday, such exercise date shall be the last 
      working day of the Company prior to the last exercises date.

Offering Price :                   Baht 0 (Baht Zero)

Exercise of Warrants : Warrant holder may exercise the warrants on the last business day of January and July 
      throughout the term of the warrants. The first exercise date is on January 30, 2009 and the last 
      exercise date is on January 14, 2011. 

 On July 12, 2010, The Company has changed the detail to exercise the warrants for purchase ordinary shares throughout the 
warrants (RS-W1) from that originally one warrant unit is entitled to purchase one ordinary share at Baht 1.80 per share to that 
one warrant unit is entitled to purchase 1.053 ordinary share at Baht 1.709 per share.
 As of December 31, 2010, the Company has registered the increase in share capital with the Ministry of Commerce                       
amount of 8,068,528 shares from the exercised warrants of 7,662,491 units. As a result, the share capital has increased in 
amount of Baht 8,068,528 and premium on share capital has increased in amount of Baht 5,720,710.
 On January 14, 2011, which is the last exercise date, the warrants have been exercised of 165,798,681 units convert to 
common share of 174,585,900 shares. On January 26, 2011 the Company registered its paid-up share capital from Baht 
708.07 million to be Baht 882.65 million and the increase in premium on share at Baht 123.78 million with the Ministry of 
Commerce. The remaining unexercised of warrants is 1,538,812 units which is no longer being registered security in the 
Stock Exchange of Thailand.

 20. DIVIDEND
 At the 2011 Ordinary shareholders meeting held on April 1, 2011, the shareholders resolved to appropriate legal reserve in 
amount of Baht 7,228,639.26 and appropriate the net profit for the year 2010, for shareholder as dividend in amount of Baht 
132.40 million (Common shares 882,654,428 shares, at value Baht 0.15 per share).Whereby presently the dividend has already 
been paid to shareholders on April 21, 2011.
 At the Board of Directors’ meeting No. 3/2011 resolved to appropriate the net profit for the six-month
period ended June 30, 2011, for shareholder as interim dividend in amount of Baht 88.26 million (Common
shares 882,654,428 shares, at value Baht 0.10 per share).  Whereby presently the dividend has already been
paid to shareholders on September 9, 2011.
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 23. SEGMENT INFORMATION
 Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business. The primary format / business segments is based on 
the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.  
 Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on 
a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest or dividend-earning assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans, 
borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and expenses.
 Geographic segments
 Management considers that the Group operates in a single geographic area, namely in Thailand, and has, therefore, only one 
major geographic segment.

In Thousands Baht

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Changes in finished goods and work in 
process balance (7,997) (35,169) (5,701) (27,735)

Cost of service and raw consumable and 
material  used 1,432,844 1,595,052 861,728 906,940  

Employee expenses 568,102 514,012 438,424 389,628 

Depreciation 52,339 59,800 24,912 27,949

Rental and utility expense 102,708 103,369 76,300 70,889

Sales promotion and public relations 
expense 63,967 46,992 8,358 9,237

Allowance for impairment asset 17,414 40,375 - 25,707

Loss for damage of inventory and provi-
sion for decline in value of inventory  20,619 33,403 21,302 24,595

 21. SHARE PREMIUM AND LEGAL RESERVE
 The Extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of the Company No.1/2010 held on February 12, 2010 passed the resolution to 
allocate of share premium amounted to Baht 204 million to compensate the Company’s accumulated losses based on the 
financial statement as at September 30, 2009. Consequently, the Company’s accumulated loss was Baht 134 million.
 Share premium
Section 51 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires companies to set aside share subscription received in excess of the 
par value to a reserve account (“share premium”).  Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.
 Legal reserve
 Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 requires that a company shall allocate not less than 5% of its annual net 
profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”), until this account reaches an amount 
not less than 10% of the registered authorized capital. The legal reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

 22. EXPENSES BY NATURE
Significant expenses for the year 2011 and 2010 were as follows :



In Baht

Music Media Showbiz Film Sports Others Total Eliminated Total

Revenues 1,043,798,630.22 1,045,763,194.47 916,666,292.38 20,230,385.12 18,654,960.13 - 3,045,113,462.32 (315,757,299.63) 2,729,356,162.69

Revenues from external 934,477,034.35 941,852,304.56 814,141,478.53 20,230,385.12 18,654,960.13 - 2,729,356,162.69 - 2,729,356,162.69

Revenues from internal 109,321,595.87 103,910,889.91 102,524,813.85 - - - 315,757,299.63 (315,757,299.63) -

Cost of sales and services 543,901,867.90 784,061,326.90 785,257,725.63 32,373,600.81 25,836,526.73 - 2,171,431,047.97 (318,269,112.73) 1,853,161,935.24

Gross profit (loss) 499,896,762.32 261,701,867.57 131,408,566.75 (12,143,215.69) (7,181,566.60) - 873,682,414.35 2,511,813.10 876,194,227.45

Fixed assets 19,379,548.46 35,597,898.63 2,089,281.35 3,202,379.60 21,342,198.92 30,152,048.98 111,763,355.94 - 111,763,355.94

Revenues 1,149,313,028.55 790,275,325.49 595,199,638.76 62,319,881.48 600,729,058.38 - 3,197,836,932.66 (301,938,033.54) 2,895,898,899.12

Revenues from external 1,053,038,205.43 663,378,504.18 533,357,095.89 62,279,881.48 583,845,212.14 - 2,895,898,899.12 - 2,895,898,899.12

Revenues from internal 96,274,823.12 126,896,821.31 61,842,542.87 40,000.00 16,883,846.24 - 301,938,033.54 (301,938,0t33.54) -

Cost of sales and services 589,313,157.83 601,489,762.19 500,180,981.06 84,478,806.22 412,739,597.41 - 2,188,202,304.71 (220,664,060.56) 1,967,538,244.15

Gross profit (loss) 559,999,870.72 188,785,563.30 95,018,657.70 (22,158,924.74) 187,989,460.97 - 1,009,634,627.95 (81,273,972.98) 928,360,654.97

Fixed assets 19,710,057.63 42,113,731.35 3,527,860.71 3,975,633.69 65,148,204.40 1,000,360.63 135,475,848.41 - 135,475,848.41

In Baht

Music Media Showbiz Film Sports Others Total Eliminated Total

Business segments
 For the year ended December 31, 2011, the operated information with business segment is as follows :

 For the year ended December 31, 2010, the operated information with business segment was as follows:

RS Annual Report 
 2011 Financial Statements
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 24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 The Company and its subsidiaries do not have the policy to enter the derivative financial instruments for trading or 
speculative purposes.
 Credit risk
 The Company and subsidiaries have credit risk on trade accounts receivable. However, the Company and subsidiaries have a 
policy of doing business with good financial status clients to reduce the risk of financial loss. The Company and subsidiaries make 
allowance for doubtful accounts to cover the residual risk of financial loss when receivables are expected to be uncollectible.
 Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Group’s operations and 
its cash flows.  Management believes that the interest rate risk is minimal because the interest rates on overdrafts and loans are 
at market rates and substantial portions of loans are short-term maturity.  Accordingly, the Group does not hedge such risk.
 Liquidity risk
 The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management 
to finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
 Fair values
 The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
 Because the financial instruments have short-term maturity, the Group used the following methods and assumptions in 
estimating the fair values of financial instruments:
 Cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable; the carrying values approximate their fair values.
Trade accounts payable; the fair value is based on the carrying value in the statement of financial position.
 Bank overdrafts and short-term loans and long-term loan from financial institutions; the carrying values approximate their fair 
values since they bear interest rates varied according to market interest rate.   
 Risk from exchange rate 
 The Company has certain foreign currency transactions that give rise to significant exposure to market risk from change in 
foreign exchange rates. However, the Company has committed purchase-sell forward contract for foreign exchange rated as a 
hedge against such risk.

 Foreign exchange sold contract outstanding at December 31, 2011 are summarized below.

 25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to maintain their abilities to continue as a going concern 
and to maintain an appropriate capital structure. 
 As at December 31, 2011, debt to equity ratio in the consolidated financial statements is 0.59: 1 (Separate 0.45: 1)

 26. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
  26.1 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had commitment and contingent liabilities with the local 
bank as follows:

Foreign currency Sold amount 
(USD)

Contractual exchange rate
(Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

Selling rate

US Dollar 72,000 30.86

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Various credit facilities

    - Unused (Baht Million) 780 435 530 435

    - Unused (US Dollar Million) 4 - - -

Forward Contract (Sold)

    - Unused (US Dollar Million) 5 - - -
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  26.2 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had commitment and contingent liabilities related to letter of 
guarantee to the Company,  its subsidiary and other companies as follows :

  26.3 As at December 31, 2011, the Company had commitment and contingent liabilities related to letter of guarantee to 
one subsidiary company for the payment of license fee to one oversea federation.
  26.4 As at December 31, 2011, the Company and the subsidiary companies had commitment and contingent liabilities 
related to rental and service agreement as follows :

  26.5 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company and the subsidiaries were being sued, with the plaintiff demanding 
the Company to pay for the damage caused by the Company’s alleged copyright violation in the amount of Baht 235.38 million 
and Baht 257.39 million, respectively. However, provision was made in the amount of Baht 3.75 million and Baht 2.89 million, 
respectively. This issue is still being adjudicated.
  26.6 Two subsidiaries companies entered into purchase the sport licensing agreement with two overseas federations, 
resulting in the subsidiaries has the commitment to pay during year 2010 to 2014 at the amount indicated in the agreement. 
This is co-guaranteed by the Company. A commercial bank issues the bank guarantee for each installment.
  26.7 The Company and the subsidiary are committed to pay for television stations lease in accordance with jointly 
production and advertising contracts and media concession agreement with modern trade, respectively.
  26.8 The subsidiary is committed to pay for land rental with another company for 9 years starting from January 1, 2008 to 
December 31, 2016 totaling of Baht 17.11 million. The Company had commitment to pay monthly rental of Baht 0.23 million.
  26.9 The Company and a subsidiary Company have entered into four agreements with three companies whereby those 
companies are to provide satellite transmission services for a period of 3 years, for which the expiry dates are in 2012 for the 
first two agreements and the third and fourth agreements have a period of 3 years and 5 years, for which the expiry dates are in 
2014 and 2015, respectively. The Company is obliged to pay transmission service fees and other expenses in relation to such 
services, as stipulated in the agreements. The Company is required to comply with conditions stipulated in   the agreements.
  26.10 The subsidiary is committed to pay for licensing to broadcast to the public with the government agency 2 agreements 
for 2 years starting from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2013 as stipulated in the agreements.

 27. RECLASSIFICATION
 Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010 have been reclassified to conform to the 
current year’s classification as follows:

Consolidated Separated

2011 2010 2011 2010

Guarantee to subsidiary 
(Unit: US Dollar Million) 1.00 0.50 - 0.50

Guarantee to the Company, its subsidiary 
and other company (Unit: Baht Million) 58.96 43.69 58.96 43.69

In Baht

Consolidated Separated

Pay within

   1 year 35.62 26.26

   2 - 3 years 18.94 8.84

   After 3 years 6.35 -
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In Baht

Consolidated Separated

Before
reclassifica-

tion

Reclassifica-
tion

After
reclassifica-

tion

Before
reclassifica-

tion

Reclassifica-
tion

After
reclassifica-

tion

Balance sheets

Cash and cash equivalents 368,454 (4,083) 364,371 - - -

Temporary investment - fixed deposit 
with maturity of twelve months - 4,083 4,083 - - -

Revenue department receivable               34,744 (12,809) 21,935 31,916 (31,916) -

Withholding tax 48,377 31,915 80,292 7,736 31,916 39,652

Other current assets 90,293 1,134 91,427 - - -

Other non - current assets 32,836 (19,106) 13,730 - - -

Intangible assets 164,245 (1,134) 163,111 - - -

 28. APPRROVAL FOR THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Company’s authorized directors on February 22, 2012.


